
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

March 12, 2021 
 
 
 



           SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
Committee of the Whole  
Friday, March 12, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 
Virtual Meeting 

 
AGENDA 

1.  Call to Order 

2.  Invocation 

3.  Roll Call  

4.  Adoption of the Agenda  

5.  Special Presentations 

       A. Above and Beyond Award 

6.  Public Comments  

7.  Action Item(s):  

A. Request Approval of the Minutes from February 12, 2021 meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 

B. Request Approval of the Law, Agriculture, Arts, Business, Science, Engineering, and Technology (LA2B-
SET) Collaboration Initiative to Enhance Faculty Development and Student Career Opportunities (SULC) 
 

C. Request Approval of MOU Between Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center and 
Davis Farms, INC. to solidify an Agricultural Partnership relative to Research, Extension and Teaching 
(SUAREC) 
 

D. Request to Establish Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) program at Southern University at New 
Orleans for the 2022-2023 Academic Year (SUNO) 
 

E. Request Approval of MOU Between Southern University at New Orleans and Deep South Economic 
Mobility Collaborative to Enhance Economic Development and Business Procurement Opportunities 
(SUNO) 
 

F. Request Approval to Create a New Academic Title of Professor from Practice at the Southern University 
Law Center (SULC) 
 

G. Request Approval of Cybersecurity Policy to establish the guiding principles for securing Information 
technology (IT) resources (SUS) 
 

H. Request Approval of Information Security Policy Plan to Safeguard Campus Data and Information (SUS) 
 

I. Request Approval of Graduate Council Policy for Southern University at Baton Rouge (SUBR) 

 
J. Request Approval to Establish the Brookshire’s-Super 1 First-Generation Endowed Scholarship at Southern 

University at Shreveport (SUSLA) 
 



K. Request Approval to Establish the Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority, Inc. Endowed First-Generation Endowed 
Scholarship at Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA) 
 

L. Request Approval for Professional Legal Services between Board of Supervisors and Decuir, Clark and 
Adams, L.L.P. (SUS) 
 

M. Request Approval of Recommended Tenure Track Faculty Appointments to Southern University at Baton 
Rouge (SUBR) 



N. Request Approval of Tenure and/or Promotion Appointment for Faculty who Appealed Former 
Recommendations (SUBR) 

O. Request Approval of Recommended Tenure Track Faculty Appointments to Southern University at New 
Orleans for the 2021-2022 Academic Year (SUNO)   
    

 



P. Request Approval of Recommended Tenure and Tenure Track Faculty Appointments to Southern 
University Law Center for the 2021-2022 Academic Year (SULC)   

Deleso Alford  Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$143,100.00 State 

Linh Dai Assistant Prof and Fellow of the  
St. Louis A. Berry Civil Rights and Justice Institute 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

Charletta Fortson Director of the Common Law Bar Preparation 
Program and Assistant Professor of Law 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$132,000.00 Federal 

Phebe Poydras Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$146, 280.00 State 

Mark Roark Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$119,059.20 State 

Greg Sergienko Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 
/Professor of Law 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$153,000.00 Federal 

Kenya Smith Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$114,120.00 State 

Ryan Stoa Associate Prof. and Fellow of Cannabis and Hemp 
Law and Policy Institute  

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

Shandrea Williams Associate Professor of Law 
Tenure Track 

(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

 
Q. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000* 

 
1.  Adriel Hilton Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs and 

Enrollment Management 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$120,000.00 State 

2. Lucretia Jenkins Asstistant Director in the Office of Institutional 
Effectiveness 

Additional responsibilities 
 (SUBR) 

$62,295.00 Federal 

3. Kim Rugon Vice-Chancellor for Advancement 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$120,000.00 State 

4. Torin Sanders Director of Online Certificate Program 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$75,300.00 Federal/ 
State 

5. Michael Thomas 
 

Director of Marketing and University 
Relations 

New Appointment 
 (SUSLA) 

$60,000.00 State 



6. Katara Williams Chief of Staff/Executive Director for  
Strategic Initiatives 

Additional Responsibilities/Title Change 

$145,000.00 State 

7. LaTonya Wright Interim Director of Records and Registration 
Continuation 

(SULC) 

$83, 700.00 State 

 
R. Request Approval to Grant Endowed Professorships to the following for the 2021-2022 Academic Year: 

(SULC)  
1. Deleso Alford  
2. Kenya Smith  

 
S. Request Approval of BA-7 for the Southern University Law Center (SULC) 

 
T. Resolutions 

8. Information Items 

A. Finance Update 

      1.  Interim Financial Reports 

B. Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS) 
 

C. President’s Reports 
 

D. Campus Reports 

9. Other Business 

10. Adjournment 
 

 
*Pursuant to La R.S. 42:17 Executive Session May be Required. 

 



1 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
           SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Committee of the Whole  
Friday, February 12, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 
Virtual Meeting 

 
Minutes 

 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chairman 
Attorney Domoine Rutledge.  The invocation was given by Rev. Gerard Robinson, pastor of McKowen 
Baptist Church, Baton Rouge, LA.    

Roll Call by Dr. Ray Belton. 
 
Present:  Chairman Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Vice Chairman Atty. Edwin Shorty, Mr. John Barthelemy, 
Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Mr. Bakari Garvey, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard Hilliard, 
Mr. Myron Lawson, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Rev. Samuel Tolbert, Dr. 
Rani Whitfield, and Ms. Arlanda Williams 
 
Absent:  Atty Jody Amedee 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Chairman Atty Rutledge mention that Items G - I will be deleted from the agenda and Item O #4  job 
position has to be updated to “Interim”. Upon the motion by Ms. Christy Reeves and second by Ms. Arlanda 
Williams, the agenda was recommended for adoption with the deletion of Items G- I and update to Item O 
#4.   

Motion Approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 5:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  ACTION ITEM(s): 

There was a motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Mr. Myron Lawson to approve Action Item 6A.  

Motion Approved  

A.  Request Approval of the Minutes from January 8, 2021 meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors    

There was a motion by Dr. Leon Tarver and second by Mr. Sam Gilliam to approve in global (action items 
6B – 6E) 
 
Motion Passed 
 

No additional comments from Dr. Ammons (SUNO) or Dr. Ellis (SUSLA) but both are available for any 
questions the board members may have.  There were none.   



2 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
Item 6E – Dr. Belton commended and acknowledged Dr. Leon Tarver for all his work.  He mentioned the 
information Center was a project that Dr. Tarver initiated.  Mr. Myron Lawson also acknowledged Dr. 
Tarver.   Atty Edwin Shorty and Mr. Myron Lawson had questions in reference to the contract and asked 
for additional information.  Dr. Belton and Mr. Eli Guillory responded to Atty Edwin Shorty and Mr. Myron 
Lawson question.  Dr. Leroy Davis asked questions in reference to the architect firm and the fees and fee 
formula.  Mr. Guillory responded to Dr. Davis.   

 
B. Request  Approval of Intent to Develop a 100% Online Master of Arts in Teaching (M.A.T.) in 

special Education (SUNO) 
 

C. Request Approval of MOU between Southern University at New Orleans and Education Farm to 
Establish a Tech Farm and Workforce Development Initiative (SUNO) 

 
D. Request Approval of Partnership Agreement with Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana 

and Avance International University, Uganda to Establish a Study Abroad and Global 
Education Program (SUSLA) 
 

E. Request Approval and Authority to Execute Information Center Contract between Southern 
University and A&M College and The Louisiana Department of Transportation and 
Development (SUBR) 
 

There was a motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Dr. Leroy Davis to approve in global (action 
items 6F, 6J, 6K, and 6L) 

 
Motion approved.  
 
Items 6F, 6K and 6L - Chancellor Pierre provided brief comments on each and mentioned he is available 
for any questions.  There were none.   
 
Item 6J – Dr. Belton mentioned his request for consideration to launch an education awareness campaign 
to provide the stakeholders of this state with sufficient information that would enable them to make an 
informed decision about their health, particularly as it relates to the COVID- 19 virus.  He introduced the 
individuals who are on the team that will represent the university and provide additional information and 
comments.  Brief presentation on the curriculum were provided by team members, Mr. Alfred Harrell – 
SUS Foundation and Dr. Sandra Brown – Dean, College of Nursing and Allied Health.   Dr. Rani Whitfield 
is also on the team, he provided information on the vaccination. He encouraged everyone to become a part 
of the initiative. Chairman Rutledge “thanked the team for responding positively to the appeal.”  Dr. Belton 
thanked Chairman Rutledge and the team for their leadership.  Dr. Leroy Davis commented on he and his 
family receiving the vaccination.  He spoke about the African American community having trouble 
receiving the vaccination.  He asked Southern University to get access to the vaccine.  There were no 
additional comments.  Chairman Rutledge mentioned to Dr. Brown and Dr. Whitfield that Ms. Reeves can 
be impactful as well with her work at Ochsner health system.  Chairman Rutledge requested a report in the 
next 60 – 90 days from the team which detail how many people are actually taking the vaccine after being 
educated.   

 
F. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) between the Acadiana Planning 

Commission, Inc. (APC) and the Southern University Law Center to Promote Economic 
Development Opportunities and Resiliency for Small Business (SULC) 

 



3 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 

G. Request Approval to Adjust the Tuition for the Executive PhD Program in Public Policy Effective Fall 
2021 Cohort (SUBR) 

 
H. Request to Approval of Revised Endowment Policy for Southern University at Baton Rouge (SUBR) 
 
I. Request Approval of Graduate Council Policy for Southern University at Baton Rouge (SUBR) 

 
J. Request Approval of Management Agreement of Black Health, a Statewide Initiative Related to 

COVID-19 Vaccine Education with Southern University System Foundation and Southern 
University A & M College (SUBR) 
 

K. Request Approval of MOU between LexisNexis Rule of Law Foundation and the Southern 
University Law Center to provide Cooperative Opportunities for Global Advancement (SULC) 

 
L. Request Approval of Proposed Amendment to the Southern University Law Center’s Mission 

Statement (SULC) 
 
M. Request Approval of SUSLA Market Salary Adjustments (SUSLA) 

 

Chairman Atty Rutledge  mentioned item 6M is a return item from last meeting.  He thanked Mr. Sam 
Gilliam and others who did a lot of work on this item in the interim period between today and our last 
meeting.  He believe Dr. Ellis did a very good job of justifying the reason behind the decisions made on 
this item. He recognized Dr. Rodney Ellis for any additional comments.  Dr. Ellis thanked Mr. Sam Gilliam 
and others and he hope he was able to provide all information to satisfy their questions.  Mr. Sam Gilliam 
commended Dr. Ellis for his cooperative spirit and making sure he provided the representation.  

   

1. Devonye Brown Director of Outcomes Assessment 
and Quality Management 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$60,027.00 State 

2. JoAnn Brown Dean & Associate Prof of Allied 
Health 

Additional Responsibilities 
 (SUSLA) 

$74,390.50 State 

3. Stephanie Graham Director of Grants and Sponsored 
Programs 

Additional Responsibilities  
(SUSLA) 

$71,300.00  State 
 

4. Barry Hester  Dean of BSTEM & Prof of Chemistry 
Additional responsibilities 

 (SUSLA) 

$69,455.50 State 

5. Leslie R. McClellon Chief of Staff and Executive Director 
for Strategic Initiatives 

Title Change 
(SUSLA) 

$88,248.00 State 

6. Lonnie McCray Dean Arts, Humanities, Social 
Science & Education 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUSLA) 

$61, 651.25 State 



4 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 

7. Veloria Nanze Director of Accounting 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$61,200.00 State 

8. Jane O’Riley Library Director 
Additional responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$61,405.00 State 

 
There was a motion by Ms. Reeves and second by Mr. Myron Lawson to approve in global (action items 
6N – 6O) 

 
Motion approved. 

N. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000  
Associated with the Title III Program (SUBR) 

  
1. Carmela Bethley Associate Director & Budget Manager 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUBR) 

$70,200.00 Federal 
Title III 

2. Norma Frank Ofc Sponsored Programs-Executive Director 
Title Change 

(SUBR) 

$82,000.00 Federal 
Title III 

3. ValaRay Irvin Executive Director & Senior Psychologist 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUBR) 

$95,960.00 Federal 
Title III 

4. Huey K. Lawson Director Title III 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUBR) 

$123,600.00 Federal 
Title III 

5. Kresten Pitcher Resource and Project Manager 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUBR) 

$62,640.00 Federal 
Title III 

 
 
  O.  Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

1. Shawn Charles Associate VC for Administration and Finance & 
University Comptroller 

New Appointment 
(SUNO) 

$90,000.00 State 

2. Marlon Ford Research Assistant Professor and Urban 
Agricultural Specialist 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUAREC) 

$75,000.00 Federal 

3. Teresa Hardee Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance 
Permanent Appointment 

(SUNO) 

No Change State 

4. Eurmon Hervey Interim Associate Vice-Chancellor of Academic Affairs 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$85,000.00 State 

5. LaKeeshia Lusk Communications Coordinator 
Salary Adjustment 

(SUAREC) 

$65,000.00 State 



5 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 

6. Sanjay Palle Network Admin/Web Administrator 
Salary Adjustment 

(SUAREC) 

$70,000.00 State 

7. Christopher Rogers Deputy CIO-Client Services 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUAREC) 

$90,000.00 State 

8. Bobbie Shujaa SUBR LIGO Program Coordinator 
Office of Sponsored Programs 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUBR) 

$65,400.00 Federal 

9. Derrick Warren Interim Associate Dean / MBA Director 
Interim Appointment 

(SUBR) 

$120,000.00 State 

10. Ada Womack-Bell Director  
LA Small Business Development Center 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUBR) 

$88,500.00 Federal 

 

P. Resolutions 

Dr. Katara Williams, Chief of Staff read resolutions and commendations for the following:   

• Dr. Mary Alice Gray Darby  
• Mr. Jerry Morris Fultz 
• Mr. Donald Delandro 
• Mr. Lee Andrew Haynes 
• Dr. Jaswant Rai Jindia  
• Attorney Ed Larvadai  n, Jr. 
• Mr. Clarence Stewart 
• Ms. Joyce Marie Huntsberry Turnley  

There were additions: 

• Angelo Corceone – SULC Student – Passed away on February 8, 2021 
• Mr. Lonnie Hewitt – SU graduate – School of Architecture – Hewitt-Washington & 

Associates – passed away on January 25, 2021. 

Commendations: 

• Crystal Brumfield – SU graduate – Louisiana Native – has been recently named by 
President Biden as the chief acquisition officer and associate administrator for government 
wide policy at the GSA in Washington.   

Upon Motion from Dr. Leon Tarver to approve the read resolutions and commendations with the 
additions and Mrs. Ann Smith second the motion.   

Motion Approved. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 



6 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 
Dr. Belton introduced everyone that were presenting Items 9 A-E. 

 

A. Technology Update  
An overview of  Technology for Southern University system was provided by Dr. Gabriel Fagbeyiro. 
(Entire Transcribed Minutes in File)  Dr. Fagbeyiro thanked the board for the opportunity to provide 
highlights on technology and asked if there were any questions.  Mr. Sam Gilliam had questions in reference 
to NOLA being the only state that does not have the fiber optic network. Dr. Fagbeyiro responded.  
Chairman Rutledge thanked Dr. Fagbeyiro for his presentation.  
   

B. SUS Online Learning Update 
An update was provided by Atty Tracy Barley.  Atty Barley thanked the board for the opportunity to update 
them today.  She had a short presentation.  She concluded her report and asked if there were any questions 
or concerns.  There were none.  Chairman Rutledge thanked Atty Barley for her presentation.   
 

C. Medical Marijuana Update 
An update was provided by Dr. McMeans who introduced Dr. Jana Snowden.  Dr. Snowden made a 
presentation. She discussed the partnership with Alera; the products – there are a total of 11 products.  The 
vape pen has approved and coming soon.  She discussed the Sales Summary and showed before and after 
pictures of the new facility which has been restored.   Chairman Rutledge questioned the sales summary 
which Dr. Snowden responded.  Dr. Whitfield asked if the board members could tour the facility.  Dr.  
Snowden says “yes the members can tour, she requested the member to call to schedule the tour to prevent 
social distance.” She mentioned she will work with Atty Blache.  There was discussion around physicians 
writing prescriptions for patients and healthcare response.  Dr. Whitfield responded that these products will 
not be covered, cash is required and they are not expensive.  Chairman Rutledge thanked Dr. McMeans and 
Dr. Snowden for their presentation. 
 

D. SUBR College of Education Update 
An update of the SUBR College of Education was provided by Dr. VerJanis A. Peoples. Dr. Peoples had a 
power point presentation which provided information on the mission of the college, the admission 
requirements, completion requirements, certification information, accreditation information, etc.  She 
concluded her presentation and asked if there were any questions or comments.  Chairman Rutledge thanked 
Dr. Peoples for the presentation.  Mrs. Ann Smith commended Dr. Peoples on the excellent presentation.  
She commented on the passing rate and made suggestions and commented on scholarships and funding for 
students entering the college.  There were no additional comments.   
 

E.    Finance Update 
       1.  Interim Financial Reports 
The Financial report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 as of January 31, 2021 was provided by 
Mr. McClinton for all campuses. He mentioned “the detailed information is provided in the board 
packet for each campus.  Based on the information provided that we have provided on the statement 
for the spring semester revenue will change because the campuses are continuing to register 
students as of January 31 so we are projecting revenue and we will be able to provide actuals at the 
meeting next month.” Mr. McClinton mentioned he had reviewed the statements from each of the 
campuses and had conversation with each campus CFO and they all have made the appropriate 



7 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 12, 2021 
 

adjustments in order to end up with a balanced budget for each campus.” Mr. McClinton will 
provide updates next month.  That concludes his report.  He addressed questions.  There were no 
questions but Mr. Sam Gilliam had a comment.  Mr. Sam Gilliam requested a copy of the Interim 
Financial Report. Ms. Taylor-Jarrell informed the board members that she will email the financial 
report to all board members again.  
Mr. Sam Gilliam and Chairman Atty Domoine Rutledge thanked Mr. McClinton for the report and 
Mrs. Taylor-Jarrell for emailing the documents.   
 
F.    Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS) 
Dr. Belton introduced Mr. Eli Guillory who will give the project updates.  Mr. Eli Guillory 
mentioned the detail and comprehensive list of projects for each campus is included in the packet. 
(refer to board packet for documentation) He gave brief description of the construction on the 
campuses and their expected completion dates.  He concluded by mentioning, “he is looking 
forward to additional improvements for all campuses and this concludes his report.”  He asked if 
there were any questions or comments?  There were none.   
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 10:  OTHER BUSINESS 

Chairman Rutledge announced “the Ray Smith Memorial Fund donated another medical mannequin to the 
School of Nursing.  With that donation and the donation from November, it totals to over about $28k.  
Chairman Rutledge thanked Mrs. Ann Smith who has been instrumental in soliciting support from the Ray 
Smith Memorial Fund family members.  Grateful for her support and extend congratulations to Dr. Brown 
and the school of nursing and allied health.”  Chairman Rutledge asked Mrs. Ann Smith if she had any 
comments.  She did not have any comments.  

Chairman Rutledge mentioned “the committee assignments are forthcoming.  He discussed the March board 
meeting is scheduled to be an in person meeting on March 12th in Baton Rouge.  He has heard from a 
number of board members who remain uncomfortable meeting in person.  He mentioned looking at the 
CDC guidelines and working with Dr. Whitfield and in person meeting guidelines working with legal 
counsel.” 

Chairman Rutledge called for any other business or matters to discuss from any of the members.  There 
were none.  Chairman Rutledge called for motion for adjournment.   

 
AGENDA ITEM 11:  ADJOURNMENT 

Ms. Christy Reeves made a motion to adjourn, Mr. Bakari Garvey second the motion. 
Motion Approved.  







OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR-DEAN 
 

“Linking Citizens of Louisiana with Opportunities for Success" 
 

Southern University and A & M College System 

AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER 
and the COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURAL, FAMILY AND CONSUMER SCIENCES 

Ashford O. Williams Hall 

P. O. Box 10010 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

(225) 771-2242 
(225) 771-2861 Fax 

www.suagcenter.com 

 

The Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center is a statewide campus of the Southern University System and provides equal opportunities in programs and 

employment.  Southern University and A & M College, Louisiana parish governing bodies, Louisiana State University, and Unites States Department of Agriculture cooperating. 

 
 
 
February 25, 2021 
 
 
 
Dr. Ray Belton, President 
Southern University System 
4th Floor, J. S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 
Dear President Belton: 
 
As Chancellor of the Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center and Dean of the 
Southern University Agricultural, Family and Consumer Sciences, I am requesting the approval of the 
attached document.  
 

Memorandum of Understanding between SUAREC and the Davis Farm, Inc. 
 
Please let me know if you need further information or have any questions. Thank you for your 
consideration to this request. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Orlando F. McMeans, PhD 
Chancellor-Dean 
 
 
Approval by: 
 
 
__________________________________    _______________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.       Date 
President-Chancellor 
 
 
 



 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Between 
 

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center and   
 

Davis Farm, Incorporated 
 

ON 
A PUBLIC-PRIVATE AGRICULTURAL PARTNERSHIP 

 
 

I.  PARTIES 
 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (hereinafter referred to as “MOU”) is made and entered 

into by and between the Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center 
(hereinafter referred to as “SUAREC”), and Davis Farm, Incorporated (hereinafter referred to as “DF”) 
(collectively referred to as “Parties”).  
SUAREC is one of five campuses in the Southern University System. SUAREC’s agricultural land-grant 
mission is research and extension.  DF’s mission is in the realm of production agriculture that includes 
soybean, wheat, corn, and other crops. DF has a keenly and heightened interest in industrial hemp 
research as an agronomic crop and student experiential learning opportunities in our modern highly 
technological agricultural industry. Agriculture, tourism, and oil and gas are the big 3 industries of 
Louisiana. The parties of SUAREC and DF look forward to this public-private agricultural partnership.    
 
II.  PURPOSE  
 
The purpose of this MOU is to establish a public-private partnership between SUAREC and DF. The 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has research, extension, and teaching components.  

This MOU sets forth the mutual interest in working together of the Parties (DF and SUAREC).  
The Parties intend to collectively promote a strong and viable public-private partnership on agricultural 
activities to include research on industrial hemp, student internship opportunities, and extension outreach 



 2 

activities as a part of this MOU. This MOU sets forth certain agreed upon terms and conditions, which defines 
the relationship between the above-mentioned parties.  
 

This MOU defines in general terms the basis for which the Parties will cooperate. In particular, this MOU is 
intended to:  

• Explore and establish research activities to include industrial hemp, forages, vegetables, small fruits, 
and medicinal plants. 

• Outline the framework for conducting result research and extension demonstrations and/or field days 
and share findings to applicable stakeholders to include, limited resource producers, K-12 youth, and 
college students.   

• Explore internships opportunities for college agricultural students in the use of high technology farm 
machinery, general farm production practices, and agricultural business operations.  

• Provide a select number of internship opportunities for College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer 
Sciences (hereinafter referred to as “CAFCS”) students in assisting the SUAREC Hemp Team 
execute field research trials and extension outreach activities pertaining to this MOU.  

• Provide a select number of CAFCS students with internships for learning and gaining hands on 
experiences in agronomy, profitability, yield, storage, and procurement. 

• Provide CAFCS students with real world experiences in crop management, soil sampling, on-farm 
hemp testing for THC, inventory tracking and delivery, data entry, data analysis, inclusive. 

• Provide students assistance in research farm operations as it relates to using state-of-the art 
agricultural technology, agricultural artificial intelligence (AI), sustainability, inclusive.  

• Provide intern students a forum to present their accomplishments to their peers and faculty via a 
student internship seminar series by the CAFCS and SUAREC. 

• Provide an extension framework for the dissemination of the research findings to appropriate 
stakeholders.  

• Provide the framework for community outreach and engagement focusing on growing industrial 
hemp for either seed or fiber on an agronomic crop farm.   

• Provide for result demonstrations via such modalities as field days, trainings, and workshops. 

 

 



 3 

III.  BACKGROUND 

SUAREC was established in 2001. Its motto is “Linking Citizens with Opportunities for Success.” SUAREC 

is an agricultural land-grant institution with a strong team of highly skilled faculty, research, and staff with 
diverse background in areas such as (1) plant and soil sciences, (2) extension programs, (3) forage 
production, (4) youth programs, (5) family and consumer sciences, and (6) urban forestry and natural 
resources.  

SUAREC is linked with the CAFCS in striving to educate a cadre of students for professional careers in the 
workplace. Concomitantly, the linkage strengthens the CAFCS students’ abilities to grapple with the current 
challenges of a highly technological and globalized workforce; enhance extension outreach activities through 
the dissemination of information and knowledge (basic and applied research) to farmers in rural communities 
in Louisiana and beyond.  

DF is owned and operated by Mr. James E. Davis, Jr. He happens to be the largest black farmer in several 
parishes in the northeast Louisiana, including Concordia & Tensas Parishes. The DF is over 2,000 acres. 
The farm has state-of-the-art farm equipment. The equipment includes several tractors, disks, seeders, 
sprayers, combines, and an 18 wheeler grain transport truck. Mr. James E. Davis, Jr.’s knowledge in farming 
is unparalleled. Crops such as soybean, corn, wheat, and vegetables are grown on DF. DF will be the site 
for the SUAREC and DF public-private partnership. The aforementioned farm experiences of Mr. James E. 
Davis, Jr., the DF soil types, and location are ideal for a cooperative public-private partnership in conducting 
hemp research and outreach activities beyond East Baton Rouge Parish.   

IV.  RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THIS MOU   

A.    The SUAREC shall undertake the following activities:  
1. Developing and implementing strategies outlined in this MOU. 
2. Establishing timeline for research activities at the DF. 
3. Disseminating program activities of this MOU through extension education and field days. 
4. Establishing a timeline for industrial hemp research. 
5. Managing/collecting research data collection, analysis, and technical reports on program 

activities.  
6. Helping identify CAFCS students for internships.  
7. Mobilizing resources to support the identified program activities in this MOU. 



 4 

8. Providing financial resources for the upkeep of the research plots to include materials and 
supplies. 

9. Providing yearly evaluation of efforts from research, extension, and teaching programs 
perspective. 

B.    DF shall undertake the following activities:   

1. Donating for usage, up to 5 acres for research and extension activities in the context of this 
MOU.   

2. Providing site for 1-3 CAFCS student internships as applicable. 
3. Making available farm equipment of DF for the MOU.  
4. Maintaining the necessary state-mandated licences to operate agricultural production at the 

farm.    
5. Supporting the SUAREC team in the implementation of outlined program activities in this MOU.   
6. Serving as SUAREC Research Farm Manager for this MOU. 
7. Providing internship experiences for CAFCS students. 
8. Assisting SUREC in the preparation and establishment of hemp research plots. 

 
9. Assisting SUAREC in the maintenance of hemp research plots. 

 
10. Assisting SUAREC in the harvesting of hemp research plots. 
11. Assisting in the preparing hemp research plots for planting via turning the soil, eradicating 

weeds with herbicides, building growing rows, and applying needed soil fertilizer amendments. 
12. Direct seeding hemp into research plots. 
13. Assisting in maintaining hemp research plots by mowing of alleys surrounding research plots. 
14. Assisting in monitoring and reporting any plant health issues exhibited by hemp plants during 

production season. 
15. Assisting in harvesting hemp research plots for biomass and seed production data analysis. 

 
V.  FUNDING   

This MOU does include the reimbursement of funds between the Parties. Parties understand that all financial 
arrangements between them shall be negotiated and mutually agreed and will depend on the availability of 
funds.  



 5 

Parties may seek funding in support of the program activities as outlined above from internal and external 
sources. However, any funding jointly sought and awarded on behalf of Parties to support the outlined project 
activities shall be administered in accordance with the SUAREC research guidelines. 

VI. LEGAL RELATIONSHIP 

This MOU shall be construed as a statement of purpose to promote a genuine and mutually beneficial 
collaboration between the Parties. Nothing in this MOU shall create any legal relationship between the 
Parties. 

VII. DURATION 

It is the intent of the Parties to enter into this agreement for a period of three (3) years with an automatic 
renewal every 1 year(s) perpetually beginning March 1, 2021, unless either party chooses to opt out of the 

agreement by providing a 30-day written notification before the renewal date. Each party has 30 days to 
cure the breach.  
 
VIII. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
To the extent permitted under Louisiana law, each party to this MOU agrees to hold harmless the 
other party of any injury or damage property.  
 
IX.  ASSIGNMENT 
 
No party may assign their interest in this MOU without the written permission of the other party. 

 
X.  NON-BINDING 
 

This MOU is intended only as a reflection of the intention of the parties and neither this MOU nor its 
acceptance shall constitute or create any legally binding or enforceable obligation on any party, except with 
regards to Confidentiality, Closing or Termination, governing Law and the miscellaneous provisions set forth 

below in XII. 
XI. MISCELLANEOUS 
This MOU encompasses the entire understanding between Parties herein and supersedes all previous 
agreements, if any, between the Parties concerning the same or substantially similar subject matter. This 
MOU may be amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified only in a writing signed by duly authorized 
representatives of each Party. 



 6 

 
XII.   EFFECTIVE DATE AND SIGNATURES 

This MOU shall be effective upon the signature of authorized officials/parties.  It shall be in force from 
March 1, 2021 to February 28, 2024. This MOU has been drawn up in two (2) original copies with each 
Party receiving one duly signed copy hereof. Parties A (SUAREC) and B (Davis Farm) indicate agreement 
with this MOU by their signatures. 

The Participants in this MOU designate the following as points of contact for collaboratively administering 
the activities to be conducted under this MOU:  

Key Points of Contacts 
For SUAREC:  
Contact Person(s):                             Dr. C. Reuben Walker and Dr. Janana Snowden  
Address:                                             Fisher Hall, Rm. 118 
                                                           Southern University and A & M College           
                                                           Baton Rouge, LA 70813  
                                                                          
Telephone:                                         225-771-3206 (0)        
Cell Phone:                                        337-344-8634 (cp)  
Fax:                                                    225-771-5771  
Email:                                                 calvin_walker@suagcenter.com 
   janana_snowden@suagcenter.com 
                                                            
         
For DF: 
Contact Person(s):                             Mr. James E. Davis, Jr.  
Address:                                             119 Lynwood Drive 
                                                           Ferriday, LA 71334.   
Cell Phone:                                         318-758-0198 (cp)  
Email:                                                 Upcominangler@gmail.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF THE PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
                                              
 

mailto:calvin_walker@suagcenter.com
mailto:janana_snowden@suagcenter.com
mailto:Upcominangler@gmail.com


 7 

 
APPROVALS 

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties authorized representatives have affixed their signatures on this MOU 
on ________________________________ and witnesses there of.   
                          (Month/Day/Year)  
  
 
        
__________________________________________                ________________________________ 
Orlando F. McMeans, Ph.D.     James E. Davis, Jr. 
Chancellor-Dean      Owner 
SUAREC & CAFCS      Davis Farm, Incorporated  
Southern University and A & M College    119 Lynwood Drive 
Fisher Hall, Room 102      Ferriday, LA 71334 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 
 
 

WITNESSES 
 
 
______________________________                                    ___________________________________ 
SUAREC Witness #1                                                               DF Witness #1                                       
 
 
____________________________                                         ___________________________________ 
SUAREC Witness #2                                                               DF Witness #2 



 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
  

February 27, 2021 

 
Dr. Ray L. Belton 
President - Chancellor 
Southern University System 
4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Bldg.  
Baton Rouge, LA 70813  
 
Dear Dr. Belton: 
 
Please find a Letter of Intent that describes the details of a new Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) 
program that Southern University at New Orleans desires to begin in the 2022-2023 academic year.   
 
The letter describes the rich background of the University and how the program aligns with the mission 
to produce graduates who represent the diversity of our community and who will earn degrees that 
provide them with an upwardly mobile career path and a life of service to the citizens of Louisiana.  
 
The letter also addresses the fact that there is a shortage of nurses in the state and nation, and that 
many qualified applicants to existing BSN programs are turned away each year due to current programs 
being at capacity.   In addition, it is well documented that there is also a shortage of nurses of color 
within the nursing workforce which limits the culturally sensitive nursing care that society needs.  SUNO 
is well positioned to attract a diverse student body.   
 
We have carefully planned the resources needed to deliver a quality program and have a plan to attract 
experienced and well qualified faculty to implement the program.   In addition, we have the support of 
administrators at New Orleans East and Children’s Hospital of New Orleans to partner with us to 
welcome our students to their agencies for their clinical instruction hours.  The New Orleans Black 
Nurses Association has also declared their support for the program and are eager to have new nurses of 
color enter our BSN program and the workforce.   
 
We are eager to add this program to our Bachelor of Science offerings, which we think will lead to 
increased enrollment.   But we are especially excited to make a much needed contribution to our 
community of students, New Orleans, and the state of Louisiana.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA  70126 
Phone: (504) 286-5311 Fax: (504) 286-5000 

www.suno.edu 

Office of the Chancellor                                              
 



 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

We ask your support and the approval of the Board of Supervisors for the endeavor, and look forward to 
the opportunity to join the other universities in Louisiana who are working to alleviate the nursing 
shortage.   
 
 
With kind regards, 

 
James H. Ammons, Jr. PhD 
Executive Vice President-Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 
 
 
APPROVED:       ____________________________________ 
  Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
                             President-Chancellor 
                             Southern University and A&M College System 
 
 



1 of 20 
 

LETTER OF INTENT to DEVELOP a NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAM [Jan2018] 

General Information Date:  March 12, 2021 

Institution: 

Southern University at New Orleans 

Requested CIP, Designation, Subject/Title: 

51.1601 Bachelor of Science in Nursing  

 

 

1. Program Objectives and Content 
Describe the program concept: purpose and objectives; basic structure and components/ 
concentrations; etc. Include the draft curriculum. 
 
Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) seeks approval to develop a new Bachelor of Science in 
Nursing program (BSN) to better serve its community. SUNO was founded in 1956 and opened in 1959 in  
eastern New Orleans in historic Pontchartrain Park, a middle-class community of largely African 
Americans. For over sixty years, SUNO has been a beacon of hope for traditional and nontraditional 
students who are mostly minority and from limited resource families. 

The purpose of the BSN program is to educate additional nurses to meet the health care needs of the 
population of New Orleans and the State while furthering the mission of SUNO. According to published 
statistics which will be explained in detail in the Need section below, Louisiana is experiencing a 
shortage of nurses. In addition, the current nursing workforce needs additional nurses of color to 
provide culturally sensitive health care. SUNO’s mission as one of America’s Historically Black Colleges 
and Universities (HBCUs) has long been to deliver quality education programs and to serve a diverse 
population. SUNO’s mission states its commitment to: “empower and promote the upward mobility of 
diverse populations of traditional and nontraditional students through quality academic programs, 
teaching, research, and service to achieve excellence in higher education using various teaching and 
learning modalities”. (SUNO catalog 2018-20, p 16.) 

This new program will be housed as a department in the College of Arts and Sciences where it will join 
the Departments of Arts & Humanities, Social Sciences, Natural Sciences and three undergraduate 
programs of Forensic Science, Health Information Management Systems, and General Studies. 

The BSN will be structured according to the university requirements for Bachelor of Science degrees 
which includes completing 120 credit hours, 220 quality points, and meeting residence and community 
service-learning requirements. In addition, it will meet SUNO’s 39 credit hours of general education 
requirements, plus an additional 21 credits of general education courses in the physical and psycho- 
social sciences to support the knowledge and competencies that will be developed as students complete 
the 60-credit nursing curriculum. 

SUNO’s goals for all students who complete a bachelor’s degree as stated in its current catalog, p. 95, 
are to: 

 communicate effectively in oral and written English; 

 read with comprehension; 

 reason abstractly and think critically; 

 understand numerical data and statistics; 

 understand the scientific method; 

 be familiar with key technological and informational applications; 

 learn independently; 



2 of 20 
 

 recognize and appreciate cultural diversity; 

 understand the nature and value of the fine and performing arts; 

 develop a personal value system while retaining a tolerance for others; and 

 understand the American political and economic system 
 
The program outcomes for this new BSN program align with these SUNO goals and are stated as follows: 
At the conclusion of the program students will be able to: 

 Plan and implement nursing care using the foundation of liberal education, biological & 
behavioral sciences, humanities and nursing science. 

 Communicate and collaborate effectively within the health care team using 
interpersonal, professional and information technology skills. 

 Utilize the scientific method, critical thinking, problem solving and evidenced based 
practice concepts in planning and delivering nursing care. 

 Demonstrate the knowledge and use of professional standards, ethical values, and 
legal standards in safe and effective nursing practice 

 Plan and deliver care with consideration of client values, customs, culture, religion and/beliefs. 

 Apply leadership and management concepts, skills and decision making into nursing practice. 

 Demonstrate basic understanding of the role of the nurse in health promotion, 
disease/injury prevention and population health across the lifespan. 

 Demonstrate a basic understanding of system influences on patient safety and nursing 
practice including health care policy, regulation, resource management, technology, 
economics, and politics. 

 

These program outcomes have been developed to ensure graduates also meet the “Essentials of 
Baccalaureate Education for Professional Nursing” (2008), published by the American Association of 
Colleges of Nursing (AACN). These statements are the foundational principles required of all BSN 
graduates by the Council of Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE). CCNE is the national professional 
nursing accrediting agency from whom SUNO will seek accreditation for this program.  The nine 
Essentials are: 

 Essential I: Liberal Education for Baccalaureate Generalist Nursing Practice (A solid base in 
liberal 
education provides the cornerstone for the practice and education of nurses.) 

 Essential II: Basic Organizational and Systems Leadership for Quality Care and Patient 
Safety (Knowledge and skills in leadership, quality improvement, and patient safety are 
necessary to provide high quality health care.) 

 Essential III: Scholarship for Evidence Based Practice (Professional nursing practice is 
grounded in the translation of current evidence into one’s practice.) 

 Essential IV: Information Management and Application of Patient Care Technology (Knowledge 
and skills in information management and patient care technology are critical in the 
delivery of quality patient care.) 

 Essential V: Health Care Policy, Finance, and Regulatory Environments (Healthcare policies, 
including financial and regulatory, directly and indirectly influence the nature and 
functioning of the healthcare system and thereby are important considerations in 
professional nursing practice.) 

 Essential VI: Inter-professional Communication and Collaboration for Improving Patient 
Health Outcomes (Communication and collaboration among healthcare professionals are 



3 of 20 
 

critical to delivering high quality and safe patient care.) 

 Essential VII: Clinical Prevention and Population Health (Health promotion and disease 
prevention at the individual and population level are necessary to improve population 
health and are important components of baccalaureate generalist nursing practice.) 

 Essential VIII: Professionalism and Professional Values (Professionalism and the inherent 
values of altruism, autonomy, human dignity, integrity, and social justice are fundamental 
to the discipline of nursing.) 

 Essential IX: Baccalaureate Generalist Nursing Practice (The baccalaureate graduate 
nurse is prepared to practice with patients, including individuals, families, groups, 
communities, and populations across lifespan and across the continuum of healthcare 
environments. The baccalaureate graduate understands and respects the variations of 
care, the increased complexity, and the increased use of healthcare resources inherent 
in caring for patients.) 
 

To ensure these program outcomes are met, the first year of the program will include basic liberal arts 
and science courses, two nursing courses will be introduced in the second year and the third and fourth 
year will consist primarily of nursing courses. A working draft of the curriculum appears below. 

 

Semester 1 Semester 2 

SENL 101N English Comp I 3 SENL 102N English Comp II 3 

MATH 151 College Algebra 3 FIAR 101 Intro to Art or MUSC 101 3 

*BIOL110N/LN Fundamentals of Biology for Nurses 4 SSOC 201N Introduction to Sociology 3 

History of US 210 OR 220 3 SPSY 201 General Psychology 3 

JRDV 111 College Survival Skills 1 CISP 164 Computer Productivity Applications 3 

JRDV 111A Freshmen Assembly 0  

14 15 

Semester 3 Semester 4 

SCHE 132N7LN Gen Chem 4 
SBIO 220/LN Pathogenic Microbiology & 
Immunology 4 

SMAT 130N Elementary Statistics 3 Psych340 Developmental Psychology 3 

SCOM 101N Intro to Human Comm 3 
*Nur 202 Nur Assessment Theory 2 
*Nur 202C Clinical Assessment Skills 2 

*Nu 201 Intro to Nursing Theory 2 
*Nu 201C Nursing Clinical Skills 1 

SBIO 222N&LN Hum Anat & Phys II 4 

SBIO 221& LN Hum Anat & Phys I 4  

17 15 



4 of 20 
 

Semester 5 Semester 6 

*Nur 301 Pharmacology in Nursing 3 Phil 222  Intro to Ethics 3 

*Nur 303 Pathophys in Nursing 2  

*Nur 305 Nur with Adults Theory 2 
*Nur 305C Nur Prac with Adults 2 

*Nur 306 Childrearing Family Nur Theory  2 
Nur 306C Nur Prac with Childrearing Fam 2 

*Nur 304 Childbearing Family Nur Theory 2 
*Nur 304C Nur Prac with Childbearing Family 2 

*Nur 308 Mental Health Nur Theory 2 
Nur 308C Mental Health Nur Prac 2 

*Nur 307 Culture and Nursing 3 xxx Eng Literature (core req) 3 

16 14 

Semester 7 Semester 8 

*Nur 401 Comm Hlt Nur Theory 3 
*Nur 401C Fam/Comm Hlth Prac 3 

*Nur 402 Ldshp/Mgmt Theory 2 
*Nur 402C Ldshp/Mgmt Prac 2 

*Nur 403 Nur in Acute Care 3 
*Nur 403C Nur in Acute Care Prac 3 *Nur 404 Senior Seminar 2 

*Nur 405 Research & Ev Based Prac 3 
*Nur 406C Professional Practicum 6 

 
*Nur 408 NCLEX Preparedness 2 

15 14 

 Total 62  Total 58 

 
Grand Total 62 + 58 = 120 

General Ed Core Courses: Required Courses to Support Major: 

English Comp I & 2 6 Coll Survival 1 

College Math & Stats 6 Computer Prod App 3 

A & P I & II and Chem 9 Micro 4 

Psych and Soc 201 6 Dev Psych 3 

Art or Music 3 New Biology Course 4 

Hist, Communication, Lit 9 Ethics 3 

 
Bio Lab/A&P Lab/Chem Lab 3 

 Total Core Req: 39  Total Support: 21 

  

*asterisk denotes a new course Core (39) + Support (21) + Nur (60) = 120 



5 of 20 
 

The courses are planned to provide general education and nursing courses that complement each other 
to ensure students graduate as competent caring novice professional caregivers. Most nursing courses 
have a clinical companion course that will develop their care giving skills with a defined patient 
population. This will help them learn the common and unique needs associated with different life 
stages and educate them to be a generalist who can function safely and effectively in multiple settings. 
Each class room credit will carry one contact hour and each clinical course credit will carry three contact 
hours; therefore, a course that has two hours of classroom credit will be offered with a clinical 
component of the course that will include 2 credits but 6 contact hours of clinical practice in the Nursing 
skills lab, the Nursing Simulation Lab, or in the clinical area with individuals, families, or communities to 
deliver curative, rehabilitative, or preventative wellness care. 

Some general education courses are available through on-line modalities which have become more 
available to meet student needs during the recent pandemic restrictions. The plan is for nursing courses 
to be delivered on site and all clinical courses will be delivered in small groups and through direct 
instruction and supervision of a faculty member in a skill building or simulated laboratory setting and 
later in the clinical setting (limited to 10 per group by LSBN rules). Clinical settings will include hospitals, 
long-term care/rehabilitation agencies, clinics, home care and public health settings. 

All general education courses are currently offered at SUNO by highly qualified faculty.  A list of the 
current SUNO faculty who are likely to teach required general education courses in the BSN program is 
found in the following table: 

 

Name Highest Degree Degree Granting Institution 

Abdul-Salaam, Connie M.A. History University of Northern Iowa 

Azzarello, Robert Ph.D. English City University of New York 

Bashir, Atteia Ph.D. Human Toxicology 
Maastricht University, The 
Netherlands 

Carter, Mary M.S. Teaching Mathematics Loyola University 

Clement, Christian 
Ph.D. Microbiology and 
Immunology 

University of Illinois 

Conteh, Nabie Ph.D. CIS University of Maryland 

Debra Keelen M.A. Teacher Education Math Xavier University 

Deneen, Lewis 
Ph.D. Counseling & Human 
Development 

 

Clark Atlanta University 

Ekaidi, Ibrahim M.D. University of Criova, Romania 

Eweni, Samuel M.S. CIS Southern University – Baton Rouge 

Foy, Kenneth 
Ph.D. - DMIN Doctor of 
Ministry Pastoral Counseling 

 

NO Baptist Theological Seminary 

Heath, Panagiota “Penny” Ph.D. Math Education University of New Orleans 

Johnson, Carl Ph.D. Chemistry University of Alabama 



6 of 20 
 

Jones, Warren Ph.D. Philosophy New Orleans Baptist Seminary 

 

Kambhampati, Murty 
Ph.D. Environmental Science 
Ph.D. Ecology 

Jackson State University 
Andhra University, India 

King, Heon Ph.D. Number Theory Louisiana State University 

Kwun, Obyung Ph.D. CIS University of Mississippi 

Lenus, Jack Jr. Ph.D. History University of Pittsburgh 

 

Marinov, Tchavdar 
Ph.D. Mathematics 
Ph.D. Applied Mathematics 

University of LA, 
Bulgarian Academy of Science 

Marshall, Douglas, Ph.D. English Duquesne University 

Mims-Devezin, Lisa Ph.D. Science and Math Education Southern University – Baton Rouge 

Oaks, Gary M.F.A. Louisiana State University 

Obih, John-Clifford Ph.D. Physiology University of Ibadan, Nigeria 

Odynocki, Boris Ph.D. Sociology City University of New York 

Olubadewo, Joseph Ph.D. Pharmacology Vanderbilt University 

Omojola, Joe Ph.D. Nuclear Engineering University of Arizona 

Ramirez, Cynthia M.F.A University of NO 

 

Singleton, Cynthia 
Ph.D. Science and Math Education 

 

Southern University – Baton Rouge 

Sisay, Nebiat Ph. D. Radiochemistry University of Missouri 

 

Tietzel, Illya 
 

Ph.D. Immunology & Genetics 
Johannes Gutenberg U Mainz 
Germany 

Torregano, Michael Dr. of Musical Arts, Boston University 

Xiongya, Gao Ph.D. English Ball State University 

Yanjun, Yu Ph.D. CIS Washington State University 

 

Zhen, Yi 
 

Ph. D. Theoretical Physics 
Modern Physics Institute Xi’an 
China 



7 of 20 
 

All Nursing courses will be delivered by Nursing faculty who will be hired when the program has 
earned the appropriate approvals from the Board of Regents and the Louisiana State Board of 
Nursing (LSBN). The Program Director will be an experienced nurse educator administrator with an 
earned nursing degree and an earned doctorate in Nursing or a related field. The Nursing faculty 
will be experienced nursing educators who have a Masters in Nursing with a doctorate preferred as 
required by the LSBN and CCNE. Depending on experience and credentials faculty will likely be 
hired at the Assistant Professor level for the Tenure Track and will be required to meet role 
expectations for rank as described in the SUNO Faculty Handbook which requires 12 credit hours of 
teaching per semester, engage in university and community service and continue their professional 
growth. 

SUNO will search locally for a well-qualified experienced program director and the director will 
search for two well qualified nursing faculty members. If necessary, we will advertise beyond the 
local/regional area in the Chronicle of Education and the Journal of the Black Nurses Association as 
well as on appropriate on-line nation sites. 

Our first choice will be a director who is a current seasoned assistant administrator/dean/director/ 
coordinator who will be attracted to the opportunity to be the founding director of a new BSN 
program and committed to educating students of color to increase diversity in the nursing 
workforce. 

During the first year the Director/Faculty team will work to build the administrative and academic 
infrastructure as required by the Louisiana State Board of Nursing (LSBN). Near the conclusion of 
that year a LSBN site visit must be scheduled to ascertain if the program has been well developed 
and has earned initial approval and is ready to admit students. 

About 30 qualified students will be admitted who show qualities that predict success including 1) 
having completed all of the first-year curriculum requirements and are in good academic standing, 
have written an essay to reflect their interest and reasons for choosing nursing as a major and other 
criteria to be developed by the Director and program faculty. The results from a recent “interest in 
the program” survey suggest that a pool of 30 students who will have met freshman year 
requirements is a reasonable goal. If these events occur as planned the cohort will be admitted in 
the fall of 2022 semester and will graduate in the spring of 2025. 

During the 2023/24 academic year the program will apply for “new applicant” status for 
accreditation to CCNE. New applicant status requires the program request a site visit within two 
years. A site visit will be requested during the Spring 2025 semester so that the first graduates of 
the program will have the benefit of graduating from a CCNE accredited program which carries 
some benefits including admission to graduate school and employment at federal agencies. 

Upon graduation students must pass the National Council Licensure Exam (NCLEX) to satisfy the 
National Board of Nursing and the LSBN that the graduate has the ability to begin to practice safely 
as a registered nurse (RN). The test measures knowledge in four broad areas including 1) 
maintaining a safe and effective care environment, 2) providing health promotion & maintenance, 
and knowledge of 3) Psychosocial integrity, & 4) Physiological integrity. Applicants will not be able 
to practice until they achieve a passing grade on NCLEX. 

The LSBN will also do a site visit of the program when the first cohort has graduated and taken 
their NCLEX exams and if all criteria are met and at least 80% of the graduates in the cohort pass 
the NCLEX the program will earn final approval from the LSBN. 

 



8 of 20 
 

Best Case Time Line for Program Milestones to Final Approval: 
Approval by SUS BOS March 2021 
Approval by LA Board of Regents June 2021 
Approval by LSBN August 2021 
Program Director Hired August 2021 
PD Director Hires Faculty Dec/Jan 2022 
Team Develops Program April 2022 
LSBN Completes Site Visit Approves Program to Admit Students June 2022 
First Cohort Students Admitted August 2022 
Second Cohort Students Admitted August 2023 
Requests New Applicant Status of CCNE Spring 2024 
Third Cohort Admitted August 2024 
CCNE Site Visit Spring 2025 
First Cohort Graduates May 2025 
First Cohorts Takes NCLEX Summer/Fall 2025 
LSBN Site Visit Fall 2025 
Program Earns Final LSBN Approval Fall 2025 

 
2. Need 

Outline how this program is essential for the wellbeing of the state/region/academy (e.g., 
accreditation, contribution to economic development; related to current or evolving needs within 
state or region). Cite data to support need: employment projections; supply/demand data 
appropriate to the discipline and degree level. Also, identify similar programs in the state and explain 
why the intended one should not be perceived as unnecessary duplication. 

Nurses are a profession in demand and statistical projections say the demand will increase well into the 
future. It is also a profession that is highly valued by society as evidenced by the many reports surfacing 
during the COViD-19 pandemic citing the outstanding service of nurses. The Bureau of Labor and 
Statistics (BLS) notes that employment of nurses in the US is projected to grow much faster than the 
average for all occupations through 2028. In 2018 there were 3,059,800 Registered Nurses (RNs) 
employed in the US and the BLS projects that number will grow to 3,431,300 needed by 2028. This 12 
per cent growth rate far exceeds the 5 per cent growth projected for all occupations. The Louisiana 
Workforce Commission star level for Registered Nurse rating is 5 Stars as noted at 
http://www.laworks.net/ on February 23, 2021. 

Need to increase the number of nurses in the Louisiana Workforce 

Louisiana statistics also reflect a current nursing shortage and continued shortfall into the future. 
Findings in a recent report entitled “Louisiana’s 2019 Nursing Workforce Demand Report” published by 
the Louisiana State Board of Nursing (LSBN), Center of Nursing (August 2020) note that the number of 
new RNs do not meet the estimated demand and in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the shortage will 
be exponentially increased as we move into the future. For example, healthcare facilities surveyed 
reported that although there are 38,787 nurses employed, agencies surveyed reported that there are 
1,948 vacant positions that are not filled within the state. 

The majority of the RNs employed in all of the healthcare industries surveyed were prepared at the 
associate and baccalaureate level. The majority of nurses employed in hospitals, hospice, ambulatory 
surgery centers and public health agencies are baccalaureate prepared nurses. 

One of the major recommendations of the report was to increase the capacity of nursing programs to 

http://www.laworks.net/


9 of 20 
 

ensure that there will be a continuous pipeline of new RNs available to meet the ongoing demand for 
nurses in Louisiana. 

Similar statistics are reported by the Louisiana Workforce Commission in the “Long-term occupational 
projections for all occupations to 2026”. Their findings, starting in 2016, show that 44,000 RNs were in 
the workforce and project that by 2026 Louisiana will need 50,700. They also project that the annual 
new growth of RNs will be 610 per year by 2026 but there will be annual openings of 3,010 positions. 

These national and state-based reports provide clear evidence of the need for additional nurse supply in 
Louisiana to meet the growing demand for Registered Nurses. 

Need to increase the number of educational opportunities for qualified students. 

Statistics reported by the LSBN in their Nursing Education Capacity in Louisiana report (2019) show that 
although there is a nursing shortage, many students who are qualified and who wish to obtain the RN 
education are not able to be accommodated by the current nursing school programs. One of the major 
findings noted states that in the 2018/19 academic year only 69% of the 4889 qualified applicants who 
applied to nursing programs were admitted, leaving about 1,499 denied admission and 663 were 
applicants to BSN programs. In fact, this pattern of current schools being unable to admit all qualified 
applicants has been consistent for at least the last five years with between 506 and 668 qualified 
applicants being denied admission to BSN programs each year since 2015. 

The following list shows the current BSN programs in Louisiana as of 2018/19: 

 Chamberlain University 

 Dillard University 

 Franciscan Missionaries of Our Lady University (Formerly Our Lady of the Lake) 

 Grambling State University 

 Herzing University 

 Louisiana College 

 Loyola University 

 LSU Health Sciences Center 

 McNeese State University 

 Nicholls State University 

 Northwestern State University of Louisiana 

 Southeastern Louisiana University 

 Southern University and A&M College 

 University of Holy Cross 

 University of Louisiana Lafayette 

 University of Louisiana Monroe 

 William Carey University 

These programs offer a variety of options to students in Louisiana and other states to earn a BSN degree 
but most report they are at capacity and turn away qualified students each year. Further, a BSN 



10 of 20 
 

program at SUNO would be the only school in the city of New Orleans that is a public HBCU with 
comparatively low tuition that will offer opportunity to low-income students in a largely African 
American community. Graduates from that geographical area are likely to have community ties and will 
likely stay in the area to serve the New Orleans community. 

Nursing Deans and Directors cited several reasons for not being able to admit additional students. The 
top reasons cited in the 2019 Nursing Education Capacity report were: 

1. Budgeted faculty positions not available 

2. Faculty Salaries not competitive 

3. Qualified faculty not available 

4. Classroom space not available 

They also reported their concern that admitting additional students could cause difficulty in finding 
enough clinical sites to accommodate clinical rotations in the health care agencies that welcome their 
students each semester. 

To deal successfully with these challenges SUNO has the full support of administration to approve an 
adequate number of faculty positions to serve 30 students each year for the first three cohorts and 
beyond. In addition, a bi-annual publication of the American Association of Colleges of Nursing shows 
the mean nurse educator salary for BSN level programs in LA to be about $65,000 for Assistant 
Professors with an MSN degree. SUNO will budget $70,000 per academic year and will also engage in 
discussions with clinical agencies to explore contractual arrangements to reimburse the agencies for 
making their masters and doctorally-prepared nursing staff available to serve as adjunct faculty. This 
arrangement is especially helpful to students because it provides clinical supervision by expert clinicians 
who are also employees well steeped in the policies and procedures of the agency. 

We have also been in conversation with Chief Nursing Officers in the clinical arena about the challenge of 
meeting adequate clinical placements for our students. We are willing to prepare our students for 
clinical experiences during the times that are most convenient to the agencies even if evening, nights 
and weekends are necessary. In fact, SUNO’s hallmark is educating nontraditional adults who often 
meet their educational responsibilities in evening and weekend timeframes, so this will not be a new 
expectation. 

Our new state of the art Simulation Laboratories will also be utilized to ensure students are well 
prepared in basic competencies prior to actual clinical experience to maximize their clinical experience 
time and help them be productive to the agencies while in their clinical role. The LSBN allows for up to 
50% of required clinical hours to be met with quality simulation time to help schools take advantage of 
these simulated learning opportunities. 

We have received encouragement from health agencies in New Orleans for this new program as 
evidenced by the letters of support found at the end of this report. 

Need to Increase ethnic diversity in the nursing population 

Finally, there is a need for much more diversity in the nursing profession to better serve the patient 
population in our society. Phillips and Malone, in a 2014 report, noted that a more diverse health 
workforce that is culturally and linguistically competent can better meet the health care needs of an 
increasingly diverse U. S. population. In addition, the Academy of Medicine and the National Quality 
Forum both emphasize the need for the nursing workforce to become more diverse to insure increased 
patient satisfaction, improved patient-clinician communication and greater access to care for patients 



11 of 20 
 

belonging to minority populations. 

 

The LSBN in their 2019 report referenced earlier also recommends that the capacity of nursing programs 
be increased to ensure a diverse workforce that reflects the racial/ethnic composition of the overall 
state to provide culturally competent care to racial/ethnic minority populations. 

According to the latest US Census (2010) the demographics of Louisiana include: 
 

Gender: 51.0% Female 

Ethnicity: 58.4% White 

 32.8 % Black/African American 

 5.30% His/Latino 

 4.50% Other 

According to Louisiana Center for Nursing (2019) The Demographics of the Current Nurse Workforce 
include: 
 

Gender: 80% Female 

Ethnicity: 80% White 

 17% Black/African American 

 02% Asian 

 01% Other 

These statistics confirm a need for additional diversity within our student nurse and nursing workforce 
population to better match the diversity of the population and to better serve the health outcomes of the 
citizens of the state. 

SUNO’s mission as a public, historically Black university empowers and promotes the upward mobility of 
diverse populations of traditional and nontraditional students and provides a sound education tailored 
to special needs of students with diverse backgrounds. SUNO’s addition of a BSN program will increase 
the number of students admitted to nursing each year, improve the overall institutional enrollment, 
decrease the number of qualified students who are turned away each year and contribute to building a 
nurse workforce more culturally representative of the citizens of Louisiana to help improve health 
outcomes. 

3. Relevance 

Explain why this program is an institutional priority at this time. How will it (a) further the mission of 
the institution and (b) increase the educational attainment or quality of life of the people of Louisiana. 

SUNO has been committed to developing a BSN nursing program for several years. The university’s 
long-standing goal to serve its community with a BSN program began in 2014 when it submitted a Letter 
of Intent to the Board of Regents. The LOI was approved in February of 2015. Unfortunately, the path 
forward seemed too challenging for success at that time. The next step in the process was to apply to 
the LSBN for approval. The LSBN regulations are professionally specific, highly detailed, and SUNO did 
not have nursing expertise on staff. Further, other new programs were in process, changes were 
occurring in university leadership, and financial resources could not support needed consultation to 
proceed with seeking approval from the LSBN. Rather than attempt to go forward without the requisite 



12 of 20 
 

resources, the process was postponed. 
Now SUNO has a new Chancellor who enthusiastically supports the establishment of this program. It also 
has a new four-story Natural Science Building (NSB) completed in 2018 that has allocated the second 
floor with about 12,000 square feet to Nursing. The space includes three 30-seat classrooms, conference 
rooms, clinical learning labs for general and specialty care, a 30-seat computer laboratory, seven offices, 
two state of the art simulation laboratories with control room, two exam rooms, and a faculty lounge 
ready for occupancy.  A copy of the floor plan of the space is attached to this report and a video may be 
viewed at:  https://youtu.be/-npeBYCxMak. 

As noted earlier, as an HBCU, SUNO stands for providing quality education to nontraditional students of 
diverse ethnicity. It is committed to helping their graduates to attain degrees that will insure them a 
professional path forward and a life of service in the community. A BSN program fulfills its mission and 
also fulfills current work force needs of the region as described earlier in the Needs section. This 
program will help alleviate the nursing shortage, and improve diversity within the nursing workforce. It 
will also increase opportunity for admission for qualified applicants who get turned away because 
current programs are at capacity. In summary, this new program is relevant because it: 

allows SUNO to further its mission and continue to thrive as a positive institution of service to the 
underserved in Louisiana 

gives graduates the opportunity to engage in an upwardly mobile profession that enhances their 
quality of life and the economic growth of the community 

provides graduates who will make a valuable contribution of service and improved health care 
outcomes within the community 

alleviates the nursing shortage 

improves diversity within the nursing workforce 

4. Students 

Summarize student interest/demand for the proposed program. 

As SUNO has had a long-standing desire for a BSN program, so has its students. During the time of the 
first LOI, in 2014, 42 students expressed interest in the program and many studied at SUNO to complete 
pre nursing courses and left to pursue nursing at other schools. This pattern has continued. Responses 
to a survey sent to current SUNO students in January 2021 confirmed that 70 students would be 
interested in enrolling in a BSN program if it were available. About half of the respondents are currently 
biology majors and the rest social science and professional program majors, and several who self- 
identify as Nursing because they are completing pre nursing requirements for other schools. Anecdotal 
reports from admission counselors and advisors also note that potential students often inquire about a 
nursing major and some enroll to complete general education courses and then leave to attend a school 
that has a nursing program. The following table shows the respondents who declared their interest in a 
nursing program at SUNO in January 2021. This list represents students who are currently enrolled at 
various stages in their program but who are interested in becoming a nursing major at SUNO. When 
appropriate approvals are earned, SUNO will add Nursing to its list of programs and initiate recruitment 
strategies by communicating with local inner city high schools to inform students of the new program. 

The following table shows the 70 students who responded “yes” to a survey question asking if they had 
an interest in enrolling in a BSN program if it were available at SUNO. Note that some state Nursing is 
their major with the intention of attending a college that has a nursing program in the future if SUNO 
does not develop one.  



13 of 20 
 

Student Current Major Student Current Major 

1 Jacquez Biddings Biology 36 Nikia Smoot HIMS 

2 Jasmine Wison Biology 37 Jaspreana Tobias Psychology 

3 Claisha Coston Biology 38 Keyanna Ezeb Psychology 

4 Shania Hatter Biology 39 Kayln Johnson HIMS 

5 Brandie Reeves Psychology 40 Jon’Monet Ray Forensic Science 

6 Rasheeda Alonzo HIMS 41 Robert Samuels, II Biology 

7 Chiquita Jones Nursing 42 Jonnie baker Biology 

8 Jeriyon Macklin Biology 43 Derenika Williams Biology 

9 Marlo Hills Science 44 Briana Lewis CBA 

10 Elyssa Willis Criminal Justice 45 Bentrel Ranson Forensic Science 

11 Ashlea Brown MS CIS 46 Amia Lopez Biology 

12 Miyshoi Collins Biology 47 Precious Sylvester Social Work 

13 Tristan Santa Cruz Psychology 48 Markel Coleman Biology 

14 Shante Maheia General Studies 49 Chikaodili Osuji Biology 

15 Oianuju T. Obi Biology 50 Eugene Jessica Biology 

16 Cassandra Walters Social Science 51 Brittany Hookfin HIMS 

17 Aaliyah Bennett Biology 52 Edwina Buffert Biology 

18 Jena Terrance Biology 53 Lawrence Weatherstrand MCIS 

 

19 Andrew Robertson 
 

Biology 
 

54 Brittney Pearley 
 

Nursing 

20 Charrel Williams Biology 55 Madisen Dave N/A 

21 Michelle Capers (Reed) BAD&Accounting 56 Jarvis Burrell Nursing 

22 Michael Rivers ABCP 57 Shauna Anderson Nursing 

23 Avis Morton Nursing 58 Jamika Hayes Addiction Counseling 

24 Tekiha Berkley General Studies 59 Malkia Heisser Biology 

25 Wayne Anderson Biology 60 Malery Louis CIS 



14 of 20 
 

Student Current Major Student Current Major 

26 Alaysha Banks2 Biology 61 Jasmaine Love Social Work 

27 Kandice Dotson Biology 62 Raquel Green Biology 

28 Stevione Brumfield Criminal Justice 63 Francis Jones N/A 

29 Jayln Osby Psychology 64 Quinecia John-Baptiste Nursing 

30 Debritta Larkins Biology 65 Deiondra Cooper Nursing 

31 ShaRon Stevenson Biology 66 Taranica Richardson Nursing 

32 Michelle Martin HIMS 67 Brooke Holly Nursing 

33 Fierrau Alexander BSW 68 Antonia Scott Pre-Nursing/Biology 

34 Julie Anne Opia Nursing 69 Aujelynn Davis Biology 

35 Chariss gallaspy ABCP 70 Tiana Smith Social Work 

 

Given the expressed interest of current students at SUNO, the fact that students have left SUNO to 
pursue careers in nursing and the fact that hundreds of qualified students are denied admission to 
nursing programs in the state each year it would seem that a BSN at SUNO will easily enroll 30 qualified 
students each year. 

Enrolling 30 students each year until the first cohort graduates in spring of 2025 will allow this new 
program to establish stability and achieve all required approvals including Board of Supervisors, Board of 
Regents, LSBN, SACS, and to achieve CCNE professional program accreditation when eligible. 

The next step for growth for the BSN program would be to evaluate the size of the applicant pool each 
year and if numbers support growth, to admit an additional 10 students in year 4 and 5 of the program. 
This would require the addition of 1 FTE faculty each year to ensure adequate coverage for classroom 
and clinical instruction and would increase the program to about 50 students in each year of the 
program going forward. 

If the need for additional BSN level graduates continues to grow in LA, the next logical step to serve the 
community after year 5, is to develop an RN to BSN program to provide current graduates of the LA 
Associate Degree (AD) in Nursing programs the opportunity to continue their professional growth and 
earn their BSN at SUNO. This type of program usually requires students to complete about 60 credits of 
course work in an accelerated on-line format in 15 to 18 months. Courses would be designed to ensure 
students achieve the same program outcomes as the BSN program with a nursing “bridge course” 
covering Junior year concepts that were not covered in their AD nursing courses. Following the 
completion of the “bridge course” students would complete the current senior level BSN courses. 

Students would be required to meet all SUNO core curriculum requirements through transfer of their AD 
general education courses or through course completion to earn the BSN. One FTE faculty would be 
required to instruct 15-20 RN to BSN students. 

  



15 of 20 
 

Enrolled students will be supported through current student services programs including: 

 Academic advisement: upon enrollment an advisor is assigned to help students set realistic 
goals, identify special needs, refer to available resources, register for appropriate courses 
and generally guide the path toward goals. 

 The Honors Program: Academically talented and motivated students are offered the 
opportunity to cultivate critical thinking through small classes and independent study under 
guidance of recognized teacher scholars. The program is administered by the Director of the 
Honors Program and committee members. 

 Early Start Program: A cooperative program with greater metropolitan school districts that 
provides qualified students with a supported transition from high school to college. It 
provides the opportunity for selected 11th or 12 graders to complete college credit and build 
confidence and maturity to be successful as a college student. 

 Trio Programs: A student support program funded by the US Department of Education for low 
income, first generation students and/or students with disabilities. The program is designed 
to increase academic performance, retention and graduation rates. Students receive 
instruction in a College Survival Skills course that addresses time management, note taking 
skills, study skills, resume writing, career development, financial literacy, financial aid and 
scholarship information. Each student is assigned an academic coach to serve as a mentor and 
advisor. 

 Title III: Continuously provides personnel, technology and resources to support students 
across all facets of the university through 15 sub programs. For example, The Center for 
Comprehensive Communication provides assistance for individuals and groups in reading, 
English, math, writing to promote academic success and Student Development Center that 
provides multi- faceted counseling and wellness services to promote academic success and 
personal well- being. 

 Library Services: The Leonard S. Washington Memorial Library at Southern University at New 
Orleans provides academic resources and services for all faculty and students at SUNO. The 
services include reference, readers’ advisory, information literacy instruction and many more. 
Some of the resources include access to computing lab, collaboration lab, 3D imaging lab, 
virtual simulations, electronic books, models, test preparation programming and traditional 
monographs. The Nursing program participants will enjoy all of the rights and privileges of 
the existing students and faculty. For the past three years, the library has been acquiring 
content to support the highly anticipated nursing program. In addition to utilizing the 
selected print and electronic resources for the SUNO student, the faculty and staff may 
access and borrow content from any of the 41member university libraries participating in the 
state library consortium (LOUIS) reciprocal borrowing program. In the event a resource is not 
available within the state, the library may borrow the item on behalf of the patron via the 
interlibrary loan system. All library services and resources are available in multiple formats of 
delivery to ensure that remote and distance students have access to the same quality of 
service, equipment, and devices. 

The first cohort is expected to be filled by students currently enrolled in other programs at SUNO, 
especially biology majors. Recruitment of BSN students in following years will be conducted by 
SUNOs Office of Admissions and will include the university’s outreach to connect with students 
enrolled in local secondary schools to develop interest prior to high school completion in the Dual 
Enrollment and Talent Search programs.  



5. Cost
Estimate new/additional costs of the projected program for the first five years. Indicate amounts to be 
adsorbed out of current sources of revenue and needs for additional appropriations (if any).  Commit 
to provide adequate funding to initiate and sustain the program. On the separate budget  form, 
estimate new costs and revenues for the first four years.

SUNO is poised to invest ample resources to develop a quality BSN program. New costs will include 
salaries for a program director, two full time faculty, and an administrative assistant, for the first two 
years (one planning year and the first year that 30 students will be admitted to the sophomore level 
curriculum). Year three will add four new full-time faculty with the expertise to teach specialty courses in 
mental health, adult health, childbearing health (maternity), and childrearing health (pediatrics). In year 
four, one additional full time faculty member will be hired to teach community health. 

Growth, once accreditation is achieved, can easily be accomplished by admitting an additional 10 
students each year which can be accommodated in the classroom sections without new full-time faculty 
and by adding 5 adjunct faculty at about half time to provide clinical instruction. Adding an RN to BSN 
program will be considered in year five after professional accreditation is achieved. Discussion has been 
initiated at the administrative level with Delgado Community College. Delgado Community College 
graduates about 100 nurses with associate degrees each year and SUNO would like to explore 
developing an articulation agreement for their students to move directly into the RN to BSN program. 

Significant costs are anticipated for furnishing and equipping the second floor of the new Natural 
Science Building that has been reserved for the nursing program. High cost high and medium cost 
technology simulation manikins are budgeted for the Simulation Labs as well as lower tech skill lab 
equipment. In addition, many up to date teaching models and other classroom and clinical teaching 
tools and supplies are included. All traditional classroom, conference room, and office furnishings are 
budgeted as well as 40 new computers and support hardware and software to equip a computer lab and 
provide new personnel with computers in their offices. 

_____________________ ___________________________ 

Chief Academic Officer – SUNO Chancellor  Date 

_______________________________________________________ ___________________________ 

Southern University System President      Date 

__________________________________________________   ________________________ 
Management Board Date of Approval by Board 



17 of 20 
 

SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED ADDITIONAL COSTS/INCOME FOR INTENDED PROGRAM 
 

Institution:    Southern University at New Orleans Date: 2/25/21  
 

 
Degree Program 
Unit: 

   Proposed BSN Program  

 
 

FTE = Full Time Equivalent (use the institution’s standard definition and provide that definition) 
 

EXPENDITURES 

INDICATE 
ACADEMIC 

YEAR: 

 
FIRST 

 
SECOND 

 
THIRD 

 
FOURTH 

 AMOUNT FTE AMOUNT FTE AMOUNT FTE AMOUNT FTE 

Faculty $371,000 3 $378,420 3 $777,988 7 $891,547 8.6 

Graduate 
Assistants 

        

Support 
Personnel 

 

$42,000 
 

1 
 

$43,260 
 

1 
 

$44,187 
 

1 
 

$45,895 
 

1 

Fellowships and 
Scholarships 

        

SUB-TOTAL $413,000 4 $421,680 4 $823,175 8 $937,442 9.6 

 

 AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT 

Facilities     

 

Equipment 
 

$369,620 
 

$187,000 
 

$35,000 
 

$35,000 

Travel $7,000 $7,000 $11,000 $12,000 

Supplies $12,968 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 

SUB-TOTAL $389,588 $200,000 $52,000 $53,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES $802,588 $621,680 $875,175 $990,442 



18 of 20 
 

REVENUES 

Revenue 
Anticipated From: 

AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT 

State 
Appropriations 

$175,000 $180,250 $185,657 $191,227 

Federal Grants/ 
Contracts  (Title III) 

$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 

State Grants/ 
Contracts 

    

Private Grants/ 
Contracts 

    

Expected 
Enrollment 

30 60 90 120 

Tuition $134,490 $268,980 $403,470 $537,960 

Fees $78,670 $157,340 $236,011 $314,681 

Nursing Fee* 
Approval Requested 

$0 $12,000 $24,000 $36,000 

TOTAL REVENUES $888,160 $1,118,570 $1,349,138 $1,579,868 

 
Addition Budget allocations: 

Costs for full time program director (calendar year) and full-time faculty (academic year, teaching 
12 credit hours per semester) are computed at program director salary of $125,000 (doctorally-
prepared) and full-time faculty at $70,000 (Masters prepared, doctorate preferred) depending on 
experience and credentials. 

Equipment costs are based on estimates for state-of-the-art simulation manikins, teaching aids 
and furnishings for two high tech simulation labs, control room, three nursing skills labs for 
learning and practicing basic health care delivery knowledge, skills and ways of being with 
patients. 

Supplies are based on equipping labs with start -up supplies to support nursing care delivery in a 
variety of situations and maintenance annually. 

Additional expenses are included for technology support of simulation manikins and the ability to 
broadcast simulation laboratory activities to classrooms, and conference rooms. 

Library support will be budgeted at about $3,000 in years one two and three to add new 
reference holdings and texts to compliment the new courses and then $2,000 per year to 
maintain up to date holdings. 



19 of 20 
 

Jamie Wiggins, PhD(c), 
MBA, RN, NEA-BC, FACHE 
Sr. Vice President Chief 
Clinical Officer/Chief Nursing 
Officer 200 Henry Clay 
Avenue 
New Orleans, LA 70118 

 

 
O 504 894 6714 
C 415 314 1673 
Jamie.Wiggins@LCMChealth.org 

mailto:Jamie.Wiggins@LCMChealth.org


20 of 20 
 

 

 
  



21 of 20 
 

 























 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

POLICY TITLE 
Cybersecurity Policy 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

8-001 

Responsible Unit:  
Division of Information Technology  
 
Responsible Official: 
Associate Vice President for Information Technology  
 
Policy Classification: 
Information Technology  

Effective Date: 
03/12/2021 
 
Last Reviewed Date: 
03/01/2021 
 
Origination Date:  
01/01/2021 

 
I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 

The Southern University System Cybersecurity Policy (SUS-CSP) provides the guiding 
principles for securing Information technology (IT) resources across the Southern University 
System. 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 
All Southern University System IT resource users and resources are covered by this policy.  

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE 
Violations of this policy may result in loss of Southern University system and network usage 
privileges, and/or disciplinary action, up to and including termination or expulsion as outlined in 
the applicable user policies. 
 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 
 Endpoint: Laptop computers, desktop computers. 
 Southern University System IT Resources: Southern University System owned 

Computers, Networks, Devices, Storage, Applications, or other IT equipment.  “Southern 
University owned” is defined as equipment purchased or leased with either organization 
funding (including sources such as Foundation funds etc.) 

 
 
  



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 
Responsibilities: Information Security Officer 
The Information Security Officer (ISO) leads the Cybersecurity team responsible for creating 
and maintaining the Southern University System’s Information Security program. The 
purpose of the Information Security program is to maintain the confidentiality, integrity, and 
availability of organization IT Resources and organization data. In addition, the Information 
Security Officer, or a designee, is responsible for leading the investigation of and response 
to cybersecurity incidents. The response to any incident will be developed in collaboration 
with the data steward, organization Communications, legal counsel, and other campus offices 
as appropriate. 

Users 
Users are allowed access to only those systems that are required for the execution of their 
job duties.  Southern University System IT Resource users are responsible for protecting the 
security of all data and IT Resources to which they have access. This includes implementing 
appropriate security measures on personally owned devices that access Southern University 
System IT Resources. Users are required to be knowledgeable in identifying general SPAM 
and Phishing tactics. In addition, users are required to keep their accounts and passwords 
secure in compliance with the Southern University System’s existing Acceptable Use of 
Technology Resources and Password Policies. 

Network Management 
The Division of Information Technology (DoIT) team is responsible for planning, 
implementing, and managing the Southern University System’s network, including wireless 
connections. 

Only authorized IT personnel can install new devices on the Southern University System 
network. The Southern University System prohibits users from installing any of the following 
equipment: 

 Routers 
 Switches 
 Hubs 
 Wireless access points 
 Voice over IP (VOIP) infrastructure devices 
 Intrusion detection systems (IDS) 
 Intrusion prevention systems (IPS) 
 Virtual Private Networking (VPN) 
 Consumer grade network technologies 
 Wireless Printers 
 Other networking appliances (that may not be included in this list) 



 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

Software System Administration 
The DoIT System Administrator’s team is responsible for proper maintenance of university-
wide system resources, including servers, virtual machines (VM), cloud-based services, and 
backup and recovery systems. 

IT Resources that are housed and managed by academic units and campus-based 
organizations must have a designated Software System Administrator.  The Software System 
Administrator is responsible for proper maintenance of the system, even if the Software 
System Administrator is not a member of the DoIT technical support team. This 
responsibility must be acknowledged and documented. In addition, departmental and 
organizational system resources must be accessible to the DoIT technical support team for 
incident management purposes unless legal restrictions will not allow such access.  

Negligent management of an organization owned IT Resource resulting in unauthorized user 
access or a data breach may result in the loss of system administration privileges.  

Software system administration responsibilities for all organization-owned IT Resources, 
including those that are self-administered, include the following: 

 Complying with all applicable Southern University System IT policies and procedures 
which includes adherence to username and password policies and procedures 

 Performing an annual cybersecurity self-assessment, or as directed by the Cybersecurity 
Team, for the set of IT Resources administered 

 Working with the IT support team to establish the following: 
o Installing and running endpoint security/management agents that have been approved 

by Southern University System’s DoIT 
o Establishing an appropriate backup strategy and performing regular system backups 
o Regularly updating the operating system and other applications installed on the 

machine 
o Using, where possible and practical, central Southern University System’s DoIT 

services for system login and account management (e.g. Active Directory) 
 
General Procedures: 

1. Incident Reporting: If a Southern University System IT Resource user suspects that 
a security incident has occurred or will occur, they should report the suspicion 
immediately to the Software System Administrator or IT Department.  Users may also 
report the suspected security incident directly to appropriate campus 
DoIT Cybersecurity team at helpdesk@sus.edu, service@suno.edu, 
helpdesk@susla.edu, helpdesk@sulc.edu, helpdesk@suagcenter.com.  
 

mailto:helpdesk@sus.edu
mailto:service@suno.edu
mailto:helpdesk@susla.edu
mailto:helpdesk@sulc.edu
mailto:helpdesk@suagcenter.com


 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

Software System Administrators who have identified any of the following security 
events should report the suspected security event to Southern University System 
Cybersecurity team at helpdesk@sus.edu, service@suno.edu, helpdesk@susla.edu, 
helpdesk@sulc.edu, helpdesk@suagcenter.com or an IT Team Member: 

 Any occurrence of a compromised user account 
 Any breach or exposure of protected or sensitive data 
 Any occurrence of a server infected with malware 
 Any occurrence of endpoints infected with malware 
 Any other instance of malware or suspected intrusion that seems abnormal 

 
2. Enforcement: Violations of this policy may result in loss of Southern University 

system and network usage privileges, and/or disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination or expulsion as outlined in the applicable user policies.  

 
VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION  
 Information Security Policy (Plan)  
 Incident Response Plan 
 Acceptable Use of Technology Resources 
 
VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 

This is a new policy. The effective date of this policy is determined by the approval dates of both 
the Chair of the Southern University System Board of Supervisors and the President-Chancellor 
of the Southern University and A&M College System. Additionally, the policy last review and 
origination dates are identified. This policy is subject to a five-year policy review cycle. 
 

VIII. POLICY URL 
The approved policy will be posted on the Southern University System website under Board 
Policies at www.sus.edu. 
  

IX. POLICY APPROVAL   
 
 
 
______________________________________________           _________________________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.         Effective Date of Policy  
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 
 
 
 
______________________________________________             ________________________ 
The Honorable Attorney Domoine D. Rutledge            Effective Date of Policy  
Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors                                    

mailto:helpdesk@sus.edu
mailto:service@suno.edu
mailto:helpdesk@susla.edu
mailto:helpdesk@sulc.edu
mailto:helpdesk@suagcenter.com
http://www.sus.edu/


 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

POLICY TITLE 
Information Security Policy Plan 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

8-002 

Responsible Unit:  
Division of Information Technology  
 
Responsible Official: 
Associate Vice President for Information Technology  
 
Policy Classification: 
Information Technology  

Effective Date: 
03/12/2021 
 
Last Reviewed Date: 
03/01/2021 
 
Origination Date:  
01/01/2021 

 
 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 
This Southern University System Information Security Policy ("Plan") describes safeguards 
implemented by the Southern University System to protect covered data and information in 
compliance with the Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC's) Safeguards Rule promulgated 
under the Gramm Leach Bliley Act (GLBA), Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
(FERPA), Louisiana House Bill No.633 Act No.155, and the Payment Card Industry Data Security 
Standard (PCI‐DSS). 
 
These safeguards are provided to: 

 Ensure the security and confidentiality of covered data and information 
 Protect against anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of such information 
 Protect against unauthorized access to or use of covered data and information that could 

result in substantial harm or inconvenience to any student, alumni or donor 
 
This Information Security Program also identifies mechanisms to:  

 Identify and assess the risks that may threaten covered data and information maintained by 
the Southern University System 

 Develop written policies and procedures to manage and control these risks 
 Implement and review the program 
 Adjust the program to reflect changes in technology, the sensitivity of covered data and 

information and internal or external threats to information security 
 



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 
The scope of this policy includes all information assets governed by the Southern University 
System. All personnel and service providers who have access to or utilize information assets of 
the Southern University System, including data at rest, in transit or in process shall be subject to 
these requirements. This Policy applies to all information assets operated by the Southern 
University System; all information assets provided by Southern University System through 
contracts, subject to the provisions and restrictions of the contracts; and all authenticated users of 
the Southern University System’s information assets. 
 
All third parties with access to the Southern University System’s non‐public information must 
operate in accordance with a service provider contract containing security provisions consistent 
with the requirements promulgated under, but not limited to the Gramm‐Leach‐Bliley Act 
(GLBA), Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Louisiana House Bill No.633 Act 
No.155, and the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI‐DSS). 
 
This policy applies to all non-public personal information of the Southern University System’s 
“customers” such as students, alumni and donors that the Southern University System is privy to, 
or maintains.   
 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE 
Violations of this policy may result in loss of Southern University system and network usage 
privileges, and/or disciplinary action, up to and including termination or expulsion as outlined in 
the applicable user policies. 
 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 
 Covered data and information: For the purpose of this program, this includes customer 

financial information (defined below) that is protected under the GLBA and other 
regulations listed above. In addition to this coverage, which is required under federal law, 
the Southern University System chooses as a matter of policy to include in this definition 
any and all sensitive data, including credit card information and checking/banking 
account information received in the course of business by the organization, whether or 
not such information is covered. Covered data and information includes both paper and 
electronic records. 

 Pretext calling: This occurs when an individual attempts to improperly obtain personal 
information of Southern University System’s customers so as to be able to commit 
identity theft. It is accomplished by contacting the organization, posing as a customer or 
someone authorized to have the customer's information, and through the use of trickery 
and deceit (sometimes referred to as ’social engineering’), convincing an employee of 
the organization to release customer-identifying information. 

 Student financial information: This is information that the Southern University System 
has obtained from a student or customer in the process of offering a financial product or 
service, or such information provided to the organization by another financial institution. 
Offering a financial product or service includes offering student loans to  students, 



 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

receiving income tax information from a student’s parent when offering a financial aid 
package, and other miscellaneous financial services. Examples of student financial 
information include addresses, phone numbers, bank and credit card account numbers, 
income and credit histories and Social Security numbers, in both paper and electronic 
format. 
 
V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 

GLBA mandates that the Southern University System appoint an Information Security 
Program Coordinator, conduct a risk assessment of likely security and privacy risks, organize 
a training program for all employees who have access to covered data and information, 
oversee service providers and contracts, and evaluate and adjust the Information Security 
Program periodically. 
 
Information Security Program Coordinator(s) and Committee 
The Deputy CIO of Security & Risk Management and the Information Security Officer have 
been appointed as the coordinators for the Southern University System. They are responsible 
forming a committee, the Cybersecurity Committee, for assessing the risks associated with 
unauthorized transfers of covered data and information, and implementing procedures to 
minimize those risks to the organization. The Cybersecurity Committee, together with risk 
management, accounting and other personnel will also conduct reviews of areas that have 
access to covered data and information to assess the internal control structure put in place by 
the administration and to verify that all departments comply with the requirements of the 
security policies and practices delineated in this program. 
 
Identification and Assessment of Risks to Customer Information 
The Southern University System recognizes that it is exposed to both internal and external 
risks, including, but not limited to: 

 Unauthorized access of covered data and information by someone other than the owner of 
the covered data and information 

 Compromised system security as a result of system access by an unauthorized person 
 Interception of data during transmission 
 Loss of data integrity 
 Physical loss of data in a disaster 
 Errors introduced into the system 
 Corruption of data or systems 
 Unauthorized access of covered data and information by employees 
 Unauthorized requests for covered data and information 
 Unauthorized access through hardcopy files or reports 
 Unauthorized transfer of covered data and information through third parties 

 



 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

Recognizing that this may not represent a complete list of the risks associated with the 
protection of covered data and information, and that new risks are created regularly, the 
Southern University System Cybersecurity Team will actively participate and monitor 
appropriate cybersecurity advisory groups for identification of new and emerging risks. 
 
Current safeguards implemented, monitored and maintained by Southern University System 
Cybersecurity team are reasonable, and in light of current risk assessments are sufficient to 
provide security and confidentiality to covered data and information maintained by the 
organization. Additionally, these safeguards reasonably protect against currently anticipated 
threats or hazards to the integrity of such information. 
 
Employee Management and Training 
The Southern University System Office of Human Resources performs references and/or 
background checks (as appropriate, depending on position) of new employees and those 
working in areas that regularly work with covered data and information (e.g. Cashier’s 
Office, Financial Aid). During employee orientation, each new employee in these 
departments receives proper training on the importance of confidentiality of student 
(customer) records, student (customer) financial information, and all other covered data and 
information. Each new employee is also trained in the proper use of computer information 
and passwords. Training includes controls and procedures to prevent employees from 
providing confidential information to an unauthorized individual, as well as how to properly 
dispose of documents that contain covered data and information. These training efforts 
should help minimize risk and safeguard covered data and information.  
 
Physical Security 
The Southern University System has addressed the physical security of covered data and 
information by limiting access to only those employees who have a legitimate business 
reason to handle such information. For example, financial aid applications, income and credit 
histories, accounts, balances and transactional information are available only to Southern 
University System employees with an appropriate business need for such information. 
Furthermore, each department responsible for maintaining covered data and information is 
instructed to take steps to protect the information from destruction, loss or damage due to 
environmental hazards, such as fire and water damage or technical failures.  
All servers and data storage systems are physically secured behind a card access system and 
mechanical cypher lock with limited access. 
 
Information Systems 
Access to covered data and information via the Southern University System’s computer 
information system is limited to those employees who have a legitimate business reason to 
access such information. The organization has policies and procedures in place to 
complement the physical and technical (IT) safeguards in order to provide security to 



 
 

5 | P a g e  
 

Southern University System’s information systems. These policies and procedures are 
available upon request from the Information Security Officer. 

Social security numbers are considered protected information under both GLBA and the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). As such, the Southern University 
System does not use social security numbers as student identifiers in favor of the Student -
ID# as a matter of policy. By necessity, student social security numbers will remain in the 
student information system; however, access to social security numbers is granted only in 
cases where there is an approved, documented business need. 

Management of System Failures 

The Division of Information Technology has developed written plans and procedures to 
detect any actual or attempted attacks on Southern University systems and has an Incident 
Response Plan formulated in coordination with the Deputy CIO of Security & Risk 
Management, which outlines procedures for responding to an actual or attempted 
unauthorized access to covered data and information. This document is available upon 
request from the Information Security Officer or the Division of Information Technology.  

Oversight of Service Providers 

GLBA requires the organization to take reasonable steps to select and retain service providers 
who maintain appropriate safeguards for covered data and information. This Information 
Security Program will ensure that such steps are taken by contractually requiring service 
providers to implement and maintain such safeguards. The Information Security Program 
Coordinator(s) will identify service providers who have or will have access to covered data, 
and will work with financial affairs office and legal counsel, and other offices as appropriate, 
to ensure that service provider contracts contain appropriate terms to protect the security of 
covered data. 

Continuing Evaluation and Adjustment 

This Information Security Program will be subject to periodic review and adjustment as 
needed. Continued administration of the development, implementation and maintenance of 
the program will be the responsibility of the designated Information Security Program 
Coordinator(s), who will assign specific responsibility for technical (IT), logical, physical, 
and administrative safeguards implementation and administration as appropriate. The 
Information Security Program Coordinator(s) will review the standards set forth in this 
program and recommend updates and revisions as necessary; it may be necessary to adjust 
the program to reflect changes in technology, the sensitivity of student/customer data, and/or 
internal or external threats to information security.  

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION  
 Southern University System Cybersecurity Policy 
 Southern University System IT Incident Handling Procedure 



 
 

6 | P a g e  
 

 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
 Gramm Leach Bliley Act (GLBA) 
 Louisiana House Bill No.633 Act No.155 
 Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI‐DSS) 
 Southern University System Acceptable Use of Technology Resources 
 Southern University System Email Communications Policy 
 Southern University System Personal Computing Policy 
 All other applicable Southern University System Polices 
 
VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 

This is a new policy. The effective date of this policy is determined by the approval dates of both 
the Chair of the Southern University System Board of Supervisors and the President-Chancellor 
of the Southern University and A&M College System. Additionally, the policy last review and 
origination dates are identified. This policy is subject to a five-year policy review cycle. 
 

VIII. POLICY URL 
The approved policy will be posted on the Southern University System website under Board 
Policies at www.sus.edu. 
  

IX. POLICY APPROVAL   
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________           _________________________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.         Effective Date of Policy  
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________             ________________________ 
The Honorable Attorney Domoine D. Rutledge            Effective Date of Policy  
Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors                                    
 
 

http://www.sus.edu/


 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

POLICY TITLE 
Graduate Council Policy 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

1-017 

Responsible Unit:  
Graduate School 
 
Responsible Official: 
Dean of Graduate School 
 
Policy Classification: 
Academic Affairs 

Effective Date: 
03/12/2021 
 
Last Reviewed Date: 
03/01/2021 
 
Origination Date:  
11/10/2020 

 
 
I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 
The Graduate Council serves as the primary policy-making and academic advisory body to the 
Graduate School. The Graduate Council is responsible for the development and review of policies 
governing graduate education and programs at the Southern University – Baton Rouge (SUBR). 
Specific functions include: the review of the graduate program curriculum, review of existing 
graduate courses, review of letters of intent and proposals for new graduate programs, review and 
approval of graduate faculty status applications, facilitating support services to graduate students 
and ensuring that processes and procedures are in place to address graduate student and faculty 
concerns. Therefore, this Policy serves as the guidance document that supports a well-represented 
Graduate Council that operates effectively and efficiently, makes decisions based on clear 
guidelines, and contributes to the revision and implementation of an updated strategic plan for the 
Graduate School that is aligned to SUBR’s Strategic – Imagine 20K.  
 
II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 
The major audiences of the Policy are the SUBR graduate students, graduate faculty, academic 
units that offer graduate programs, on-campus entities that deal with graduate studies, Graduate 
School staff and external partnering graduate institutions and graduate school organizations. 
 
 
 



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE 
The Policy is required to ensure the Graduate School remains in compliance with the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools-Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC) standards through 
SUBR’s Office of Academic Compliance and SACSCOC Accreditation, the Louisiana Board of 
Regents requirements, expectations of professional accrediting agencies for various academic 
programs, the requirements of SUBR’s Office of Academic Affairs, as well as the requirements 
and expectations of the Council of Graduate Schools. Most importantly, the Policy’s existence and 
implementation will further advance the institution’s Carnegie Classification of Institutions of 
Higher Education. 

 
IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 
Graduate Council: refers to the policy-making and advisory body to the Graduate School.  
Membership: There shall be 25 voting members of the Graduate Council. The composition is as 
follows: Representatives of Colleges with Graduate Programs (11), representatives of the Faculty 
Senate (2), representatives of the Graduate Student Council (2), Dean of the Graduate School (1), 
University SACSCOC Accreditation Compliance Officer (1), a representative of the Office 
Institutional Effectiveness, Planning and Policy (1), a representative of the John B. Cade Library 
(1), a representative of the Center for International Education (1), a representative of the Office of 
Career Services (1), a representative of the Office of the Registrar, (1), a representative of the 
Office of e-Learning (1), a representative of the Office of Research and Sponsored Programs, (1), 
and a representative of the Office of Academic Affairs (1).   
 
Quorum: The minimum number of members required for an assembly or organization to conduct 
business. In this Policy, the simple majority quorum required for the Graduate Council to conduct 
business is 50%+1. 
 
V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 
The Graduate Council shall develop Bylaws that provide detailed implementation procedures.   

 
Functions of the Graduate Council 

The Graduate Council develops, revises and sets policies for the Graduate School. These may 
include policies and procedures on minimum admission requirements; the award of graduate 
assistantships, fellowships and scholarships, graduate faculty membership, and supervision of 
degree requirements. The Graduate Council also reviews graduate programs in consultation with 
the academic program chairs/directors based on self-study and external review reports. The 
Council also advises the Dean of the Graduate School on any other issues pertaining to graduate 
studies. Specifically, the Graduate Council: 

1. Serves as policy-making and advisory body to the Dean of the Graduate School. 
2. Facilitates the revision of the Strategic Plan for the Graduate School. 
3. Ensures Graduate School Policies and Procedures are in compliance with SACSCOC, 

Louisiana Board of Regents and all applicable institutional, state, and federal requirements. 
4. Participates in the development of policies, procedures, manuals and guidelines pertaining 

to graduate education and graduate programs. 
5. Reviews and makes recommendations on proposals for new or revised graduate degree 

programs, graduate certificates, graduate concentrations/specializations, graduate courses, 



 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

deletions of programs, and curriculum additions or changes submitted by academic units 
offering graduate programs. 

6. Initiates and supervises interdisciplinary or dual degree graduate programs in response to 
national, regional, or state needs. 

7. Approves, or modifies recommendations made by the Graduate Council standing or ad-
hoc committees. 

8. Promotes and reviews periodic self-evaluation of graduate programs to ensure vitality, 
currency, and academic quality. 

9. Considers appeals/concerns filed by graduate students relating to regulations of specific 
graduate programs or their welfare. 

10. Assesses the efficiency and effectiveness of the Graduate School and its operations. 
 
 
VI.  POLICY RELATED INFORMATION  
The Graduate Council is referenced in the 2019-2023 Graduate Catalog. 
 
VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 
This policy is a revised edition of an existing Graduate Council Policy and will be effective upon 
the approval of the Southern University System Board of Supervisors and the President-Chancellor 
of the Southern University and A&M College System. Additionally, the policy last review and 
origination dates are identified. This policy is subject to the System and Board approved five-year 
policy review cycle. 
 
VIII. POLICY URL 
Southern University Policies and Procedures: https://www.sus.edu/page/su-board-policies 

 
IX. POLICY APPROVAL   
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________           _________________________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.         Effective Date of Policy  
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________             ________________________ 
The Honorable Attorney Domoine D. Rutledge    Effective Date of Policy  
Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors                                    
 
 
 

https://www.sus.edu/page/su-board-policies






 STATE OF LOUISIANA 
 

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 
 BE IT KNOWN THAT this agreement is entered into by and between BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL AND 

MECHANICAL COLLEGE, hereinafter sometimes referred to as (“Board”) and DECUIR, 

CLARK AND ADAMS, L.L.P. hereinafter sometimes referred to as (“Counsel”). 

1. 

 Counsel hereby agrees to furnish the following services to the Southern University 

Board of Supervisors, the Southern University System and the institutions under its management 

and control, and to advise the Board and Universities on any legal matters that may arise during 

the normal course of operation of the university, including litigation not covered by the states self- 

insurance policy.   

 The scope of this contract does not include litigation or proceedings arising out of or 

involving tort or worker’s compensation. 

 These legal services are to be provided under the immediate supervision of the staff of the 

Board and subject to secondary review by the Department of Justice, Office of the Attorney 

General.  

 The Board hereby certifies, and Counsel hereby acknowledges that: 

1. Goals and objectives:  The Board has entered into this contract in order to obtain 
professional and reliable legal services as referred to hereinabove. 
 

2. Performance measures:  The services provided by counsel shall be evaluated to determine 
that the services are provided timely and professionally. 
 

3. Monitoring Plan:  The staff of the Board shall monitor the performance of counsel by 
review of all interim written or verbal reports submitted by contractor and by supervision 
of the services provided by counsel.   
 

2. 

 In consideration of the services described hereinabove, Board hereby agrees to pay Counsel 

as follows: 

$225.00 PER HOUR FOR ATTORNEYS HAVING EXPERIENCE OF TEN YEARS OR 
MORE IN THE PRACTICE OF LAW 

 
$175.00 PER HOUR FOR ATTORNEYS HAVING EXPERIENCE OF FIVE YEARS OR 

MORE IN THE PRACTICE OF LAW 
 
$150.00 PER HOUR FOR ATTORNEYS HAVING EXPERIENCE OF THREE TO FIVE 

YEARS IN THE PRACTICE OF LAW 
 



$125.00 PER HOUR FOR ATTORNEYS HAVING EXPERIENCE OF LESS THAN 
THREE YEARS IN THE PRACTICE OF LAW 

 
$ 60.00 PER HOUR FOR PARALEGAL SERVICES 
 
$ 40.00 PER HOUR FOR LAW CLERK SERVICES 

ATTORNEYS AND PARALEGAL RATES 

   $225.00 WINSTON G. DECUIR, SR. 

   $225.00 LINDA LAW CLARK 

   $225.00 BRANDON J. DECUIR 

   $225.00 MICHAEL R.D. ADAMS 

   $125.00 KRISTY M. BRUMFIELD  

   $125.00 ASHLEY J. MCCULLEN 

   $ 60.00 ROBIN RICHARDSON 

 The total of all sums payable under this contract including fees and reimbursement of 

expenses shall not exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 ($250,000.00) in each year 

and shall be billed in accordance with Policy and Procedure Memo 50 (Attorney Case Handling 

Guidelines and Billing Procedures). 

 Final billing shall be submitted to the State within 90 days of contract expiration date.  At 

the end of each calendar month, Counsel shall submit to the State for review and approval an 

itemization of all work performed, listing time by date for work performed by hours, down to the 

tenth of an hour, with specific reference to the nature of the work performed (e.g., drafting of 

pleadings, research, review of files, etc.).  It is understood that should Counsel fail to submit 

statements within thirty (30) days following the end of each month, the State shall not be 

responsible for payment thereof under this contact or in quantum meruit. All billings by Counsel 

for services rendered shall be submitted in compliance with LSA-R.S. 39:1618. 

 All legal fees and costs shall be paid in accordance with the State Agency or Division of 

Administration Attorney Case Handling Guidelines and Billing Procedures as set forth in PPM 50. 

Counsel shall be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses in accordance with the Division of 

Administration Travel Rules and Regulations as set forth in PPM 49. Travel time, at the direction 

and for the convenience of the State, is billable as services if done during normal working hours 

at one-half the agreed upon Attorney pay rate and shall not exceed eight hours per day without 

written justification.  Counsel agrees to comply with the instructions on Attachment #1 when 

submitting invoices.  



3. 

Counsel hereby agrees that the responsibility for payment of taxes from the funds thus 

received under this agreement and/or legislative appropriation shall be said counsel’s obligation 

and identified under Federal tax identification number 72-1286643 and the Louisiana Department 

of Revenue Account Number 9141441-002-300. 

 In accordance with R. S. 39:1624(A)(10), the Louisiana Department of Revenue must 

determine that the prospective contractor is current in the filing of all applicable tax returns and 

reports and in payment of all taxes, interest, penalties, and fees owed to the state and collected by 

the Department of Revenue prior to the approval of this contract by the Office of State 

Procurement.  The prospective contractor hereby attests to its current and/or prospective 

compliance, and agrees to provide its seven-digit LDR Account Number to the contracting agency 

so that the prospective contractor’s tax payment compliance status may be verified.  The 

prospective contractor further acknowledges understanding that issuance of tax clearance 

certificate by the Louisiana Department of Revenue is a necessary precondition to the approval 

and effectiveness of this contract by the Office of State Procurement.  The contracting agency 

reserves the right to withdraw its consent to this contract without penalty and proceed with 

alternate arrangements should the vendor fail to resolve any identified apparent outstanding tax 

compliance discrepancies with the Louisiana Department of Revenue within seven (7) days of 

such notification. 

4. 

 The Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, the State Inspector General and/or 

Division of Administration auditors may audit all records of Counsel which relate to this contract.  

Counsel shall maintain said records for a period of five years after the date of final payment under 

this contract. 

5. 

 This contract is in effect for the period commencing July 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 

2023. 

The effective date of this contract may be extended only if an amendment to that effect is 

duly executed by the contracting parties and approved by the necessary authorities prior to said 

termination date.  Requests for extensions may be initiated by either party by the mailing of such 

request to the party, via Certified Mail, return receipt requested, not less than thirty (30) days 



before the termination date provided for herein or thirty (30) days before the termination of the 

first extension of this contract.  This contract may only be extended by an executed and approved 

amendment two (2) times. 

If either party informs the other that an extension of this contract is deemed necessary, an 

amendment may be prepared by the State and forwarded to the other party for appropriate action 

by the other party, and said amendment is to be returned to the State with appropriate information 

and signatures not less than fifteen (15) days prior to termination date.  Upon receipt of the 

amendment it will be forwarded to the necessary authorities for their approval. 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the total term of this contract with 

extensions be for a period of more than five (5) years. 

6. 

 The continuation of this contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds to fulfill the 

requirements of the contract by the legislature.  If the legislature fails to appropriate sufficient 

monies to provide for the continuation of the contract, or if such appropriation is reduced by the 

veto of the Governor or by any means provided in the appropriations act to prevent the total 

appropriation for the year from exceeding revenues for that year, or for any other lawful purpose, 

and the effect of such reduction is to provide insufficient monies for the continuation of the 

contract, the contract shall terminate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year for which 

funds are not appropriated. 

7. 

 Counsel shall not assign any interest in this contract and shall not transfer any interest in 

same (whether by assignment or novation), without prior written consent of the State, provided 

however, that claims for money due or to become due to the Counsel from the State under this 

contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such prior 

written consent.  Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to the State 

and the Office of State Procurement. 

8. 

 The State shall have the right to cancel this contract for any reason by giving the other party 

written notice sent to Counsel’s address by certified mail.  Counsel shall have the right to cancel 

this contract for any reason by giving the State 30 days written notice by certified mail.   

 



 Notice shall be sent Certified Mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses: 

 If to Board:  Dr. Ray Belton, System President 
    Southern University Board of Supervisors 
    Southern Branch Post Office 
    Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 
   
 If to Counsel: Winston G. DeCuir, Sr. 
  Brandon J. DeCuir 
  DeCuir, Clark & Adams, L.L.P. 
  732 North Boulevard 
  Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802 
 

9. 

 All records, reports, documents and other material delivered or transmitted to Counsel by 

State shall remain the property of State, and shall be returned by Counsel to the State, at Counsel’s 

expense, at termination or expiration of this contract.  All records, reports, documents, pleadings, 

exhibits or other material related to this contract and/or obtained or prepared by Counsel in 

connection with the performance of the services contracted for herein shall become the property 

of the State, and shall, upon request, be returned by Counsel to the State, at Counsel’s expense, at 

termination or expiration of this contract. 

10. 

 The State and Counsel acknowledge and agree that the Department of Justice has the right 

to review all records, reports, worksheets or any other material of Counsel related to this contract.  

The State and Counsel further agree that Counsel will furnish to the Department of Justice, upon 

request, copies of any and all records, reports, worksheets, bills, statements or any other material 

of Counsel related to this contract. 

11. 

 Counsel agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable: Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Act of 1972, Federal Executive Order 11246 as amended, the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act 

of 1974, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the 

Fair Housing Act of 1968 as amended, and contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  

 Counsel agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices, and will render services 

under this contract without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, veteran status, 

political affiliation, or disabilities. 



 Any act of discrimination committed by counsel, or failure to comply with these statutory 

obligations when applicable shall be grounds for termination of this contract. 

12. 

 This contract is not effective until approved in writing by the Board, the Attorney General 

and the Office of State Procurement in accordance with La. R.S. 39:1565 and 39:1595.1.  It is the 

responsibility of the contractor to advise the State in advance if contract funds or contract terms 

may be insufficient to complete contract objectives. 

13.  
 
 Any claim or controversy arising out of the contract shall be resolved by the provisions of 

LSA-R.S. 39:1672.2 – 1672.4.  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this ____day 

of ____________________, 2021. 

 

 

WITNESSES:    BOARD: 

      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN  
_________________________  UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURE AND 

MECHANICAL COLLEGE 
 

 
_________________________ BY:                                      
      DR. RAY BELTON, 

SYSTEM PRESIDENT 
 
 
 
 

COUNSEL: 
                      
WITNESSES:    DECUIR, CLARK & ADAMS, L.L.P. 
 
________________________ BY:                                      

Brandon J. DeCuir 
      TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:  72-1286643 
                                                      TELEPHONE NUMBER:  (225) 346-8716 
 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:    BOARD: 

      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN  
_________________________  UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURE AND 

MECHANICAL COLLEGE 
 

 
_________________________ BY:                                      
      Domoine D. Rutledge, 

BOARD CHAIRMAN 
 

 



ATTACHMENT #1 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING INVOICES 

 At the end of each calendar month, an itemization of all work performed, listing 

time by date for work performed by hours, down to the tenth of an hour with specific 

reference to the nature of the work performed (e.g. drafting of expert reports, research, 

review of files, etc.) should be invoiced to (agency) via Acuity Management System (if 

agency is using electronic billing system) OR in accordance with the agency’s request. 

 Reimbursement for all expenses must have receipts or documentation attached to 

the invoices or reimbursement will not be made.  Some examples of the receipts or 

documentation that will be accepted are given below: 

 1. Express Mail - a copy of the invoice from the vendor. 

 2. Travel expenses - purpose of the trip, miles traveled or airline ticket receipt, 

parking receipts, taxi receipts, hotel receipts (credit card receipt will not be accepted). 

 3. Invoices are to be submitted at the end of each calendar month and must 

indicate the amount of the contract, the amount billed to date and the remaining balance. 

 If your invoices are billed by each individual case that you have worked on please 

include a summary sheet for that month for that invoice.  Do not include any previous 

balances owed on the summary sheet. 

 LSA - R.S. 39:1618 calls for invoices to be submitted in the form of an affidavit. 















Tenure/Promotion Recommendations  
 
 

 
  

Applicant Rank/Status College Dept. Applied for: 

Recommendation by: 

Dept. Committee Dept. Chair College 
Committee Dean University 

Committee 
Associate Vice 

Chancellor 

Executive 
Vice 

Chancellor 

1. Mary C 
Carruth 

Assistant Professor/ 
Tenure Track 

Humanities & 
Interdisciplinary 
Studies 

English 

Tenure 
 

X 

Approved. 
 
The English and 
Philosophy 
Department 
Committee 
unanimously 
recommended Dr. 
Mary Carruth for 
tenure and 
promotion. 

Approved. 
 
The Department 
Chair concurs 
with the 
Department 
Committee that 
Dr. Mary Carruth 
is recommended 
for tenure and 
promotion. 

Approved. 
 
Dr. Carruth 
received 
unanimous vote 
in favor of tenure 
and promotion. 

Approved.  
 
The Dean concurred 
that Dr. Mary 
Carruth be granted 
tenure and 
promotion.  

Approved for 
promotion to 
Associate 
Professor with 
Tenure 

Approved. 
Dr. Mary C Carruth is 
approved for both 
Tenure and Promotion 
to rank of Associate 
Professor.  Meets or 
exceeds criteria in all 
areas of evaluation. 

Approved. 
Dr. Mary C 
Carruth is 
approved 
for both 
Tenure and 
Promotion 
to rank of 
Associate 
Professor. 

Promotion 
 

X 

Applicant Rank/Status College Dept. Applied for: 
Recommendation by: 

Dept. Committee Dept. Chair College 
Committee Dean University 

Committee 
Associate Vice 

Chancellor 
Executive Vice 

Chancellor 

2.  Melanie 
Johnson 

Assistant Professor/ 
Tenure Track 

Nelson 
Mandela 
College of 
Government 
and Social 
Science  

Political 
Science 

Promotion 
 
X 

Approved  
Within each 
category she has 
exceeded the 
required number of 
points to support 
tenure and 
promotion to 
Associate 
Professor. 

Approved 
Concurs with 
the assessment 
of the 
committee’s 
assessment.  

Approved  
Unanimously 
recommends 
awarding of 
tenure and 
promotion 

Approved 
Concurs with the 
findings and 
recommendations 
of prior committees’ 
evaluation. 
Recommends 
favorable 
consideration.  

Not scored.  
Found Ineligible to 
apply for 
promotion or 
tenure.  Dr. 
Johnson’s does not 
have a PhD in 
Political Science. 

Approved for Promotion 
To Associate Professor 
with Tenure. 
(Consistent with 
recommendation of 
Department and College 
and prior review, appeal 
and letter restoring Dr. 
Johnson to continue in 
tenure-track position) 

Approved for 
Promotion 
To Associate 
Professor with 
Tenure. 
 

Tenure 
 
 
X 



Tenure/Promotion Recommendations  
 
 

 
  

Applicant Rank/Status College Dept. Applied for: 
Recommendation by: 

Dept. Committee Dept. Chair College 
Committee Dean University 

Committee 
Associate Vice 

Chancellor Executive Vice Chancellor 

3. Herman 
Jackson 

Assistant 
Professor 
(Not on Tenure-
Track) 

College of 
Humanities & 
Interdisciplinary 
Studies 

Music 

Promotion 
 
X 

Approved. 
 
The RTP 
Department 
Committee 
requested evidence 
of Professional 
Training and 
Experience, 
Professional 
Activities and 
Community 
Services, University 
(Southern) Services, 
and Advisement as 
listed on Mr. 
Jackson’s 
Curriculum Vitae. 
 
Mr. Jackson 
provided additional 
information to the 
committee. 

Approved. 
 
Mr. Jackson has 
earned recognition 
on the national and 
international levels 
for music 
performance. 
Although he does 
not possess the 
terminal degree, his 
world-renowned 
performances and 
experiences in the 
music field 
compensate for the 
lack thereof. 

Approved. 
 
Mr. Jackson 
received a 
unanimous vote 
in favor of tenure 
from the College-
Level Evaluation 
Committee.  

Approved.  
 
The Dean concurs 
with the 
recommendations 
that Mr. Herman 
Jackson is granted 
tenure. 

Not 
Recommended 
for Promotion or 
Tenure.   
 
Found Ineligible to 
apply for 
promotion or 
tenure. 

Not approved for 
tenure. 
 
Does not have a tenure-
track appointment. No 
basis for review.  
 
Approved for longer-
term three-year, 
renewable contract at 
the rank of Associate 
Professor.  

Not approved for tenure. 
Approved for longer-term 
three-year, renewable 
contract at the rank of 
Associate Professor.   

Tenure 
 
X 





 







JOB CLASS 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
JOB CODE 

,, 

CAL ID 
v>c 

� Personnel Action Form 

. -·

I POSITION
NUMBER I I I I I I I 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC 

9 -MONTH X 

SUAREC 

12-MONTH

SUNO X SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 

x Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
x TenuredTrack 

__ Other (Specify) 

Non-Academic 
----

--- Part-time % of Full Time) 
____ Undergraduate Student 
____ Graduate Assistant 
____ Retiree Return To Work 

OTHER 

---

Reason Left N/ A 

--

(Specify) 

Civil Service 
Restricted 
Job Appointment 
Probationary 
Permanent Status 

Previous Employee N_/A ________________ _ --------------

Date Left NIA
---------------------

Sal a r y Paid $0.00 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment August, 2021 

----------------

Effective Date _A_ u�g�u _st_ 0_9""'",_2 _0_2_1 ______________ _ 
To May, 2022 

Name John- Clifford Obih SS# xxx-xx- Sex Male 
-----

(Last 4 digits only) 

Position Title: Assistant Professor Department: Natural Sciences 

Check One _ x__ Existing Position 

New Position 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

Expiration Date: 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Years Experience 25 Southern University Experience 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

Ph. D. - Physiology U of Ibadan - Ibadan, Nigeria 
BS - Physiology U of Ibadan - Ibadan, Nigeria 

Current Employer Southern University at New Orleans 

Personnel Action 

6.5 

Race* Black 

Year: 
1983 
1976 

Check One __ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Continuation 
___ Replacement 

Sabbatical 
x Other (Specify) 

Leave of Absence 
Sala.!2'. increase due to Promotion 

Recommended Salary $47,150 .00 
------------

Source of Funds State 

Salary Budgeted $47,150 .00 

------------------------------------------

Identify Budget: General Funds 
Form Code: BOR-10 Page 

Location 411001 -42500-6 l 003-4 l 000 
Item # 

Change of: 
From 

Position Assistant Professor 
...:..:..:=-.:.:c.:..:.:....:...;:....:...:...:.=..:..:.... _________ _ 

Status 
Salary Adjustment $

-'-
4

.:..
6,'-'3

:....:
5

:....:
0-'-.0

:..;
0

;__ 
___________ _ 

Associate Professor 

$47,150.00 
Financial Aid 

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

� Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side

Supervisor 

Vice Chancel! 

411001-42500 -61003-41000 

Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Dean/Unit Hea 

Chancellor 

To 

Amount 
$47,150.00 

Director/Personnel Date Vice President/Finance 
Business Affairs/Comptroller 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board 
of Supervisors 

O_ 
Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

3/5/21





3/5/21





3/5/21





3/5/21





Academic Affairs 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 

6400 PRESS DRIVE 

NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 70126 

(504) 286-5381 or 286-5327

March 10, 2021 

James H. Ammons, Jr., Ph.D. 
Executive Vice President-Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 

Dear Dr. Ammons: 

Per the Retention, Tenure, and Promotion Policy of Southern University at New Orleans, no salary 
increase or salary adjustment is required for the two faculty who are recommended for tenure only, i.e., 
Dr. Warren Jones and Dr. Krishna Poudel. 

Thank you. 

David Sunday Adegboye , Ph.D 
Vice-Chancellor for Academic and Evening and Weekend Affairs 

APPROVED: 
__________________________________

James H. Ammons, Jr. Ph.D. 
Executive Vice President-Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 

APPROV ED: 
 ______________________________________________________ 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity" 











P. Request Approval of Recommended Tenure and Tenure Track Faculty Appointments to Southern 
University Law Center for the 2021-2022 Academic Year (SULC)   

Deleso Alford  Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$143,100.00 State 

Linh Dai Assistant Prof and Fellow of the  
St. Louis A. Berry Civil Rights and Justice Institute 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

Charletta Fortson Director of the Common Law Bar Preparation 
Program and Assistant Professor of Law 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$132,000.00 Federal 

Phebe Poydras Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$146, 280.00 State 

Mark Roark Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$119,059.20 State 

Greg Sergienko Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 
/Professor of Law 

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$153,000.00 Federal 

Kenya Smith Professor of Law 
Tenure 
(SULC) 

$114,120.00 State 

Ryan Stoa Associate Prof. and Fellow of Cannabis and Hemp 
Law and Policy Institute  

Tenure Track 
(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

Shandrea Williams Associate Professor of Law 
Tenure Track 

(SULC) 

$108,000.00 Federal 

 





























































































































































































































































 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
   

 
 
 
February 26, 2021 
 
Dr. Ray L. Belton 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University System 
4th Floor. J. S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, LA 70126 
 
Dear Dr. Belton:  
 
I am pleased to submit the name of Dr. Adriel A. Hilton as Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management at Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO).  His annual salary will be 
$120,000.  Dr. Hilton’s outstanding professional career reflects progressive leadership responsibilities at 
several universities. In the positions he has held, Dr. Hilton was responsible for a wide range of student 
affairs and enrollment management functions.  At Seton Hill University, where he currently serves as 
Dean of Students, the retention rate is 83% and nearly 60% of its students graduate in six years. As a 
well-published scholar, Dr. Hilton’s research efforts include a focus on issues related to affirmative 
action, race neutral admission policies, the African-American male achievement gap as well as the 
recruitment and retention of students of color in postsecondary education.   
 
In addition to his professional achievements, he has received exceptional professional accolades from 
organizations, former colleagues and administrators with whom he worked. One former administrator 
described him as ideally suited for the position of Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management. He has the ability to work cross-functionally across the institution with students, 
administrators, faculty/advisors and professional staff.  
 
Dr. Hilton brings a passion for issues related to the academic achievement and persistence for students. 
His passion for facilitating student success is evident by his record of enhanced professional development 
beyond his doctoral degree.  Through his commitment to lifelong learning, he completed graduate, 
executive level administration and management courses at institutions such as Clark Atlanta University, 
Johns Hopkins University Carey School of Business, Carnegie Mellon’s Heinz School of Public Policy 
and the Harvard Business School.     
 
Dr. Hilton also brings a deep understanding of the challenges attendant to the position and a commitment 
in helping to propel the Southern University at New Orleans forward to achieve its student retention, 
enrollment and development goals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA  70126 
Phone: (504) 286-5311 Fax: (504) 286-5000 

www.suno.edu 

Office of the Chancellor                                              
 



 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
 
Dr. Hilton’s levels of responsibility in higher education in the areas of student counseling, diversity, 
retention, academic advising, enrollment management, programming and career planning make him a 
most suitable candidate to occupy the position of Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management. His selection to fill this position will bring a new perspective to the University which will 
benefit not only students but the entire campus community.  
 
I believe that Dr. Hilton has the knowledge, skills and abilities to become a major contributor to Southern 
University at New Orleans by enhancing its enrollment, retention and graduation rates.  Therefore, I am 
seeking your support and the approval of the Board of Supervisors for this recommendation. 
 
 
With kind regards, 

 
James H. Ammons, Jr., PhD 
Executive Vice-President-Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 
 
APPROVED:  __________________________________ 
                         Ray L. Belton, Ph. D. 
  President-Chancellor 
                         Southern University System                        
 
 
 



JOB CLASS 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

  JOB CODE Personnel Action Form POSITION 
NUMBER 

CAL ID 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUNO X SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH OTHER (Specify) 

Academic X Non-Academic Civil Service 

Temporary Part-Time (  % of Full Time) Restricted 

Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment 

Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary 

Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status 

Previous Employee Donna Grant Reason Left Deceased 

Date Left 6/10/2019 Salary Paid $84,670.00 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment To 

Effective Date 

Name Adriel Hilton   SS# xxx-xx- Sex Male Race* Black 

Position Title: V. C. for Student Affairs & Enrollment Mgmt. Department: Office of the Chancellor 

Check One X Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): US 

New Position Expiration Date: 
(Position  vacancy   authorization  form  must   be  processed  and  approved  to  fill 

existing and new positions.  Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 

applicable.) 

Years Experience  Southern University Experience 6 months 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge):   Year: 

Bachelor of Arts  Bus. Adm. (Finance) Morehous College, Atlanta , GA 2003 
Master of Applied Social Science Florida A&M University, Tallahassee, FL 2004 
Doctor of  Philosophy Higher Eduction (Administration) 2007 

Current Employer Seton Hill University. 

Personnel Action 

Check One New Appointment Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence 

Transfer X Replacement Other (Specify) 

Salary Budgeted Recommended Salary $120,000 

Source of Funds State 

Identify Budget: General Location 411001-46110-61002-45000 
Form Code: Page Item # 

Change of: 

From To 

Position r 
Status 

Salary Adjustment $0.00 $0.00 
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable): 

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount 

Southern University: General Fund $120,000 
*See Reverse Side

Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Supervisor Date Dean/Unit Head Date 

Vice Chancellor Date Chancellor Date 

Director/Personnel Date Vice President/Finance 

Business Affairs/Comptroller 

Date 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board 

Of Supervisor 

Date 

2/26/2021

$120,000



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and 

does not affect employment considerations. 
 
 ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one): 
 

   Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 
    
 RACE (Please check all that apply):   

 
   White.  Not of Hispanic origin.  A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

 
X Black.  Not of Hispanic Origin.  A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 
  

   
Hispanic.  A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
regardless of race. 

  

   
Asian or Pacific Islander.  A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands.  This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

  

   
American Indian or Alaskan Native.  A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognitions. 

  
 
COMMENTS: :  
      
      
      
      
 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE:  M-F, 8:00 am TO 5:00 pm 
 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR:  James H. Ammons, Jr. Ph.D. 
 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any)        
 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 
 

GUIDELINES:  All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 

are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 

starting to work.  All students are to bring with  them  clearance  from  the Financial Aid office, Statement 

of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule.  All prospective employees/students must bring  a  pictured 

ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 

visas, passport, and F-1/I-94.  The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 
 
Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 

offered. 
 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): 
     

TYPE  CODES  EXPIRES 
     
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization  US        
Resident Alien  RA        
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)  H1        
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)  J1        
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)  F1        
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”)  F0        

 
 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only! 

  
 
 
Rev. 6/30/2005 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
 Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
 Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 
 Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
 Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee) 
 Exemptions Survey Form 
 Proposed Employee Appointment 
 Proposed Employee Clearance 
 Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 



Revised: November 18, 2020  

Adriel A. Hilton, Ph.D. 
www.adrielhilton.com 

 

 

Contact Information 
 

 
EDUCATION 

 
Master of Business Administration Business Administration, May 2018 

Webster University, Saint Louis, MO 
George Herbert Walker School of Business & Technology 
GPA: 3.96 

 
Doctor of Philosophy Higher Education (Administration), December 2007 

Morgan State University, Baltimore, MD 
School of Education and Urban Studies 
Department of Advanced Studies, Leadership and Policy 
Dissertation Title: The Perceptions of Administrators 
Concerning the One Florida Initiative 
GPA: 4.0 

 
Master of Applied Social Science Social Science (Public Administration), August 2004 

Florida A&M University, Tallahassee, FL 
College of Arts and Sciences 
Department of History, Political Science, Geography, and 
African American Studies 
GPA: 3.54 

 
Bachelor of Arts Business Administration (Finance), Cum Laude, May 2003 

Morehouse College, Atlanta, GA 
Division of Business Administration 

 
ADDITIONAL COURSEWORK: 

 
Johns Hopkins University, Carey Business School 
Statistics, Fall 2008 

 
Florida A&M University, College of Education 
Educational Leadership, Twenty-seven hours of graduate coursework, 2004 – 2005 

 
Carnegie Mellon University, H. John Heinz III School of Public Policy & Management 
Quantitative Skills Summer Program, Summer 2004 

http://www.adrielhilton.com/


2 
 

 

Harvard Business School 
Summer Venture and Management Program, Summer 2002 

 
Clark Atlanta University, School of Business Administration 
Personal Finance Course, Fall 2002 

 
Georgia State University, J. Mack Robinson College of Business 
Financial Accounting Course, Summer 2001 

 
Business Courses Completed: 

 
 Advanced Corporate Finance 
 Strategy and Competition 
 Finance 
 Managerial Economics 
 Management Accounting 
 Corporate Responsibility and Society 
 Operations and Project Management 
 Marketing 

 
Higher Education Courses Completed: 

 
 Pro-Seminar in Higher Education 
 Historical Foundations of Higher Education 
 Higher Education Policy Analysis 
 Quality Assurance and Accountability in Higher Education 
 Diversity and Multiculturalism in Higher Education 
 Organizational Theory and Administration/Management in Higher Education 
 Leadership in Higher Education 
 Student Development Theory 

 
Educational Leadership Courses Completed: 

 
 Leadership and Communication Technologies in Teaching and Learning Organizations 
 Self and Interpersonal Contexts in Teaching and Learning Organizations 
 Organizational Behavior in Educational Settings 
 Curriculum and Public Policy 
 Race, Class, and Gender: Policy Issues in Leadership 
 School Finance and Educational Policy 

 
Research Courses Completed: 

 
 Qualitative Research Methods in Education 
 Advanced Qualitative Research Methods 
 Applied Social Research (Mixed Methods Research) 
 Quantitative Data Analysis I 
 Quantitative Data Analysis II 



3 
 

 

 Research Practicum in Higher Education 
 

TEACHING EXPERIENCES 
 

Fall 2020 Bellarmine University 
Annsley Frazier Thornton School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Introduction to Educational Research 
HRED – 602 – Online 

 
Fall 2020 Wilmington University 

School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Assessment of Student Learning Outside of the Classroom 
MHE –7302 – Online 

 
Summer 2020 Bellarmine University 

Annsley Frazier Thornton School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Multicultural Theory, Competencies, and Application 
HRED – 620 – Online 

 
Summer 2020 Lincoln University of Missouri 

School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Philanthropy and Higher Education 
HED – 525 – Online 
*** I designed course using Canvas. 

 
Spring 2020 Wilmington University 

School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Academic Research and Writing 
MHE –7001 – Online 

 
Spring 2020 Lincoln University of Missouri 

School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Financial Management for Higher Education 
HED – 520 – Online 
*** I designed course using Canvas 

 
Fall 2019 North Park University 

School of Business and Nonprofit Management 
Adjunct Faculty 
Negotiation and Influence 
SBNM 5041 – Online 



4 
 

 

Fall 2019 North Park University 
School of Business and Nonprofit Management 
Adjunct Faculty 
Diversity and Conflict 
SBNM 5040 – Online 

 
Summer 2019 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Teaching and Working in a Multicultural Setting 
EDU – 531 – Online 
***I co-designed course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Summer 2019 Bellarmine University 

Annsley Frazier Thornton School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Ethics, Law and Social Justice in Higher 
Education 
HRED – 656 – Online 
*** I designed course using Moodle. 

 
Spring 2019 Fayetteville State University 

College of Education 
Adjunct Assistant Professor 
Academic Programs in Colleges and Universities 
ELHE 713 – Online 
*** I designed course using Canvas. 

 
Spring 2019 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Teaching and Working in a Multicultural Setting 
EDU – 531 – Online 
***I co-designed course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Fall 2018 Bellarmine University 

Annsley Frazier Thornton School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Leadership, Administration, and Governance in Higher 
Education 
HRED – 805 – Online 
*** I designed course using Moodle. 

 
Fall 2018 Seton Hill University 

Liberal Arts Curriculum 
Adjunct Faculty 
Connections (First Year Experience Course) 
SLA 102 



5 
 

 

Summer 2018 Northeastern University 
College of Professional Studies 
Lecturer 
Faculty, Curriculum and Academic Community 
EDU 6202 – Online 

 
Summer 2018 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Teaching and Working in a Multicultural Setting 
EDU – 531 – Online 
***I co-designed course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Spring 2018 Northeastern University 

College of Professional Studies 
Lecturer 
Education Law, Policy and Finance 
EDU 6203 – Online 

 
Spring 2018 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Teaching and Working in a Multicultural Setting 
EDU – 531 – Online 
*** I co-designed course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Fall 2017 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Teaching and Working in a Multicultural Setting 
EDU – 531 – Online 
*** I co-designed course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Summer 2017 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Teaching and Working in a Multicultural Setting 
EDU – 531 – Online 
*** I co-designed course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Spring 2017 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Multicultural Issues in Higher Education 
HEA – 542 – Online 
*** I designed the course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Summer 2015 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 



6 
 

 

Adjunct Faculty 
Multicultural Issues in Higher Education 
HEA – 542 – Online 
*** I designed the course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Summer 2014 Tiffin University 

School of Graduate and Distance Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Higher Education Finance and Budgeting 
EDU – 640 – Online 

 
Summer 2014 Upper Iowa University 

Division of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Legal Implications for the Administrator 
HEA – 522- Online 

 
Spring 2014 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Multicultural Issues in Higher Education 
HEA – 542 – Online 
*** I designed the course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Fall 2012 Upper Iowa University 

Division of General Studies 
Adjunct Faculty 
Wellness Strategies (First Year Experience) 
ID – 119 

 
Summer 2012 Upper Iowa University 

Andres School of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Special Topics in Higher Education: Multicultural Issues in 
Higher Education 
HEA – 550 - Online 
*** I designed the course using Pearson LearningStudios. 

 
Fall 2011 Upper Iowa University 

Division of General Studies 
Adjunct Faculty 
Wellness Strategies (First Year Experience) 
ID - 119 

 
Summer 2011 University of Northern Iowa 

College of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Seminar in Postsecondary Education: Diversity in Higher 
Education 



7 
 

 

170:289-04 
*** I designed the course. 

 
Fall 2010 Upper Iowa University 

Division of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Ethical Dilemmas of Higher Education 
HEA - 506 

 
Fall 2010 Upper Iowa University 

Division of General Studies 
Adjunct Faculty 
Wellness Strategies (First Year Experience) 
ID - 119 

 
Summer 2010 Upper Iowa University 

Division of Education 
Adjunct Faculty 
Legal Implications for the Administrator 
HEA - 522 

 
Summer 2009 The Art Institute of Washington 

General Education 
Instructor 
First Year Experience/Life Skills 
AI 101 – LS095 

 
Summer 2009 Clarion University of Pennsylvania 

Department of Education 
Frederick Douglass Teaching Scholar 
Educational Psychology (Co-Taught) 
ED 122 - Online 

 
Spring 2009 The Art Institute of Washington 

General Education 
Instructor 
Introduction to Microsoft Office 

 
Fall 2008 Baltimore City Community College 

Department of Public Services, Education, and Social 
Sciences, 
Adjunct Faculty 
Introduction to Philosophy PHI 101 

 
November 2003 – May 2004 Leon County Public School System 

Alternate Teacher 
Taught students on an interim basis at the elementary, middle, and high school levels. 

 
RESEARCH CONCENTRATION 



8 
 

 
 

Minorities’ Access and Achievement in Higher Education 
 Affirmative Action 
 Impact of Proliferation of Race Neutral Admission Policies 
 African American Male Achievement Gap: The Causes and Remedies 
 Relevance of Historically Black Colleges and Universities 
 Recruitment and Retention of Students of Color in Higher Education 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCES 

May 2018 – Present Dean of Students & Diversity Officer 
Seton Hill University 

 Provide strategic vision and leadership for an integrated unit that invigorates campus life; creating an 
engaged, inclusive and vibrant community dedicated to student success through campus engagement; 

 Enhance a student culture where diversity is honored and where students learn to respect differences, 
demonstrate campus pride and exercise leadership; 

 Collect and interpret student satisfaction, retention, and success data to inform the development of 
involvement opportunities and co-curricular programs; 

 Ensure alignment of student learning outcomes for Student Affairs programming with the University 
academic learning outcomes; 

 Ensure a comprehensive New Student Orientation program that serves first year and transfer students, 
and their families; 

 Serve as a Title IX Deputy Coordinator; 
 Review and update annually the Student Handbook; 
 Assist in the coordination and execution of university-wide events 
 Develop effective quantitative and qualitative assessment tools related to participation and quality of 

programs and initiatives; 
 Provide leadership for the development, implementation and evaluation of policies and regulations 

pertaining to Student Affairs; 
 Responsible for fiscal responsibility, budget oversight, and budget allocation in line with strategic 

priorities; 
 Serve as a member of the emergency on-call team; 
 Serve as a liaison between clubs/organization leadership and advisors; 
 Collaborate with campus constituents to develop and implement a comprehensive enrollment, transition 

and retention plan for diverse student populations; and 
 Create and implement training for student leaders and staff emphasizing cultural competencies, 

awareness, diversity and inclusion. 
 

January 2017 – April 2018  Adjunct Assistant Professor 
Webster University 

 
 Taught graduate-level courses in the George Herbert Walker School of Business & Technology; 

o Courses include: 
 BUSN 5000: Business 
 MNGT 5000: Management 
 MNGT 5650: Management and Strategy 
 MNGT 5670: Managerial Leadership 



9 
 

 

 Developed and managed class syllabus and ensured that the content met department and college 
standards; 

 Planned and created lectures, in-class discussions and assignments; 
 Assessed grades for students based on participation, performance in class assignments, papers, quizzes 

and examinations; and 
 Collaborated with colleagues on course curriculum. 

 
October 2016 – April 2018 Director of Extended Campus, Myrtle Beach 

Metropolitan 
Webster University 

 
 Served as Chief Administrative Officer at the extended campus overseeing student recruitment, 

advising, financial aid, marketing, course planning and budgets; 
 Assisted with the day-to-day operations of the extended campus; 
 Provided direct supervision to assigned departments; 
 Implemented programs and policies to achieve the overall enrollment goals and objectives of the 

University; 
 Established relationships and interacted with various constituent groups to promote the University’s 

goals, objectives and policies; 
 Maintained excellent working relationships with the University’s student services, development, global 

marketing and communications, other University officers, and the Veterans Administration; 
 Delegated authority and responsibility to administrators to implement decisions on internal matters to 

accomplish the mission of the University; and 
 Investigated and resolved conflicts and issues within the University. 

 
January 2016 – July 2016 Chief of Staff & Executive Assistant to 

the President 
Grambling State University 

 
 Assisted with the day-to-day operations of the President’s Office; 
 Provided direct supervision to assigned departments; 
 Ensured that policies and procedures approved by the University Administration were implemented; 
 Advised the President on strategies and methods to improve the University’s operational effectiveness; 
 Served as the President’s liaison with university administration, faculty, staff and students and 

responded to requests for assistance from same; 
 Served as liaison with college-wide councils and committees and the college community; 
 Conferred with University governing boards to implement policies and procedures concerning the 

operation of the University and represented the University at Board meetings, as necessary; 
 Interacted and negotiated with administrative officials, business executives, legislators, government 

officials, community and civic groups and alumni to promote the University’s goals, objectives and 
policies as well as public service objectives; 

 Delegated authority and responsibility to administrators to implement executive level decisions on 
internal matters to accomplish the mission of the University; 

 Investigated and resolved conflicts and issues within the University; and 
 Performed other duties as assigned by the President. 



10 
 

 

July 2014 – December 2015 Assistant Professor & Director, Higher 
Education Student Affairs Program (formerly 
College Student Personnel Program) 
Western Carolina University 

 Taught graduate-level courses in the M.Ed. in Higher Education Student Affairs (formerly College 
Student Personnel) program; 

o Courses included: 
 HESA 530: (CSP 530): Diversity in Higher Education (formerly College Student 

Subcultures & Student Characteristics) 
 HESA 621 (CSP 621): Theories of College Student Development 
 HESA 630 (CSP 630): Legal & Ethical Issues for Higher Education Student Affairs 
 EDHE 650: Program Development and Evaluation 
 EDL 889: Disquisition in Educational Leadership 

 Created admission criteria and adhered to them; 
 Partnered with other units of the University (including Student Affairs, Academic Affairs and Public 

Relations/Marketing) in recruitment efforts; 
 Engaged with other universities and colleges for the purposes of recruitment and career placement for 

graduates; 
 Evaluated the potential for offering courses in hybrid or totally online formats; 
 Reviewed course topics and sequencing and ensured that offerings are reliably planned and scheduled 

for students and full and part-time faculty; 
 Benchmarked Program policies, curriculum and quality with comparable and aspirational student affairs 

programs; and 
 Clarified funding sources and determined ways to create more consistent funding packages for students. 

 
November 2012 – November 2013 Assistant Vice President for Inclusion 

Initiatives 
Grand Valley State University 

 Worked with deans, colleges, departments/schools, and divisions to provide informational resources, 
consultation and other support that helped to enhance the University’s inclusion work in various areas 
such as strategic plan implementation, program evaluation, pipeline issues, recruitment and retention 
initiatives for faculty, staff and students; 

 Served as a liaison to the Office of Multicultural Affairs, Women’s Center, and the Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual and Transgender Center; and 

 Interfaced with Human Resources, Office of the Provost, Institutional Marketing, Admissions, Office of 
Development, the Padnos International Center, and the Office of Graduate Studies through collaborative 
projects and committee participation. 

November 2010 – November 2012 Executive Assistant to the President, Chief 
Diversity Officer & Assistant Secretary to the 
Board of Trustees 
Upper Iowa University 

 Effectively supported and communicated the mission and vision of Upper Iowa University to diverse 
constituencies; 

 Helped secure additional campus and external funding for programs and initiatives advancing diversity; 



11 
 

 

 Advised the President on diversity issues; 

 Worked in partnership with the Office of Admissions to provide input that enhanced diversity within the 
student body; 

 Served as a member of the Retention Committee and assisted with the development of initiatives that 
improved retention among diverse student constituencies; 

 Regularly evaluated the level of diversity awareness, activity, and proficiency resulting from initiatives 
involving the University community; 

 Assisted in developing programs that fostered intercultural dialogue and ensured the highest benefits 
from student diversity programs, community service and training; 

 
 Assisted with the development and delivery of programming emphasizing diversity and inclusiveness; 

 Provided assistance and served as a resource to administrators, staff, and Division Chairs as appropriate 
to help assure effective implementation of diversity initiatives including the hiring and retention of a 
diverse faculty and staff; 

 Formulated goals and provided leadership in the implementation of plans that: promoted a campus 
culture that values diversity and inclusiveness and supported a campus community that was welcoming 
and supportive of all members; 

 Demonstrated the ability to anticipate problems, critical issues and opportunities as they arise and 
advised the President and other senior officers of the University accordingly; 

 Provided coordination and liaison with other members of the senior staff, the Board of Trustees and 
other constituencies both on and off the campus; 

 Served as Assistant Secretary of the Board of Trustees and provided support for the Board in 
communications, logistics, planning, preparation of meeting materials, and special projects as 
determined by the President and/or Board Chair; 

 Exercised independent judgment in the negotiation of employment and vendor contracts on behalf of the 
University; 

 Managed communications in and out of the President’s office; reviewed incoming mail, drafted 
responses as needed, composed letters and reports, reviewed drafts and final copies of all 
correspondence, surveys, reports for the President’s signature; 

 Supported the President in fulfilling both community and professional service obligations; 

 Assisted with the planning and coordination of special and University-wide events; 

 Coordinated and researched/designed as well as helped prepare all major campus reports and surveys 
required by state and national organizations; and 

 Prepared and managed the budget for the Office of the President and provided budget analysis and 
forecasting, expense tracking, and reconciling. 

September 2009 – October 2010 Executive Assistant to the President & Assistant 
Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
Upper Iowa University 



12 
 

 

 Demonstrated the ability to anticipate problems, critical issues and opportunities as they arise and 
advised the President and other senior officers of the University accordingly; 

 Provided coordination and liaison with other members of the senior staff, the Board of Trustees and 
other constituencies both on and off the campus; 

 Served as Assistant Secretary of the Board of Trustees and provided support for the Board in 
communications, logistics, planning, preparation of meeting materials, and special projects as 
determined by the President and/or Board Chair; 

 Exercised independent judgment in the negotiation of employment and vendor contracts on behalf of the 
University; 

 Managed communications in and out of the President’s office; reviewed incoming mail, drafted 
responses as needed, composed letters and reports, reviewed drafts and final copies of all 
correspondence, surveys, reports for the President’s signature; 

 Supported the President in fulfilling both community and professional service obligations; 

 Assisted with the planning and coordination of special and University-wide events; 

 Coordinated and research/design as well as help prepare all major campus reports and surveys required 
by state and national organizations; and 

 Prepared and managed the budget for the Office of the President and provided budget analysis and 
forecasting, expense tracking, and reconciling. 

July 2009 – August 2009 Public Policy Fellow 
September 2007 – May 2009 Greater Baltimore Committee 

 
 Prepared meeting agendas and minutes for Board of Directors meetings; 

 Coordinated activities for the President and CEO’s Advisory Council; 

 Provided leadership in preparing testimony and position papers on behalf of the President and CEO and 
the Director of Government Relations for state legislative sessions; 

 Prepared talking points, speeches, proclamations, and letters for the President & CEO; 

 Prepared scripts for President and CEO for Issues and Answers, a public affairs program on regional 
cable channels; 

 Researched and briefed President and CEO on various current affairs issues and events; 

 Researched, developed, and presented testimony on community issues at public hearings on behalf of 
the organization; 

 Reviewed RFPs for funding for the Baltimore Workforce Investment Board Youth Council on behalf of 
the President and CEO; and 

 Marketed the Greater Baltimore Committee to businesses and non-profit organizations in the region to 
recruit new members. 



13 
 

 

June 2009 - July 2009 Visiting Scholar 
Clarion University of Pennsylvania 
Office of the Provost and Vice 
President for Academic Affairs 

 
 Drafted basic design for Master’s and Educational Specialist programs in Higher Education 

Administration to be offered in the near future; 

 Composed draft of joint five year Bachelor's and Master’s program in Criminal Justice to be offered in 
the near future; and 

 Assisted the Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs in the recruitment efforts of 
talented undergraduate and graduate students. 

December 2006 – August 2007 Graduate Assistant 
Morgan State University 
Department of Psychology 

 Coordinated grant writing efforts for the new psychometrics program; 

 Developed and implemented marketing and recruitment strategies in collaboration with the university’s 
Office of Public Relations and Communications (OPRC), to increase program awareness and 
enrollment; 

 Researched and directed the development of marketing materials in conjunction with personnel in the 
OPRC; 

 Provided leadership to disseminate marketing materials and information to key colleges, universities, 
public schools and partnering state colleges and universities to attract and recruit the first cohort of 
students for the new psychometrics program; 

 Provided leadership in developing a Memorandum of Understanding with Educational Testing Service; 

 Worked collaboratively with the Graduate Council Curriculum Committee to develop an appropriate 
curriculum for the new psychometrics program; 

 Served as the graduate student representative on the University Council; 

 Served as president of the Morgan Graduate Student Association; and 

 Served as a member of the institution’s Graduate Student Concerns Committee. 

October 2005 – November 2006 Administrative Assistant 
Morgan State University 

 
 As primary assistant to the chair, provided leadership in developing and editing the draft Middle States 

Self Study report for accreditation; 

 Coordinated successful launch of the Master’s in Higher Education program; 

 Assisted students with orientation and advised students about their doctoral program plans; 



14 
 

 

 Provided oversight for the development and production of department’s marketing brochures and 
handbook in conjunction university’s OPRC; and 

 Led the creation of a better system to track departmental budget. The new system allowed department 
leadership to follow expenditures and prevent over-spending. 

July 2005 – August 2005 Counselor 
Tallahassee Community College 
Counseling Center, Student Affairs 

 
 Developed and implemented two-year matriculation plans for students to transfer to area colleges and 

universities; 

 Provided undergraduate students academic counseling and advising and assisted students with career 
planning; and 

 Coordinated and implemented a variety of activities for new and transfer students to become acclimated 
with the campus community. 

September 2004 – June 2005 Legislative Analyst Intern 
Florida Senate 
Committee on Education 

 
 Researched and drafted bill analyses for senators; 

 Prepared and edited legislative reports, proposed legislation, and amendments; 

 Reviewed and researched constituent inquiries and concerns directed to senators; and 

 Provided reports to legislators and tracked inquiries as well as worked to ensure accuracy of constituent 
responses. 

September 2004 – May 2005 Graduate Assistant 
Florida A&M University 
College of Education 

 
 Researched and drafted reports and presentations for professors for national and state level conferences; 

 Provided data collection and analysis of National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education 
accreditation procedures for professors; 

 Led the effort to create marketing materials for the Master’s of Educational Leadership program; 

 Coordinated recruitment efforts for the Master’s of Educational Leadership program; and 

 Conducted research for the “Teacher for the New Era” grant, which explored best practices for teacher 
training. 

June 2004 – August 2004 Research Assistant 
Carnegie Mellon University 
H. John Heinz III School of Public 
Policy & Management 



15 
 

 

Institute for the Study of Information 
Technology and Society (InSITeS) 

 
 Assisted with implementation of the Virtual Agora Project, a community engagement and research 

initiative designed to improve community involvement among citizens; 

 Identified and processed human subjects to participate in the study; and 

 Implemented research protocols for interdisciplinary research and teaching. 

September 2003 – June 2004 Graduate Assistant 
Florida A & M University 
Department of Housing 

 
 Coordinated programs, events, workshops, and professional development seminars for the residence 

hall tenants; 

 Managed the resident assistants and utilized conflict resolution and time management skills within the 
residence hall to maintain environment conducive to healthful living and studying; and 

 Developed and implemented an efficient and effective process to improve customer service and student 
satisfaction with their residence hall experience. 

September 2002 - April 2003 Student Research Assistant 
Morehouse College 
Department of Sociology 

 
 Facilitated the dissemination of correspondence for research studies and for interactions with human 

subjects; and 

 Managed daily operations of the department in the absence of the Department Chair. 

Summer 2001 & 2002 UNCF Coca-Cola Scholar Intern 
Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. 
Finance and Route Accounting 

 
 Researched and compiled financial data that was fundamental to the process of a corporate acquisition – 

a regional competitor; 

 Performed audits of drivers for route accountants; and 

 Conducted assessments of accounts and drivers and their routes as part of a review of company’s daily 
operations. 

September 2000 – May 2001 Intern 
Morehouse College 
Office of Community Service 
Emma Joe Adams Public Service Institute 

 
 Worked for positive change within the West-End Community by developing community’s first 

newsletters; 



16 
 

 

 Provided oversight of the community meetings, drafting minutes and disseminating them to the 
community; 

 Developed and implemented public relations strategies to help community effectively market its 
activities and events; and 

 Utilized critical computer skills to enhance the efficiency and operations of the office. 

Summer 2000 Intern 
Guardian Life Insurance Company 

 
 Provided leadership in preparing draft financial statements for insurance and pension plans; and 

 Employed quantitative skills by using Excel and Quicken Accounting Software to carry out the duties of 
the Accounting Division. 

September 1998 – July 1999 Intern 
Akerman, Senterfitt & Eidson, P.A. 

 
 Conducted research and compiled information for attorneys; and 

 Coordinated daily correspondence for high profile cases. 

Summer 1998 Clerk 
United States Securities and Exchange Commission 

 
 Created Microsoft Excel spreadsheets used by attorneys in preparation for cases; and 

 Researched and organized files for cases utilizing the commission’s law library. 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 

June 2007 – March 2008 Vice President for Conference Affairs 
National Black Graduate Student 
Association, Inc. 

 
 Planned and directed the annual National Black Graduate Student Conference and chaired the National 

Conference Committee; 

 Developed and disseminated marketing materials and press releases to the media and higher education 
institutions; 

 Coordinated sponsorship activities which enhanced cost effectiveness of the conference; 

 Provided leadership and implemented a strategic plan to increase conference attendance, enhance 
sponsorship support, and improve financials; and 

 Developed and implemented a strategic plan to improve students, employers, and graduate schools’ 
participation in the Annual Career and Graduate School Fair. 



17 
 

 

July 2005 – August 2005 Academic & Student Affairs Intern 
Florida Board of Governors 
State University System of Florida 

 
 Orchestrated special projects with staff, which included admission workshops and the Southern 

Regional Education Board’s academic common market; and 
 

 Organized review of new programs at state universities to ensure compliance with established approval 
and articulation criteria, which resulted in improvements and effectiveness in several critical areas. 

May 2004 – June 2004 Graduate Intern 
City of Tallahassee, TalTran 
Planning and Marketing Department 

 
 Analyzed routes and schedules to gain increased efficiency for this regional transportation system; 

 Investigated and evaluated revenue intake through Microsoft Excel spreadsheets – developed 
spreadsheets; and 

 Provided assistance with marketing materials for the Tallahassee Renaissance initiative to enhance 
ridership on the city’s bus system – as well as awareness of the benefits of the system. 

INSTITUTES & SEMINARS 
 

Advanced Investigations of Sexual Misconduct, D. Stafford & Associates, September 2018, Greensburg, 
PA 
This three day intensive training class is designed for campus administrators and investigators as well as 
Conduct and Title IX Investigators who have responsibility for conducting and overseeing sex crimes 
investigations on their college campuses. Attendees learned how to investigate sex crimes in higher education 
from start to finish with special emphasis on complying with the Clery Act and Title IX regulations. 

 
Waccama Chapter of the American Leadership Forum Fellow, Class V, August 2017 – January 2018 
Myrtle Beach, SC 
The American Leadership Forum is a highly competitive program designed to expose leaders to new processes 
of collaborative leadership with regional focus. The program provides a unique opportunity for communication 
across sectors by bringing together members of diverse groups. The American Leadership Forum is centered on 
the premise that good leadership depends upon cultivating a sense of civic responsibility, a climate of trust and 
open dialogue among divergent sectors and a positive vision, along with collaborative problem solving skills. 
The overriding goal of the program is to foster a sense of personal responsibility for change in the community 
and to provide a pivotal experience that enhances growth and development of each participant. 

 
Higher Education Leadership Foundation Fellow, Leadership Institute, Gamma Cohort, June 2016 - 
Birmingham, AL 
The Leadership Institute is a highly competitive program designed to expose participants to industry leaders 
who share best practices rooted in empirical research and experience while also providing opportunities for the 
personal and professional development of attendees. The Leadership Institute also addressed the role 
participants play as vital members in the decision-making processes at their respective institutions. 



18 
 

 

Association for the Study of Higher Education, Council for the Advancement of Higher Education 
Programs, Early Career Faculty Teaching Workshop, November 2015 – Denver, CO 
The Early Career Faculty Teaching Workshop is a competitive program designed for pre-tenure faculty and 
administrators returning to the classroom participate in a special workshop focused on teaching and 
dissertation/thesis advising. Teaching content and pedagogy experts share their insights on teaching core 
subjects such as the history of higher education, organizational theory and administration, faculty issues, and 
gender and diversity. In addition, a panel of experienced dissertation/thesis advisors discuss this critically 
important task as well as subjects such as tactics for helping students select a topic and research methodology, 
keeping advisees on track to completion, and time management issues for faculty working with dissertation 
students. 

 
Leadership Asheville 34 Participant, September 2015 – December 2015, Asheville, NC 
Leadership Asheville strives to, “Enhance community leadership by developing, connecting, and mobilizing 
citizens throughout the region.” Each year, 30 leaders are chosen to participate in the highly coveted program. 
The leaders spend nine months learning about the community and working on collaborative projects. In 
addition, Leadership Asheville allows participants to introduce themselves and highlight the successes of their 
organizations during the various sessions that the participants engage in throughout the course of the year. Each 
session is an opportunity for individuals to listen, learn and act. 

 
Association for the Study of Higher Education, The Council of Ethnic Participation’s Mentor-Protégé 
Program, November 2014 – Washington, DC 
The Council on Ethnic Participation’s Mentor-Protégé Program (MPP) is a competitive program designed to 
give participants mutually beneficial mentoring relationships. To facilitate this process, protégés are paired with 
mentors based on primary scholarly and professional interests that will contribute to the personal and 
professional development of both protégé and mentor. The MPP highly encourages graduate students, post- 
doctoral fellows, administrators, student affairs personnel, as well as junior and senior faculty to participate in 
this mentoring program. 

 
7 Habits of Highly Effective People Workshop 
September 2013 
In a full-day 7 Habits of Highly Effective People Workshop, participants learn principles that propel them 
toward greater self-fulfillment. Participants discover how to maximize performance and reach career goals by 
avoiding both dependence on others and independence, and moving on to where real success lies—being 
interdependent. This allows participants to experience first-hand the rewards of superb cooperation and 
collaboration. 

 
University Leadership 2013 
Grand Valley State University 
January – February 2013 – Allendale, MI 
The purpose of the program is to enhance emerging leaders at Grand Valley State University (GVSU) through a 
discussion of challenges confronting higher education and an examination of the values and goals that guide 
GVSU. Selected participant learned and engaged with other GVSU leaders through dynamic and interactive 
discussions on the following topics: 

 
 Higher Education Issues and Trends 
 Current Issues and Future Directions 
 The Academic Program 
 Inclusion & Equity 



19 
 

 

 University Development 
 Finance and External Relations 
 Students and Campus Life 
 International Issues 

 
American Educational Research Association, Committee on Scholars of Color in Education Research and 
Mentoring, April 2011 – New Orleans, LA 
The Committee was formed to help foster relationships between junior and senior scholars and impact 
education research through collaborative work. Junior scholars are placed with tenured faculty members and 
senior scholars and researchers who participate in a formal mentoring program for one-academic year. These 
mentors and mentees continue to connect and/or collaborate on research and presentations. 

 
William L. Boyd National Educational Politics Workshop, April 2011 – New Orleans, LA 
This is a competitive workshop designed to give emerging scholars the opportunity to learn about current and 
promising research in the politics of education field, participate in break-out sessions related to their interests, 
and interact with leading scholars in educational politics relevant to their areas of interest. 

 
American Association of Blacks in Higher Education, Leadership and Mentoring Institute Participant, 
July 2009 – Birmingham, AL 
The 2009 Leadership & Mentoring Institute is highly competitive, consisting of very intense, week-long course 
work integrating projects along with other activities to help prepare individuals for senior leadership positions 
as faculty and/or administrators in higher education. The Institute includes opportunities for networking and 
collaborating. 

 
Association for the Study of Higher Education, Institute on Critical Policy Research and Analysis Fellow, 
July 2009 – Boulder, CO 
The very competitive Institute on Critical Policy Research and Analysis brought an impressive group of policy 
scholars and guest speakers together to discuss various issues related to policy research. The Institute supported 
the role of new capacity and a community of scholars to promote equity and critical policy analysis within and 
beyond the academy, pushing the boundaries to integrate more critical and equity-minded research to the field 
of higher education. 

 
Pennsylvania Black Conference on Higher Education, Institute for Educational Management and 
Leadership Participant, June 2009 – University Park, PA 
The Pennsylvania Black Conference on Higher Education, Institute for Educational Management and 
Leadership program, focuses on key issues affecting the future of higher education in Pennsylvania and 
provides input to various sectors of government, education and community that impacts the lives of 
underrepresented groups at Pennsylvania colleges and universities. 

Johns Hopkins University, Carey Business School 
Leadership Development Program, Leadership Academy, August 2008 
The Leadership and Development Program supports the advancement of high potential managers by offering 
education in management and leadership theory and practice. The program enhances leadership and career 
management skills. 

 
Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, New Connections: Bringing Diversity to Robert Wood Johnson 
Foundation Grant Making and Increasing Secondary Data Analysis Seminar Participant, June 2008 - 
Washington, DC 



20 
 

 

The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation’s (RWJF) New Connections Initiative is designed to expand the 
diversity of perspectives that inform RWJF programming and introduce new researchers and scholars to the 
work of the Foundation, while simultaneously helping to meet staff needs for data analysis that measures 
progress toward program objectives. 

American Educational Research Association, The Asa G. Hilliard III and Barbara A. Sizemore Research 
Course on African Americans and Education Program Participant, March 2008 – New York, NY 
This highly competitive course aims to advance the research skills and competencies of graduate students with 
an interest in the study of African Americans and education. The Asa G. Hilliard III and Barbara A. Sizemore 
course introduces students to the fundamentals of developing a research agenda and manuscripts for publication 
as well as mentoring. 

 
American Educational Research Association, Division J Emerging Scholars Participant, April 2007 – 
Chicago, IL 
This competitive program is designed to provide support in writing, grant activity, work life balance, and 
professional networking. The Emerging Scholars program supports advanced doctoral students as well as new 
faculty and higher education professionals and policy makers. 

 
Finger Lakes Environmental Film Festival Fellow, Ithaca College, March 2007- Ithaca, NY 
Eleven graduate students representing eight universities were accepted to attend Ithaca College’s 10th annual 
Finger Lakes Environmental Film Festival (FLEFF). This fellowship program is directed toward emerging 
scholars of color interested in environmental and sustainability issues. The FLEFF fellowships provide full 
funding to attend the weeklong festival, join in classroom discussion with affiliated faculty, attend screenings 
and meet visiting artists, speakers and filmmakers. 

 
Association for the Study of Higher Education, Graduate Student Policy Seminar Participant, November 
2006 – Anaheim, CA 
The Graduate Student Policy Seminar is a competitive opportunity for doctoral students to interact with 
researchers and policymakers who are knowledgeable about critical public policy issues that impact the study of 
higher education. This seminar educates advanced doctoral students about the different career paths in public 
policy and higher education as well as how researchers can make a difference with policy research. 

 
College Leadership Florida Class VI, University of South Florida, January 2005 
College Leadership Florida is a competitive program for approximately 50 undergraduate and graduate students 
within the State of Florida. The program allows the students exposure too many societal and economic issues 
facing the state. College Leadership Florida also provides leadership development sessions and mentoring by 
Florida’s leaders. 

 
Carnegie Mellon University, H. John Heinz III School of Public Policy & Management, Quantitative 
Skills Summer Program, July – August 2004 
The Quantitative Skills Summer Program at the Heinz School is designed to prepare students for the 
quantitative nature of the field of public policy. The focus of the program was mainly on probability and its 
applications to public policy problems as well as algebraic approaches to structuring and solving word 
problems. 

 
Harvard Business School 
Summer Venture in Management Program, June 2002 
The Harvard Business School’s Summer Venture in Management Program is a competitive one week 
management training program designed to increase diversity and opportunity in business education. The 



21 
 

 

program helps participants develop a broader understanding of the challenges business leaders face and the 
impact they can have on their community and the world through effective business leadership. 

 
GRANT REVIEWER 

 
Federal Grant Reviewer, 2018 
National Science Foundation, Division of Human Resource Development 
Historically Black Colleges and Universities – Undergraduate Program (HBCU-UP) 

 
RESEARCH GRANTS 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2020). Two nights with August Wilson. A grant submitted to Seton Hill University Caritas Mini- 
Grant Team. ($1,000). Role: Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2019). Life skills program for student-athletes. A grant submitted to the Pennsylvania State 
Athletic Conference. ($3,500). Role: Co-Principal Investigator. Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2018). Student-athletes mentorship program. A grant submitted to the Pennsylvania State 
Athletic Conference. ($3,500). Role: Co-Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2017). Within the experiences of African American male doctoral students at historically Black 
colleges and universities. A research grant submitted to the Center for Minority Serving Institutions (CMSI) at 
the University of Pennsylvania. ($5,000). Role: Principal Investigator. (Not Funded). (Ranked within the top 
five grants) 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2017). Holistic strategies for student success: Moving into, through, and beyond college. 
Professional development grant application. A grant submitted for travel to the Southern Association for 
College Student Affairs Regional Conference through the Webster Staff Alliance Professional Development 
Fund, Chattanooga, TN. ($1,297.88). Role: Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2016). An analysis of doctoral student retention at selected historically Black colleges and 
universities in the United States. A research grant submitted for travel to the American Educational Research 
Association through the Professional Development Fund, Washington, DC. ($814). Role: Principal Investigator. 
(Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2015). The governing structures of state supported Historically Black Colleges and Universities. 
A research grant submitted for travel to the Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference through 
the Chancellor’s Travel Fund, Denver, CO. ($1,200). Role: Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2015). Motivations to succeed: The voices of Black men in college. A research grant submitted 
for travel to the North Carolina College Personnel Association Conference through the Professional 
Development Fund, Elon, NC. ($386). Role: Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2015). Within the experiences of African American male doctoral students at historically Black 
colleges and universities. A research grant submitted to the Southern Association for College Student Affairs 
(SACSA). ($1,500). Role: Principal Investigator. (Funded). 



22 
 

 

Hilton, A.A. (2014). Persistence among African American men in the community college. A research grant 
submitted for travel to the University Council for Educational Administration Convention through the 
Chancellor’s Travel Fund, Washington, DC. ($1,200). Role: Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
McCarville, K., & Hilton, A.A. (August 2011 – July 2016). Iowa Illinois Nebraska STEM partnership for 
innovation in research and education. A research grant submitted to the Louise Stokes Alliance for Minority 
Participation (LSAMP) program of the National Science Foundation. ($50,000; Upper Iowa University). Role: 
Co-Principal Investigator. (Funded). 

 
BOARD MEMBERSHIPS 

 
AmeriCorps Advisory Board Member, Upper Iowa University, 2011 

 
Association of Governing Boards, Board Professionals Leadership Group, Vice Chair of Program Committee, 
2011 – 2012; Chair of Program Committee, 2012 

 
Center for African American Research and Policy, Director, 2011 – 2014 

 
Court Appointed Special Advocates of Westmoreland County Board of Directors, 2019 – Present 

Westmoreland County Youth Commission Board Member, 2019 – Present 

Westmoreland Diversity Coalition Board Member, 2020 – Present 

Habitat for Humanity of Horry County Board of Directors, 2018 

Myrtle Beach Area Chamber of Commerce, Business Diversity Council Member, 2018 
 

Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Grand Rapids Alumni Chapter, Historian and Reporter, 2013 
 

Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Iowa City-Cedar Rapids Alumni Chapter, Chair of the Executive 
Board & Fundraising Committee, 2010; Reclamation Chair, 2012 

 
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Achievement Academy, Chair of the Education and Humanities 
Cluster, 2011 – 2013; Co-Chair of the Education and Humanities Cluster, 2010 – 2011, Director of Leadership 
Development, 2020 – Present 

 
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Baltimore Alumni Chapter, Foundation 
Board, 2007 – 2009 

 
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Thomasville Alumni Chapter, Historian, 2005 – 2006 

Kutsche Office of Local History Advisory Council, 2013 

Maryland Business Roundtable for Education, Speakers Bureau Advisory Board, 2008 - 
2009 

 
Miami-Dade County Public School African American Curricula, Advisory Board, 1998 -1999 



23 
 

 

National African American Student Leadership Conference, Advisory Board, 2005 – 2010 
 

National Association for Presidential Assistants in Higher Education, National Board Member, Treasurer, 2011 
– 2012 

 
 

RESEARCH AFFILIATION 
 

Affiliate, Center for Minority Serving Institutions, Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey, 2014 – Present 
 

The Center for Minority Serving Institutions at the University of Pennsylvania embodies many years of work on 
Minority Serving Institutions and aims to promote an environment in which scholars—new and more 
established—can pursue their research focused on Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Tribal Colleges 
and Universities, Hispanic Serving Institutions, and Asian American and Pacific Islander Serving Institutions. 

 
FACULTY AFFILIATION 

 
Faculty Affiliate, Minority Male Community College Collaborative, San Diego State University, 2014 – Present 

 

The Minority Male Community College Collaborative (M2C3) at San Diego State University is the hub of 
knowledge, research and promising practices for advancing the success of men who attend community colleges. 
M2C3 seeks to eradicate disparities related to achievement, socioeconomic status, identity, mental health 
disability, and racial/ethnic heritage and other salient issues in the male community college experience. One of 
the primary functions of M2C3 is to conduct institutional-level needs assessments to examine the experiences of 
men who have been historically underrepresented and underserved in education. 

 
HONORS AND AWARDS 

 
40 Under 40 Award Recipient, The Pittsburgh Magazine, 2020 

 

Outstanding Dedication and Service for Teaching Award, North Park University School of Business and Non- 
Profit Management, 2020 

 
BE Modern Man of Distinction, Black Enterprise Magazine, 2019 

 

Fab 40 Award, The New Pittsburgh Courier, 2019 
 

Outstanding Contribution to the Profession Award, Pennsylvania College Personnel Association, 2019 
 

40 Under Forty, The Network Journal, 2018 
 

Champion of Diversity Individual Award, Myrtle Beach Area Chamber of Commerce, 2018 
 

Albert Nelson Marquis Lifetime Achievement Award, Marquis Who’sWho Publications, 2018 
 

Who’s Who in America, Marquis Who’sWho Publications, 2018 
 

Francis P. Bunnelle Foundation Scholarship Recipient, Waccamaw American Leadership Forum, 2017 



24 
 

 
 

Senior Scholar Mentor, Black Male Doctoral Students Research BootCamp, Sisters of the Academy, 2017 
 

Top 20 Under 40, South Carolina Black Pages, 2017 
 

Hilda F. Owens Contribution to Knowledge in the Field Award, South Carolina College Personnel Association, 
2016 

 
Harry Canon Outstanding Professional Award, ACPA Coalition on Men & Masculinities, 2016 

 

Newly Published Research Award, NASPA Men and Masculinities Knowledge Community, 2016 
 

Professional Development Grant Recipient, Western Carolina University, 2016 
 

Chancellor’s Travel Fund Recipient, Western Carolina University, 2015 
 

Melvene Draheim Hardee Award, Southern Association for College Student Affairs, 2015 
 

Research Grant Award, Southern Association for College Student Affairs, 2015 
 

Professional Development Grant Recipient, Western Carolina University, 2015 
 

Male Alumnus of the Year (Finalist), HBCU Awards, 2015 
 

Who’s Who in America, Marquis Who’sWho Publications, 2015 
 

Sadie M. Yancey Professional Service Award, National Association of Student Affairs Professionals, 2015 
 

Outstanding Professional Contribution & Distinguished Scholar Award, North Carolina College Personnel 
Association, 2015 

 
Chancellor’s Travel Fund Recipient, Western Carolina University, 2014 

 

Brother of the Month (September 2014), Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Asheville Alumni Chapter, 
2014 

 
Alumni On The Move, HBCUCONNECT.COM, 2014 

 

Male Alumnus of the Year (Finalist), HBCU Awards, 2014 
 

Michael A. Powell, Esq. Service Award, National Black Graduate Student Association, 2013 
 

Joseph H. Silver, Sr., Leadership and Mentoring Initiative Alumni Award, American Association of Blacks in 
Higher Education, 2013 

 
Outstanding Alumni of the Quasquicentennial Award, Florida A&M University, 2012 

 

Dr. Carlos J. Vallejo Memorial Award for Exemplary Scholarship, American Educational Research 
Association, Multicultural/Multiethnic Special Interest Group, 2010 



25 
 

 
 

Who’s Who in America, Marquis Who’sWho, 2010 
 

Outstanding Research Award, American College Personnel Association Standing Committee for Men, 2009 

Top Young Leaders Under 30, Ebony magazine, 2009 

Doctoral Student Dissertation Award, Second Place Recipient, American Association of Blacks in Higher 
Education, 2009 

 
Top 40 InSpirers of the Year, InSpire magazine, 2009 

 

Educator of the Year, Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Baltimore Alumni Chapter, 2008 
 

Paper of the Year, First Place (Social Science Category), National Black Graduate Student Conference, 2008 
 

National Scholars Honor Society, Morgan State University, 2007 
 

Delores A. Auzenne Fellowship, Florida A&M University, 2005 
 

Kappa Delta Pi International Honor Society in Education, Florida A&M University, 2005 
 

Medgar W. Evers Leadership Award, National Association for the Advancement of Colored People, 2005 & 
1999 

 
Alpha Kappa Mu Honor Society, Florida A&M University, 2004 

 

Distinguished Collegian Award, National Association of Black Accountants, 2003 
 

State University System of Florida Fellowship, School of Graduate Studies & Research, Florida A&M 
University, 2003 

 
Coca-Cola Scholar, United Negro College Fund, 2001-2003 

 

Daimler-Chrysler Scholar, United Negro College Fund, 2001-2003 
 

Election Committee Award Recipient, Student Government Association, Morehouse College, 2003 
 

Golden Key International Honour Society, Morehouse College, 2002 
 

National Society of Collegiate Scholars, Morehouse College, 2001 
 

Miami-Dade County Fair & Exposition Scholarship, Miami-Dade County Public Schools, 2000 
 

Music Talent Grant Recipient, Department of Music, Morehouse College, 1999-2002 
 

Fannie Mae and the National Academy Foundation Scholar, National Academy Foundation, 1999 
 

Dade Community Foundation Scholarship, Dade Community Foundation, 1999 



26 
 

 
 

Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated Scholarship, Miami-Dade Alumni Chapter of Kappa Alpha Psi, 
Fraternity, Incorporated, 1999 

 
McKnight Achievers Scholarship, South Florida Center of Excellence, Florida International University, 1999 

 

CONSULTANCY 
 

Fall 2020 The University of Arkansas – Fayetteville 
 

Provided consulting services, in tandem with Dr. Michael Williams, to the Associated Student Government 
leadership team. These sessions were conducted virtually, and the nature of the consultancy centered around 
anti-racism with the intent to develop goals to dismantle and reduce systematic oppression at the University of 
Arkansas - Fayetteville. 

 
Summer 2020 The University of Tennessee – Knoxville 

 
Provided consulting services, in tandem with Dr. Corliss Brown Thompson, to the University Leadership 
Council and the Provost’s Leadership Team. These sessions were conducted virtually, and the nature of the 
consultancy centered around anti-racism with the intent to develop goals to dismantle and reduce systematic 
oppression at the University of Tennessee – Knoxville. 

 
Summer 2013 National Association of Diversity Officers in Higher Education 

 
Research project examining the perceptions of membership benefits, suggestions for conference improvement, 
and recommendations for future issues that the organization can address 

 
Summer 2009 Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Inc. 

 
Research project examining proposed change to organizational bylaws to accept graduates of regionally 
accredited proprietary schools for full membership 

 
MEDIA INTERVIEWS 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2019, July 6, 2:23 p.m. EST). The future of HBCU culture. HBCU Digest. 

Available at https://www.patreon.com/posts/listen-adriel-of- 
28181214?utm_medium=post_notification_email&utm_source=post_link&utm_campaign=patron_enga 
gement 

 

Lynch, M. (2014, June 24). Diverse conversations: In teaching higher education, the difference 
between diversity and equity. Diverse Issues in Higher Education. Available at 
http://diverseeducation.com/article/65149/ 
a. Interview reprinted in the Huffington Post, July 18, 2014. Available at 

http://www.huffingtonpost.com/matthew-lynch-edd/diverse-conversations-tea_b_5600011.html 
 

Hilton, A.A. (2013, July 25, 4:00 p.m. CST). The relevance of Historically Black Colleges and Universities. 
Wisconsin Public Radio. http://wpr.org/ideas/programnotes.cfm 

http://www.patreon.com/posts/listen-adriel-of-
http://diverseeducation.com/article/65149/
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/matthew-lynch-edd/diverse-conversations-tea_b_5600011.html
http://wpr.org/ideas/programnotes.cfm


27 
 

 

PUBLICATIONS 
Articles (Refereed) 

 

Chambers, C.R., McClain, K.S., & Hilton, A.A. (Under Review). Postracial already? Desegregration 
disintegration in a small liberal arts college, 1990-2015. Journal of Diversity in Higher Education. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Howard, S., & Bryant, C.J. (Under Review). The relevance of historically Black colleges 

and universities: From a Critical Race Theorist standpoint. Journal of Progressive Policy & Practice. 
 

Hilton, A.A., & McClain, K.S. (Under Review). Diverse, driven, determined. Journal of Progressive Policy & 
Practice. 

 
Outten, D.L., Hilton, A.A., & Collins, E.L. (In Press). A model for educational, occupational, and 

employability training: Identifications and institutionalization of effective practices. The Journal of 
Research Initiatives. 

 
Thomas, M., Hilton, A.A., & Gasaway, M. (In Press). Campus climate for Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and 

Transgender college students. NASAP Journal. 
 

Beale, T.J., Charleston, L.J., & Hilton, A.A. (2019). Black male college persistence: A 
phenomenological collective of familial and social motivators. Journal of Research Initiatives (*Lead 
article in the issue), 4(3), p. 1 – 18. 

 
Perry, A.L., Dean, S.R., & Hilton, A.A. (2019). New faculty transitions and obstacles: An auto- 

ethnographic exploration. Journal of the Professoriate, 10(2), p. 43 – 72. 
 

Hilton, A.A., McClain, K.S., & Outten, D.L. (2018). The industrial revolution of higher education. 
Journal of Research Initiatives. 3(3), article 12, p. 1 – 9. 

 
Logan, S.R., Hilton, A.A., Watson, D.C., & Kirkland-Holmes, G. (2018). African American history 

and culture: What White teachers should know. Journal of Educational Foundations, 31(3 & 4), p. 7 – 
26. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Bonner, F.A. (2017). Today’s urban Black male: The importance of finding the right college 

to realize maximum success. Urban Education, 52(9), 1051 – 1056. 
 

Ogaldez, T.J.M., & Hilton, A.A. (2017). Faculty expectations of administrative leaders’ behavior of the 
department of chairs: The University of Belize. Journal of Research Initiatives, 3(1), 1 – 15. (article 3) 

 
Platt, C.S., & Hilton, A.A. (2017). Why so much Blackness? Race in the dissertation topics and 

research of Black male doctoral students. Spectrum: A Journal on Black Men, 5(2), p. 23 – 44. 
 

White, K., & Hilton, A.A. (2017). Introduction to special issue: From #BlackLivesMatter to 
#BlackMindsMatter. Journal of African American Males in Education, 8(2), p. 1 – 4. 

 
Borum, V.O., Hilton, A.A., & Walker, E.N. (2016). The role of Black colleges in the 

development of mathematicians. Journal of Research Initiatives. 2(1), 1-15. (article 6) 
 

Bryant, C.J., Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P.A. (2016). Mentoring as professional development for African 



28 
 

 

American Ph.D. students pursuing the professoriate. The Western Journal of Black Studies, 40(1), 61- 
71. 

 
Farmer, E.D., Hilton, A.A., & Reneau, F.H. (2016). Variables that contribute to retention and 

graduation of Black American females at an historically Black university. Negro Educational Review, 
67(1-4), 133 – 148. 

Goings, R.B., Mitchell, D., Jr., & Hilton, A.A. (2016). Embracing a multicultural perspective in science, 
technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) higher education: From talk to action. Journal for 
Multicultural Education, 10(2), 102-106. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Freeman, S., Lee, J.M., Jr., & McClain, K.S. (2016). The governing structures of 

state supported historically Black colleges and universities. The Journal of HBCU Research + 
Culture. 1(1), 1 – 13. (*Lead article in issue) 

 
Ingram, T.N., Williams, L., Coaxum, J., Hilton, A.A., & Harrell, I.L. II. (2016). Motivational 

factors of African American men enrolled at selected community colleges. Journal of Research 
Initiatives. 2(1), 1-17. (article 8) 

 
Thomas, M., & Hilton, A.A. (2016). Inclusive learning environments: A focus on learning styles, 

gender and personality types. Teacher-Scholar: The Journal of the State Comprehensive University, 
7(1), 63-79. 

 
Williams, K., Burt, B., & Hilton, A.A. (2016). Math achievement: A role strain and adaptation approach. 

Journal for Multicultural Education, 10(3), 368-383. 
 

Bryant, C. J., Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P.A. (2015). African American doctoral scholars’ and 
fellows’ professional development mentoring experiences toward higher education professorship. 
Journal of Research Initiatives, 1(3), 1-10. (*Lead article in issue) 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2015). Editor’s introduction: Black men and non-cognitive factors influencing their 

success in college. Western Journal of Black Studies, 39(1), 1-2. 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Ray, C.A. (2015). [Review of the book Black male collegians: Increasing access, 
retention, and persistence in higher education, by R.T. Palmer, J. Luke Wood, T. Elon Dancy II, 
T.L. Strayhorn] Journal of College Student Development, 56(4), 414-416. (with current student in 
HESA program) 

 
Wood, J.L., Hilton, A.A., & Nevarez, C. (2015). Faculty of color and White faculty: An analysis of 

service in Colleges of Education in the Arizona Public University System. Journal of the 
Professoriate, 8(1), 85-109. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & McClain, K.S. (2014). HBCUs can maximize minority student achievement 

and success. International Journal of Humanities, Social Sciences and Education, 1(12), 56-59. (with 
current student in HESA program) 

 
Knight, L., Davenport, E., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (2014). An analysis of historically Black 



29 
 

 

colleges and universities student retention and attrition efforts. International Journal of Humanities 
Social Sciences and Education, 1(8), 123-138. 

 
Mitchell, D., Jr., Almanza, A., Hilton, A.A., & Spraggins, B. (2014). Still happening, yet 

still problematic: The 21st century Du Bois and Washington debate. The National Journal of Urban 
Education & Practice. 7(3), 205-216. 

 
Wood, J.L., Hilton, A.A., & Hicks, T. (2014). Motivational factors for academic success: 

Perspectives of African American males in the community college. The National Journal of Urban 
Education & Practice. 7(3), 247-265. 

 
Collins, E.L., Davis, C.H., & Hilton, A.A. (2013). The relevance of Historically Black 

Colleges and Universities in preparing Black educators and teachers. eJournal of Education Policy. 
http://nau.edu/COE/eJournal/_Forms/Fall2013/CollinsHunterDavisandHilton/ 

 

Hicks, T., Herndon, M., Hilton, A.A., Tang, L., Wade, B., Attoh, P., & Armstrong, V. (2013). 
Assessing life styles, stressors and health status among a predominantly African American on-campus 
and off-campus student population. The College Quarterly. 16(3). http://www.collegequarterly.ca/2013- 
vol16-num03-summer/hicks.html 

 

Hilton, A.A., Gasman, M., & Wood, J.L. (2013). The impact of the One Florida Initiative on 
Florida’s public law schools: A Critical Race Theory analysis. Journal of Educational 
Foundations, 27(3-4), 103-116. 

 
Turnipseed, I., Hilton, A., & Summers, E. (2013). Embracing diversity and avoiding ACRASH by 

calling spades, progressing syntaxes, and affirming actions. The International Journal of Community 
Diversity, 12(2), 1-15. (*Lead article in issue) 

 
Wood, J. L., & Hilton, A. A. (2013). Moral choices: Towards a conceptual model of Black male moral 

development. Western Journal of Black Studies. 37(1), 14–27. 
 

Davenport, E., Knight, L., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). Historically Black colleges and 
universities – Relevant, yesterday, today and tomorrow. Journal of the Alliance of Black School 
Educators. Volume 10 (Feature #3). 

 
Gasman, M., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). Mixed motivations, mixed results: A history of law, legislations, 

historically Black colleges and universities, and interest convergence. Teachers College Record, 
114(7), 1-34. (*Lead article in issue) 

Green-Powell, P., Hilton, A.A., & Joseph, C. (2012). Building collaborative partnerships with local 
churches to assist low performing schools. Black Papers Perspectives in African American Higher 
Education. Florida A&M University College of Education, 1(2), 6-9. 

Hilton, A.A. (2012). [Review of the book Community college leadership and administration: Theory, 
practice and change, by C. Nevarez & J. Luke Wood (Eds.).] Community College Journal of 
Research and Practice, 36(9), 738-740. 

Hilton, A.A., Gasman, M., Wood, J.L., & Williams, M.S. (2012). The relevance of Black law schools. 
Southern University Law Review. 40 S.U.L. Rev. 145. 

http://nau.edu/COE/eJournal/_Forms/Fall2013/CollinsHunterDavisandHilton/
http://www.collegequarterly.ca/2013-


30 
 

 

Knight, L., Davenport, E., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). An analysis of Historically 
Black Colleges and Universities student retention and attrition efforts. Journal of the Alliance of Black 
School Educators. Volume 10 (Feature #5). 

 
Knight, L., Davenport, E., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). The role of Historically Black 

Colleges and Universities in today’s higher education landscape. International Journal of 
Education, 4(2), 223-235. 

 
Wood, J.L., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). Five ethical paradigms for community college leaders: Toward 

constructing and considering alternative courses of action in ethical decision making. 
Community College Review, 40(3), 196-214. 

 
Wood, J. L., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). Spirituality and academic success: Perceptions of African 

American males in the community college. Religion & Education, 39(1), 28-47. 
 

Wood, J.L., Nevarez, C., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). Determinants of transfer among community 
college students. Journal of Applied Research in the Community College. 12(2), 1–6. 

Green-Powell, P., Hilton, A.A., & Joseph, C.L. (2011). Community relations and partnerships with 
local churches to assist low performing schools. Journal of US-China Education Review, 8(1), 
64-69. 

Strayhorn, T.L., Ortiz, K., & Hilton, A.A. (2011). Queering the educational color line: Experiences of 
Black gay collegians on campuses of HBCUs. NASPA GLBT Knowledge Community White Paper, 2–4, 
http://www.naspa.org/kc/glbt/FALL_GLBTKC_WhitePaper.pdf 

 
Thomas, M., & Hilton, A.A. (2011). The relevance of historically Black colleges and universities: An 

exploration of the affect of campus climate on student success. NASAP Journal, 14(1), 19-33. 
 

Wood, J.L., Hilton, A.A., & Lewis, C.W. (2011). Black male collegians in public two-year colleges: 
Student perspectives on the effect of employment on academic success. NASAP Journal, 14(1), 
97-110. 

 
Wood, J.L., Nevarez, C., & Hilton, A.A. (2011). Creating a culture of transfer in the community 

college: Recommendations for addressing the community college achievement gap. Making 
Connections: Interdisciplinary Approaches to Cultural Diversity, 13(1), 54–61. 

 
Gasman, M., & Hilton, A.A. (2010). A 25-year history of the American Association of University 

Professors’ perspective on shared governance at historically Black colleges and universities. Journal of 
Research in Education, 20(1), 53-60. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Green-Powell, P., Joseph, C.L., & Knight, L.G. (2010). The perceptions of administrators 

concerning the One Florida Initiative. Journal of US-China Education Review, 8(2), 233-238. 
 

Palmer, R. T., Davis, R.J., Moore, J.L., & Hilton, A.A. (2010). A nation at risk: Increasing college 
participation and persistence among African American males to stimulate U.S. global competitiveness. 
Journal of African American Males in Education, 1(2), available online at 
http://journalofafricanamericanmales.com/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2010/05/FINAL- 
PALMER.pdf 

http://www.naspa.org/kc/glbt/FALL_GLBTKC_WhitePaper.pdf
http://journalofafricanamericanmales.com/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2010/05/FINAL-


31 
 

 
 

Hilton, A.A. (2009). An analysis of one state’s use of race neutral policies to achieve diversity. 
Annuals of the Next Generation, A Journal of the Center for African American Research and Policy. 
2(1), 94-108. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P. (2009). The perceptions of law school administrators concerning the 

One Florida Initiative. Southern Regional Council on Educational Administration 2009 Yearbook 
Journal: Leading and Learning in the 21st Century, 71–77. 

 
Palmer, R.T., Davis, R. J., & Hilton, A. A. (2009). Exploring challenges that threaten to impede the 

academic success of academically under-prepared African American male collegians at an 
HBCU. Journal of College Student Development. 50(4), 429–445. 

 
Palmer, R.T., & Hilton, A.A. (2009). The impact of the synergy created by a Black college community and its 

influence on challenging acting White. Call and Response: The Scholarly Journal of the National Black 
Graduate Student Association, 2 (1), available online at http://www.nbgsa.org/journal/index.htm 

 
Articles (Non-Refereed) 
Rudham, G., Beale, T., McCunney, D., & Hilton, A.A. (November 6, 2020). Doing the real work in higher 

education amongst two pandemics. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/195460/ 

 

Hilton, W., & Hilton, A.A. (October 2, 2020). Equity requires action. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 
available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/191772/ 

 

Hilton, A.A. (Spring 2020). Historically Black colleges & universities: Extending a legacy of excellence and 
opportunity. Issues & Insights, Duquesne University, available online at 
https://duq.edu/assets/Documents/soe/programs/higher-ed-admin/hea-issues-insights-spring-2020.pdf 

 

Summers, E., Branch, L. & Hilton, A.A. (June 21, 2020). Stepping away from the brink: Covid-19 pushed. 
Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/181489/ 

 

Hilton, A.A. (June 8, 2020). Five books that every White ally should read on Black lives. Diverse Issues in 
Higher Education, available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/180023/ 

 

Broussard, W., Hilton, A.A., & Morris, H. (May 24, 2020). Inclusive excellence, now and forever: How 
Predominately White Institutions of higher education can keep their promise to students of color. 
Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/176568/ 

 

Whitaker, R.W. II, & Hilton, A.A. (April 23, 2020). Supporting foster care youth in college. Diverse Issues in 
Higher Education, available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/174277/ 

 

Summers, E., Branch, L., & Hilton, A.A. (March 11, 2020). Stepping away from the bring part VII: Faculty 
and the academy. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/169464/ 

 

Summers, E., Hilton, A.A., & Branch, L. (January 8, 2020). Stepping away from the brink part VI: Community 

http://www.nbgsa.org/journal/index.htm


32 
 

 

colleges and their important role in a more equitable world. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 
available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/163312/ 

 

Branch, L., Summers, E., & Hilton, A.A. (December 5, 2019). Stepping away from the brink part V: The call to 
action for HBCUs. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/161611/ 

 

Summers, E., Hilton, A.A., & Branch, L. (October 12, 2019). Stepping away from the brink part IV: The 
access and affordability challenge. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/157158/ 

 

Summers, E., Hilton, A.A., & Branch, L. (September 12, 2019). Stepping away from the brink part III: Board 
governance. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/154723/ 

 

Summers, E., Hilton, A.A., & Branch, L. (August 1, 2019). Stepping away from the brink part II: Presidential 
leadership. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/151139/ 

 

Hilton, A.A. (June 13, 2019). Divulging into systematic oppression. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 
available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/147713/ 

 

Summers, E., & Hilton, A.A. (May 5, 2019). Stepping away from the brink. Diverse Issues in Higher 
Education, available online at https://diverseeducation.com/article/144578/ 

 

Hilton, A.A. (March 19, 2019). Branding deliberately: Obtaining access through accountability. American 
Association for Blacks in Higher Education Leadership and Mentoring Institute Blog, available online at 
http://lmiexperience.org/branding-deliberately 

 

Chanay, M.A., & Hilton, A.A. (February 27, 2019). The perception of diversity at HBCUs: It is real or 
imaginable. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/139851 

 

Chanay, M.A., & Hilton, A.A. (October 4, 2018). A little advice with a big impact for all 21st century college 
students and grads. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 35(18), p. 40. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Broussard, W. (September 20, 2018). Rethinking town & gown: How HBCUs bring 

communities together through economic impact, workforce, and diversity. HBCU Digest, available 
online at https://hbcudigest.com/rethinking-town-gown-how-hbcus-bring-communities-together- 
through-economic-impact-workforce-and-diversity/ 

 

Hilton, A.A., & Whitaker, R.W. II. (August 23, 2018). Is the Black man the bogeyman in the ivory tower? 
Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 35(15), p. 48. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (June 26, 2018). Working in college admissions: What you need to know. Northeastern University 

Graduate Programs Blog, available online at https://www.northeastern.edu/graduate/blog/working-in- 
college-admissions/ 

 

Hilton, A.A. (December 26, 2017). Year in review. Ten things we learned about the education of Black males 

http://lmiexperience.org/branding-deliberately
http://www.northeastern.edu/graduate/blog/working-in-


33 
 

 

in 2017. Huffington Post, https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/year-in-review-ten-things-we-learned- 
about-the-education_us_5a41d9b4e4b0df0de8b066bf 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November 29, 2017). Prominent professor argues that teacher educators can’t prepare teachers 
for school settings they’ve never been to. Huffington Post, 
https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/prominent-professor-argues-that-teacher-educators- 
cant_us_5a1f3f43e4b064ca3c151171 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November 29, 2017). Daughter of Malcolm X decries evidence of supremacy in curriculum. 
Huffington Post, https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/daughter-of-malcolm-x-decries-evidence-of- 
supremacy_us_5a1f3721e4b0dff40be0361f 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November 20, 2017). Leading professor contends that “many teachers are ‘sympathetic 
destroyers’ of Black boys dreams.” Huffington Post, https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/leading- 
professor-contends-that-many-teachers-are_us_5a133f57e4b05ec0ae844491 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November 12, 2017). Prominent scholar calls growth mindset a “cancerous” idea, in isolation. 
Huffington Post, https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/prominent-scholar-calls-growth-mindset-a- 
cancerous_us_5a07f046e4b0f1dc729a6bc3 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November 9, 2017). Renowned professor calls for “desegregation of gifted education.” Huffington 
Post, https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/renowned-professor-calls-for-desegregation-of- 
gifted_us_5a04b5d9e4b055de8d096b80 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November 1, 2017). Leading Black male scholar levies indictment of “insidious” intercollegiate 
athletics. Huffington Post, https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/leading-black-male-scholar-levies- 
indictment-of-insidious_us_59f9e081e4b0de896d3f2cee 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October 28, 2017). Black lives matter co-founder declares that schools “have been turned into 
spaces of crimilization.” Huffington Post, available online at 
https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/black-lives-matter-co-founder-declares-that- 
schools_us_59f4e332e4b05f0ade1b57bc 

 

Farmer, E.D., & Hilton, A.A. (September 21, 2017). As college educators, we need to ask ourselves are we 
doing enough? Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 34(17), p. 32. 

 
Lovell, A., & Hilton, A.A. (July 15, 2017). Taxation without representation race taxes: Disparities evident for 

people of color. The Soultown Magazine, p. 8-9. 
 

Farmer, E.D., & Hilton, A.A. (June 14, 2017). What’s in a syllabus? The Soultown Magazine, p. 8-9. 
 

Wade, D.R., & Hilton, A.A. (April 15, 2017). To trap or not to trap: HBCUs can be instrumental in aiding 
young African American males to choose college. The Soultown Magazine, p. 8-9. 

 
Whitaker, R.W., II, & Hilton, A.A. (March 15, 2017). Let’s also be mad, and not solely mesmerized by March 

madness. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
http://diverseeducation.com/article/93772/ 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Mitchell, D., Jr. (January 25, 2017). We’re always athletes: Microaggressions of Black males 

http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/year-in-review-ten-things-we-learned-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/prominent-professor-argues-that-teacher-educators-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/daughter-of-malcolm-x-decries-evidence-of-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/leading-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/prominent-scholar-calls-growth-mindset-a-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/renowned-professor-calls-for-desegregation-of-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/leading-black-male-scholar-levies-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/black-lives-matter-co-founder-declares-that-
http://diverseeducation.com/article/93772/


34 
 

 

navigating academia. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/91701/ 

 
Whitaker, R.W., II, & Hilton, A.A. (December 5, 2016). Viewing Black male students as princes, not problems. 

Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at http://diverseeducation.com/article/89981/ 
 

Mitchell, D., Jr., & Hilton, A.A. (November 29, 2016). Historically Black for whom? A challenge for 21st 

century historically Black colleges and universities to embrace blackness, just blackness. MSIs 
Unplugged, available online at https://msisunplugged.com/2016/11/29/historically-black-for-whom-a- 
challenge-for-21st-century-historically-black-colleges-and-universities-to-embrace-blackness-just- 
blackness/ 

 

Hilton, A.A., & Covington, M. (November 20, 2016). Hiring its own graduates could be key to HBCUs’ 
survival. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at 
https://diverseeducation.com/article/89489/ 

 

Outten, D.L., & Hilton, A.A. (October 28, 2016). For HBCUs, proposals show Hillary Clinton is the 
only choice. HBCU Digest, available online at 
https://hbcudigest.com/opinion-for-hbcus-proposals-show-hillary-clinton-is-the-only-choice- 
144a85b03df3#.g2eia3thq 

 

Farmer, E.D., Mazyck, J.E., & Hilton, A.A. (September 13, 2016). Building a successful mentoring 
program for African American males is a win-win for HBCUs. Huffington Post, available online at 
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/building-a-successful-men_b_11756846.html? 

 

Broussard, W., & Hilton, A.A. (August 31, 2016). The unseen casualties of HBCU executive 
departures. HBCU Digest, available online at https://hbcudigest.com/the-unseen-casualties-of-hbcu- 
executive-departures-b556e1b4c658#.x19pxwihr 

 

Covington, M., & Hilton, A.A. (August 28, 2016). Increasing HBCU retention: It’s the small things. 
Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at http://diverseeducation.com/article/86257/ 

 

Wade, D.R., & Hilton, A.A. (May 25, 2016). Institutional effectiveness professionals: The special ops 
of higher education. Huffington Post, available online at http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a- 
hilton/institutional-effectivene_b_9768804.html 

 

Covington, M., Mazyck, J.E., & Hilton, A.A. (March 8, 2016). The role of HBCUs in preparing 
students for graduate school at PWIs. Huffington Post, available online at 
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/the-role-of-hbcus-in-prep_b_9318996.html 

 

Covington, M., & Hilton, A.A. (February 1, 2016). Learning from HBCUs to increase mentorship and 
representation of Black women at PWIs. Huffington Post, available online at 
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/learning-from-hbcus-to- 
in_b_9120116.html?utm_hp_ref=higher-education 

 

Mitchell, D., Jr., & Hilton, A.A. (October 4, 2015). ‘My brother’s keeper’: A lesson from Marc Lamont 
Hill. Diverse Issues in Higher Education, available online at http://diverseeducation.com/article/78148/ 

 

Hilton, A.A., Mitchell, D., Jr., & Charleston, L.J. (September 16, 2015). Community colleges embracing 

http://diverseeducation.com/article/89981/
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/building-a-successful-men_b_11756846.html
http://diverseeducation.com/article/86257/
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/the-role-of-hbcus-in-prep_b_9318996.html
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/learning-from-hbcus-to-
http://diverseeducation.com/article/78148/


35 
 

 

retention initiative for men of color by focusing on others. Huffington Post, available online at 
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/community-colleges-embrac_b_8143184.html 

 

McClain, K.S., & Hilton, A.A. (March 2, 2015). Racism poisons everything. Asheville Citizen-Times, p. 
A7. (with current student in HESA program) 

 
Hilton, A.A. (February 2, 2015). North Carolina makes the top 10 lists of progress and shame. 

Asheville Citizen-Times, p. A7. 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Felder, P.P. (December 4, 2014). Why HBCU graduate persistence is important? 
Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 31(22), p. 18. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (August 28 – September 3, 2014). Transforming HBCUs for student success. The Florida 

Sun, 83(35), p. 4. 
 

Daniels, B.D., Harrell, I.L., Hilton, A.A., Ingram, T.N., Lee, J.M., & Palmer, R.T. (November 5, 2013). 
Persistence of Black male PhD recipients. Published on Dr. Charles Taylor’s website, 
http://drcharlestaylor.com/persistence-of-black-male-phd-recipients/ 

 

Canida, R.L., & Hilton, A.A. (June 20, 2013). Diversity within the academy: Where is the balance? 
Diverse Issues in Higher Education, 30(10), p. 28. 

 
Hervey, E., & Hilton, A.A. (June 3, 2013). The college race. Huffington Post, 

http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-eurmon-hervey-jr/the-college-race_b_3379522.html 
a. Article reprinted in the Florida Sun, May 23 – 29, 2013, p. 5. 
b. Article reprinted in the Miami Times, More students headed to college but unprepared. June 12 – 18, 

2013, p. 3A. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (February 7 – 13, 2013). Civil rights activist Medgar Wiley Evers: The quintessential 
human being Part II. The Florida Sun, 82(6), p. 4 & 11. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (January 31 – February 6, 2013). Civil rights activist Medgar Wiley Evers: The 

quintessential human being Part I. The Florida Sun, 82(5), p. 4. 

Hilton, A.A. (January 24 – 30, 2013). Education in the common era. The Florida Sun, 82(4), p. 3. 

Turnipseed, I.B., & Hilton, A.A. (January 19 – 25, 2012). The AADERE model of success in six-figure 
Black managerial progression. The Florida Sun, 81(3), p. 4. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (December 9 – 15, 2010). Black colleges - relevant and necessary. The 

Florida Sun, 79(49), p. 4. 
 

Palmer, R.T., Fountaine, T., & Hilton, A.A. (December 2, 2010). Responding to attempts to 
marginalize historically Black colleges and universities. The Collegian, Available online at: 
http://www.uiucollegian.com/responding-to-attempts-to-marginalize-historically-black-colleges-and- 
universities-1.2420755 

http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-adriel-a-hilton/community-colleges-embrac_b_8143184.html
http://drcharlestaylor.com/persistence-of-black-male-phd-recipients/
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/dr-eurmon-hervey-jr/the-college-race_b_3379522.html
http://www.uiucollegian.com/responding-to-attempts-to-marginalize-historically-black-colleges-and-


36 
 

 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Jackson, J.F.L. (November 24, 2010). How to gain entry and navigate graduate 
programs in the field of education and the humanities. The Collegian, Available online at: 
http://www.uiucollegian.com/how-to-gain-entry-and-navigate-graduate-programs-in-the-field-of- 
education-and-the-humanities-1.2415867 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Ingram, T.N. (January 7, 2010). Race blind college admissions – back to the drawing 

board. Diverse Issues in Higher Education. 26(24), p. 28. 
 

Ingram, T.N. & Hilton, A.A. (2009). Call me DOCTOR. Black College Today. Vol. XV, 6. 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (2008). The importance of graduate education. Black College Today. Vol. 
XV, 5. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2008). Black graduate students’ national conference set for March of 2008. Black College Today. 

Vol. XIII, 2. 
 

Reference Publications 
 

Brown, I., & Hilton, A.A. (2016). Affirmative action. In K. Lomotey (Ed). People of color in the United 
States: Contemporary issues in education, work, communities, health and immigration. Greenwood: 
Santa Barbara, CA: Praeger, ABC-CLIO, LLC, Volume 1, pgs. 9 - 15. 

 
Brown, I., & Hilton, A.A. (2016). Historically Black colleges and universities. In K. Lomotey 

(Ed). People of color in the United States: Contemporary issues in education, work, communities, 
health, and immigration. Greenwood: Santa Barbara, CA: Praeger, ABC-CLIO, LLC, Volume 1, pgs. 
178 – 183. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2010). Wheelan, Belle S. In H.L. Gates & E.B. Higginbotham (Eds.), African American 

National Biography. New York: Oxford University Press. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (2010). Simmons, Howard L. In H.L. Gates & E.B. Higginbotham (Eds.), African 
American National Biography. New York: Oxford University Press. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2009). Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University. In K. Lomotey (Ed.), The 

Encyclopedia of African American Education, 260-262. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications. 
 

Guest Editor/Special Issues 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Bonner, F. (Eds.). (2017). Black males in urban postsecondary education: 
Examining their experiences in diverse institutional contexts. Urban Education, 52(9). 

 
White, K.A., & Hilton, A.A. (Eds). (2017). #Blackmindsmatter: African American boys in early 

childhood education. Journal of African American Males in Education. 
 

Goings , R.B., Mitchell, D., Jr., & Hilton, A.A., (Eds.). (2016). Multicultural perspectives in Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) in higher education. Journal for Multicultural 
Education, 10(2), p. 101 – 246. 

http://www.uiucollegian.com/how-to-gain-entry-and-navigate-graduate-programs-in-the-field-of-


37 
 

 

Hilton, A.A. (2015). Black men in colleges and universities: Examining the effect of non-cognitive 
variables on student success. Western Journal of Black Studies, 39(1), p. 1 – 79. 

 
Books 

 
Crosby, G.B., White, K.A., Chanay, M., &. Hilton, A.A. (Eds.). (Under Contract). Imagining the future: 

Historically Black colleges and universities – A matter of survival. Charlotte, NC: Information Age 
Publishing. 

 
Crosby, G.B., White, K.A., Chanay, M., &. Hilton, A.A. (Eds.). (Under Contract). Reimagining Historically 

Black colleges and universities: Survival beyond 2020. Emerald Publishing, United Kingdom. 
 

Hunter Davis, C., Hilton, A.A., Hamrick, R., & Brooks, E. (Eds.). (In Press). The beauty and the burden of 
being a Black professor. Emerald Publishing, United Kingdom. 

 
 Expected to be released January 2021. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Gragg, R.D. III, Urisa, M.V., Covington, M., & Hicks, T. (In Press). The One Florida Initiative: 

Reversing reverse discrimination. Lanham, MD: University Press of America, Inc., Rowman & 
Littlefield Publishing Group. 

 
 Expected to be released January 2021. 

 
Platt, C.S., Hilton, A.A., Newman, C.B., & Hinnant-Crawford. (Eds.). (2020). Multiculturalism in 

higher education: Increasing access and improving equity in the 21st century. Charlotte, NC: 
Information Age Publishing. 

 
 Reviewed by L. Uttal in Teachers College Record, 2020 (ID Number 23298). 

 
Hinnant-Crawford, B., Platt, C.S., Newman, C.B. & Hilton, A.A. (Eds.). (2019). 

Comprehensive multicultural education in the 21st century: Increasing access in the age of 
retrenchment. Charlotte, NC: Information Age Publishing. 

 
Davis, C.H., Hilton, A.A., & Outten, D. (Eds). (2018). Underserved populations at Historically 

Black Colleges and Universities: The pathway to diversity, equity, and inclusion. Emerald Publishing, 
United Kingdom. 

 
Boykin, T.F., Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (Eds.). (2017). Professional education at Historically 

Black Colleges and Universities: Past trends and future outcomes. New York, NY: Routledge. 
 

Rogers, C., Lomotey, K., & Hilton, A.A. (2017). Innovative approaches to educational leadership: Selected 
cases. New York, NY: Peter Lang Publishing. 

 
Ingram, T.N., Greenfield, D.F., Carter, J.D., & Hilton, A.A. (Eds.). (2015). Exploring issues of 

diversity within Historically Black Colleges and Universities. Charlotte, NC: Information Age 
Publishing. 

 
 Reviewed by M. Gasman in Journal of College Student Development, 57(6), 2016. 



38 
 

 

 Reviewed by A. Arroyo, R. Palmer, & C. Gibbs in Teachers College Record, March 11, 2016. 
 

Hilton, A.A., Wood, J.L., & Lewis, C.W. (Eds.). (2012). Black males in postsecondary education: 
Examining their experiences in diverse institutional contexts. Charlotte, NC: Information Age 
Publishing. 

 
 Reviewed by D. Mitchell, Jr. in Journal of Negro Education, 84(1), Winter 2015. 

 
 Reviewed by R. Winkle-Wagner in Teachers College Record, October 9, 2014. 

 
Palmer, R. T., Hilton, A. A., & Fountaine, T.P. (Eds.). (2012). Black graduate education at 

Historically Black Colleges and Universities: Trends, experiences, and outcomes. Charlotte, NC: 
Information Age Publishing. 

 
 Reviewed by D. Mitchell, Jr. in NASAP Journal, 15(1), 2013. 

 
Book Chapters 

 
Davis, C.H, Hilton, A.A., Hamrick, R., & Brooks, E. (Under Review). Black professorship: The beauty and the 

beast. In. C.H. Davis et. al. (Eds). The beauty and the burden of being a Black professor. United 
Kingdom: Emerald Publishing. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Davis, C.H., Hamrick, R., & Brooks, E. (Under Review). The last of 2020. In. C.H. Davis et. al. 

(Eds). The beauty and the burden of being a Black professor. United Kingdom: Emerald Publishing. 
 

Couch, M.A. II, Spencer, M., Santiago, J., & Hilton, A.A. (Under Review). Rethinking standardized testing 
from an access, equity and achievement perspective: Has anything changed for African American 
students? In. C.W. Lewis et. al. (Eds). Asa Hilliard/ Barbara Sizemore compendium on African 
Americans and education: Improving access, equity and achievement. Charlotte, NC: Information Age. 

 
Farmer, E.D., Hilton, A.A., & McClain, K.S. (Under Review). A dilemma for African Americans: Choosing a 

major? In. K. Vaidya (Ed.). How to choose your college major: Practical tops from the academic and 
career advisers. 

 
Covington, M., McClain, K., Dwyer, B., & Hilton, A.A. (2020). Multicultural education and diversity 

outcomes at Historically Black Colleges and Universities. In C.S. Platt, A.A. Hilton, C. Newman, & B. 
Hinnant-Crawford (Eds). Multiculturalism in higher education: Increasing access and improving equity 
in the 21st century, p. 143 – 163. Charlotte, NC: Information Age. 

 
 
 

Hilton, A.A., Platt, C.S., Newman, C., & Hinnant-Crawford, B. (2020). The 21st century global society: 
Adapting to the changing demographic on today’s college campuses. In C.S. Platt, A.A. Hilton, C. 
Newman, & B. Hinnant-Crawford (Eds). Multiculturalism in higher education: Increasing access and 
improving equity in the 21st century, p. ix - xviii. Charlotte, NC: Information Age. 

 
Hicks, T., Herndon, M., Hilton, A.A., Attoh, P., & Armstrong, V. (Reprint, 2019). Assessing life styles, 



39 
 

 

stressors and health status among a predominately African American on-campus and off-campus 
student. In Hicks, T., Butler, D., & Mondrail, M. First-generation college student research studies, p. 
100 – 111. Hamilton Books, Lanham, Maryland. 

 
Hinnant-Crawford, B., Platt, S., Newman, C., & Hilton, A.A. (2019).  Introduction – nationalism, terrorism, 

and the retrenchment of multiculturalism: The challenge of multicultural education in the 21st century. In 
B. Hinnant-Crawford, S. Platt, C. Newman, & A. Hilton (Eds.), Comprehensive multicultural education 
in the 21st century. Information Age Publishing, Charlotte: NC. 

 
Farmer, E.D., Kunkle, K., Kincey, S.D., Wiltsher, C., & Hilton, A.A. (2019). Where do we go from 

here? Exploring retention and engagement at HBCUs. In S. Hinton, & A. Woods (Eds). Examining 
student retention and engagement strategies at Historically Black Colleges and Universities, (pp. 149- 
180). Hershey, PA. IGI Global. 

 
Farmer, E.D., Lovell, A., & Hilton, A.A. (2018). Nontraditional students: Why am I here? Starting college at 

25. In S. Thompson, & P. Parry (Eds.). Exploring campus diversity: Case studies and exercises, (pp. 34 
– 36). Lanham, MD: Rowman & Littlefield. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Farmer, E.D., & Lovell, A. (2018). Affirmative action: Where are my brothers and sisters? In S. 

Thompson, & P. Parry (Eds.). Exploring campus diversity: Case studies and exercises. (pp. 153 – 155). 
Lanham, MD: Rowman & Littlefield. 

 
Lovell, A., Farmer, E.D., & Hilton, A.A. (2018). Code switching: Double consciousness in the classroom. In S. 

Thompson, & P. Parry (Eds.). Exploring campus diversity: Case studies and exercises. (pp. 72 – 76). 
Lanham, MD: Rowman & Littlefield. 

 
McClain, K.S., Ray, C.A., Hilton, A.A., & Wood, J.L. (2018). Historically Black community colleges: 

Dually equipped to engage African American males. In T.N. Ingram, & J. Coaxum (Eds.), Engaging 
African American males in community colleges. Charlotte, NC: Information Age. 

 
Whitaker, R.W., & Hilton, A.A. (2018). All eyes on me: Culturally responsive approaches to 

engaging revenue playing Black male student athletes who attend PWIs. In T. Ransaw, C.P. Gause and 
R. Major (Eds.), The handbook of research on Black males. East Lansing, Michigan: Michigan State 
University Press. (pp. 625 – 625). 

 
Boykin, T.F., Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (2017). Professional education at historically Black 

colleges and universities: Trends, experiences and outcomes. In T.F. Boykin, A.A. Hilton, & R.T. 
Palmer (Eds.). Professional education at Historically Black Colleges and Universities: Past trends and 
future outcomes, (p. 1 – 12). New York, NY: Routledge 

 
Broussard, W.J., & Hilton, A.A. (2017). Avoiding forced turnover(s): Best practices for HBCU 

senior-level executive recruitment. In R. Palmer (Ed). Exploring challenges and opportunities for 
leadership at Minority Serving Institutions, (p. 65 – 80). New York, NY: Routledge. 

 
Covington, M., & Hilton, A.A. (2017). Advancing equity and diversity in student affairs: A 

festschrift in honor of Melvin C. Terrell. In J. Jackson (Ed). Advancing equity and diversity in student 
affairs: The applied scholarship of Melvin C. Terrell, (p. 9 – 11). Charlotte, NC: Information Age. 

 
Fry Brown, R.L., Flowers, A., Hilton, A.A., & DeJohnette, M. (2017). Beyond respectable: Why 



40 
 

 

earn an advanced degree from an historically Black college and university. In T.F. Boykin, A.A. Hilton, 
& R.T. Palmer (Eds.). Professional education at Historically Black Colleges and Universities: Past 
trends and future outcomes, (p. 123 – 140). New York, NY: Routledge 

 
Hilton, A.A., Boykin, T.F., & Palmer, R.T. (2017). Emerging themes, questions, and implications for 

professional education at historically Black colleges and universities. In T.F. Boykin, A.A. Hilton, & 
R.T. Palmer (Eds.). Professional education at Historically Black Colleges and Universities: Past trends 
and future outcomes, (p. 155 – 164). New York, NY: Routledge 

 
Ray, C.A., Hilton, A.A., Wood, J.L, & Hicks, T.L. (2016). Motivational factors for academic 

success: Prospectives of African American males at historically Black colleges and universities. In 
C.B.W. Prince and R.L. Ford (Eds.)., Setting a new agenda for student engagement and retention in 
Historically Black Colleges and Universities, (p. 222 – 233). IGI Global. (with current student in 
HESA program) 

 
Ingram, T.N., Greenfield, D., Carter, J.D., & Hilton, A.A. (2015). Examining the significance of 

HBCUs and their inclusive climate. In T. Ingram, D. Greenfield, J. Carter, & A. Hilton (Eds)., 
Exploring issues of diversity within HBCUs. Charlotte, NC: Information Age. 

 
Mitchell, D., Jr., & Hilton, A.A. (2015). Career advancement beyond the traditional tenure 

and promotion process: Broadening Boyer’s Scholarship Reconsidered through critical race 
theory. In F. Bonner, C. Lewis, B. Lofton, & P. Robinson (Eds.), Priorities of the professoriate: 
Multiple forms of scholarship across rural and urban institutions (p. 135-146). Charlotte, NC: 
Information Age. 

 
Williams, R.C., & Hilton, A.A. (2015). Mentoring matters: A proactive approach for mentoring 

Black men for collegiate success. In Lillian Drakeford (Ed.), The race controversy in American 
Education (p. 399 – 414), Volume 1: Sections I to V. Santa Barbara, CA: Praeger. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 

 
Wood, J.L., Hilton, A.A., & Johnson, R.M. (2013). The effect of self-efficacy on academic 

and social integration: An investigation of students of color in the community college. In T. 
Hicks and Michael McFrazier (Eds.), College student self-efficacy research studies. Lanham, MD: 
University Press of America, Inc., Rowman Littlefield Publishing Group. 

 
Palmer, R.T., Hilton, A.A., & Fountaine, T.P. (2012). Black graduate education at historically Black 

colleges and universities: Trends, experiences, and outcomes (introduction chapter). In R.T. Palmer, 
A.A. Hilton, & T.P. Fountaine (Eds.), Black graduate education at historically Black colleges and 
universities: Trends, experiences, and outcomes. Charlotte, NC: Information Age Publishing. 

 
Wood, J. L. & Hilton, A. A. (2012). Enhancing success in the community college: Recommendations 

from African American male students. In T. Hicks & A. Pitre (Eds.), Research studies in higher 
education: Educating multicultural college students (p. 69 – 85). Lanham, MD: University Press of 
America. 

 
Wood, J.L., Hilton, A.A., & Lewis, C.W. (2012). Black males across institutional types: Recurrent 

recommendations for research, policy and practice. In Adriel A. Hilton, J. Luke Wood, and Chance W. 
Lewis. (Eds.). Black males in postsecondary education: Examining their experiences in diverse 
institutional contexts. Charlotte, NC: Information Age Publishing. 



41 
 

 

Wood, J.L., & Hilton, A.A. (2012). Community colleges - A meta-synthesis of literature on Black 
males: An overview of forty years of policy recommendations. In Adriel A. Hilton, J. Luke Wood, and 
Chance W. Lewis. (Eds.). Black males in postsecondary education: Examining their experiences in 
diverse institutional contexts. Charlotte, NC: Information Age Publishing. 

 
Goodman, G.S., & Hilton, A.A. (2010). Urban dropouts: Why persist? Shirley R. Steinberg (Ed.), 19 

Urban Questions. New York: Peter Lang Publishing. 
a. Chapter reprinted in G. Goodman (Ed.). (2010). Educational psychology reader: The art and science 
of how people learn. New York: Peter Lang Publishing. 
b. Chapter reprinted in R. Brock & G. Goodman (Eds.). (2013). School sucks! Arguments for alternative 
education. New York: Peter Lang Publishing. 
c. Chapter reprinted in G. Goodman (Ed.). (2014). Educational psychology reader: The art and science 
of how people learn. New York: Peter Lang Publishing. 

 
Technical Reports 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2005). Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement. Senate Bill 2268. 

Tallahassee, FL: The Florida Senate. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (2005). Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement. Senate Bill 784. 
Tallahassee, FL: The Florida Senate. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (2005). Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement. Senate Bill 568. 

Tallahassee, FL: The Florida Senate. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

International Presentations (Refereed) 
 

Ingram, T.N., Coaxum, J, & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2015). The psychosocial educational experiences of 
Black men in college. Paper presented at the 4th Annual International Colloquium on Black Males in 
Education, Kingston, Jamaica. 

 
Hilton, A. A., Turnipseed, I. B., & Summers, E. (June, 2012). The role of diversity leadership executives in 

promoting campus inclusion. Paper presented at the Twelfth International Conference on Diversity in 
Organizations, Communities and Nations, Vancouver, Canada. 

 
Summers, E., Hilton, A. A., & Turnipseed, I. B. (June, 2012). Diversifying the academy. Paper presented at the 

Twelfth International Conference on Diversity in Organizations, Communities and Nations, Vancouver, 
Canada. 

 
Turnipseed, I. B., Hilton, A. A., & Summers, E. (June, 2012). Embracing diversity and avoiding a 

CRASH by calling spades, progressing syntaxes, and affirming actions, and progressing syntaxes. Paper 
presented at the Twelfth International Conference on Diversity in Organizations, Communities and 
Nations, Vancouver, Canada. 

 
Knight, L., Davenport, E., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (January, 2011). An analysis of graduate 



42 
 

 

student retention and attrition efforts at selected historically Black colleges and universities in the 
southern region of the United States. Paper presented at the Hawaii International Conference on 
Education, Honolulu, HI. 

 
Knight, L., Davenport, E., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (January, 2011). The role of HBCUs in 

today’s higher education landscape. Paper presented at the Hawaii International Conference on 
Education, Honolulu, HI. 

 
Joseph, C.L., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2010). Mentoring African Americans toward the 

professoriate. Paper presented at the International Mentoring Association Conference, Orlando, FL. 
 

Hilton, A.A., Green-Powell, P., Joseph, C.L., & Knight, L.G. (January, 2010). An analysis of one state’s 
use of race neutral policies to achieve diversity. Paper presented at the Hawaii International Conference 
on Education, Honolulu, HI. 

 
National Presentations (Refereed) 

 
Beale, T., McClean, C., Rudham, G., Hilton, A.A., Cameron, H.A., McCunney, D., Gray, A.L. (November, 

2020). Integrating diversity, equity, and inclusion into your workplace culture as an inclusive leader. 
The Circle of Change Leadership Conference, virtually. 

 
Taylor, S., Hutton, D., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2020). If not now, when? Change through the power of 

diverse voices. Paper presented at The Charleston Conference, virtually. 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Williams, M.R. (February, 2020). Publishing as a student affairs professional. Presentation 
presented at the National Association of Student Affairs Professional Conference, Charlotte, NC. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Williams, M.R. (February, 2020). Driving divisional and institutional effectiveness towards 

students, community, and cultural capital. Paper presented at the National Association of Student 
Affairs Professional Conference, Charlotte, NC. 

 
Hunter Davis, C., Hilton, A.A., & Outten, D. (February, 2019). On diversity, equity and inclusion at 

Historically Black Colleges and Universities: Interrupting patterns of invisibility. Paper presented at the 
National Association of Student Affairs Professional Conference, Atlanta, GA. 

 
Whitaker, R., & Hilton, A.A. (February, 2019). All eyes on me: Culturally responsive approaches to engaging 

revenue playing Black male student-athletes who attend PWIs. Paper presented at the National 
Association of Student Affairs Professional Conference, Atlanta, GA. 

 
Whitaker, R., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2018). Beyond the veil: Truly seeking and supporting minority 

students who attend predominately White institutions. Paper presented at the Greater Pittsburgh Higher 
Education Diversity Consortium Professional Development Conference, Pittsburgh, PA. 

 
Thomas, M., McClain, K., Outten, D., & Hilton, A.A. (February, 2018). Black masculinity, pop culture, media, 

and higher education. Paper presented at the annual National Association of Student Affairs 
Professionals Conference, Charleston, SC. 

 
Thomas, M., Boykin, T.F., Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (February, 2018). Professional education at 



43 
 

 

historically Black colleges and universities: Trends, experiences and outcomes. Paper presented at the 
annual National Association of Student Affairs Professionals Conference, Charleston, SC. 

 
Platt, C.S., & Hilton, A.A. (February, 2018). We came to win: Doctoral students of color and completing the 

Ph.D. Paper presented at the annual National Association of Student Affairs Professionals Conference, 
Charleston, SC. 

 
Boykin, T.F., Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (June, 2017). Professional education at historically Black colleges 

and universities: Trends, experiences and outcomes. Paper accepted for the NASPA Closing the 
Achievement Gap: Student Success in Higher Education Conference, Washington, D.C. 

 
Chambers, C.R., Hilton, A.A., & McClain, K. (April, 2017). Post-racial already? Desegregation and interest 

divergence in a small liberal arts college, 1990-2010. Paper presented at the annual American 
Educational Research Association Conference, San Antonio, TX. 

 
Thomas, M., Harris, R., Covington, M., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2017). Creating inclusive learning 

environments: A focus on Hispanic students. Paper presented at the annual American College Personnel 
Association Convention, Columbus, OH. 

 
Ray, C.A., Hilton, A.A., Wood, J.L., & Hicks, T. (February, 2017). Motivational factors for academic success: 

Prospectives of African American males at historically Black colleges and universities. Paper presented 
at the annual National Association of Student Affairs Professionals Conference, Raleigh, NC. 

 
Charleston, L., Platt, C.S., Hilton, A.A., & Warmack, D. (April, 2016). Navigating the paradox of doctoral 

socialization: Black males experiencing success in diverse doctoral programs. Paper presented at the 
annual American Educational Research Association Conference, Washington, D.C. 

 
Felder, P.P., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2016). An analysis of doctoral student retention at selected historically 

Black colleges and universities in the United States. Paper accepted at the annual American Educational 
Research Association Conference, Washington, D.C. 

 
Ingram, T.N., Greenfield, D., Carter, J.D., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2016). Examining the significance of 

historically Black colleges and universities and their inclusive climate. Paper presented at the annual 
American Educational Research Association Conference, Washington, D.C. 

 
Moore, C., Thomas, M., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2016). Universal design instruction: How faculty employ 

inclusive teaching strategies. Paper presented at the annual American Educational Research Association 
Conference, Washington, D.C. 

 
Bryant, C.J., Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P. (March, 2016). Professional development through 

mentoring: Preparing African Americans for the professoriate. Paper presented at the annual American 
College Personnel Association Convention, Montreal, B.C. 

 
Ward, K.R., Burney, M., Hilton, A.A., & James, T. (March, 2016). Everyone’s favorite “R” word: 

Retention! Paper presented at the annual American College Personnel Association Convention, 
Montreal, B.C. 

 
Ward, K.R., Burney, M., Hilton, A.A., & James, T. (March, 2016). Diversity is being asked to the party: 



44 
 

 

Inclusivity is being asked to dance. Paper presented at the NASPA – Student Affairs Administrators in 
Higher Education Annual Conference, Indianapolis, IN. 

 
Farmer, E., Hilton, A.A., & Reneau, F.H. (February, 2016). Variables to academic retention and 

graduation for African American females at an HBCU. Paper presented at the National Association of 
African American Studies National Conference, Baton Rouge, LA. 

 
Farmer, E., Hilton, A.A., & Reneau, F.H. (February, 2016). Success factors that influence academic 

retention and graduation for African American females at an HBCU. Paper presented at the National 
Association of Student Affairs Professionals Annual Conference, Houston, TX. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Freeman, S., Lee, J.M., & McClain, K.S. (November, 2015). The governing structures of 

state supported Historically Black Colleges and Universities. Paper presented at the Association for the 
Study of Higher Education Conference, Denver, CO. (funded through the Chancellor’s Fund) 

 
Perry, A.L., Hilton, A.A., & Dean, S. (November, 2015). New faculty transitions and obstacles: An auto- 

ethnographic exploration. Paper presented in a roundtable format at the Association for the Study of 
Higher Education Conference, Denver, CO. (funded through the Chancellor’s Fund) 

 
Thomas, M., Hilton, A.A., & Ingram, T.N. (November, 2015). Campus environments: Their importance 

and impact. Paper presented at the Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference, Denver, 
CO. (funded through the Chancellor’s Fund) 

 
Harrell, I.L., Hilton, A.A., & Ingram, T.N. (March, 2015). African American men at community colleges: 

Navigating their success. Paper presented at the NASPA – Student Affairs Administrators in Higher 
Education Annual Conference, New Orleans, LA. 

 
Ingram, T.N., Coaxum, J., Hilton, A.A., & Harrell, I.L. (November, 2014). Persistence among African 

American men in the community college. Paper presented at the University Council for Educational 
Administration Convention, Washington, DC. (funded through the Chancellor’s Fund) 

 
Whitaker, R.W., Hilton, A.A., & Hopson, R.K. (April, 2014). Beyond the touchdowns and slam dunks: A 

critical examination of how revenue-playing African American male student athletes at predominately 
White institutions experience and perceive the climate on their campus. Paper presented at the 
American Educational Research Association Conference, Philadelphia, PA. 

 
Palmer, R.T., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2013). Black graduate education at Historically Black Colleges 

and Universities: Trends, experiences, and outcomes. Paper presented at the Association for the Study 
of Higher Education Conference, St. Louis, MO. 

 
Outten, D.L., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2013). How to identify, recruit and retain faculty of color in critical 

shortage teaching areas, when some administrators say they can’t find qualified minorities. Paper 
presented at the Keeping Our Faculty of Color Symposium, Minneapolis, MN. 

 
Outten, D.L., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2013). How to identify, recruit and retain faculty of color in critical 

shortage teaching areas, when some administrators say they can’t find qualified minorities. Paper 
presented at the 5th Annual University of Cincinnati Diversity Conference, Cincinnati, OH. 

 
Walker, E.N., Borum, V., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2012). The role of Black colleges in the development of 



45 
 

 

mathematicians. Paper presented at the American Educational Research Association Conference, 
Vancouver. British Columbia, Canada. 

 
McGaskey, F., Hilton, A.A., & Ingram, T.N. (April, 2012). Factors affecting the research productivity of 

Black Ph.D. students at predominantly White institutions. Paper presented at the American Educational 
Research Association Conference, Vancouver. British Columbia, Canada. 

 
Carter, J., Hilton, A.A., Hirt, J., Palmer, R. T, & Saddler, T. (March, 2012). Using research on 

historically Black colleges and universities (HBCUs) to create possibilities for the future 
Symposium presented at the annual American College Personnel Association Convention, Louisville, 
KY. 

 
Summers, E., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2012). Students and the 21st century: Changes and need to provide 

more. Proposal presented at the National Association of Presidential Assistants in Higher Education 
conference, Los Angeles, CA. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Gasman, M., & Wood, J.L. (November, 2011). The impact on the One Florida Initiative on 

Florida law schools: A critical race theory analysis. Paper presented at the Association for the Study of 
Higher Education Conference, Charlotte, NC. 

 
McGaskey, F., Hilton, A.A., & Ingram, T.N. (November, 2011). Uneven playing fields: Using Bourdieu's 

social field theory to examine the experiences of Black male doctoral students in higher education 
programs. Paper presented at the Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference in a 
roundtable format, Charlotte, NC. 

 
Williams, K., Burt, B., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2011). Fixing the leaky pipeline to STEM major choice: 

Identifying the factors that influence early achievement in math and science. Paper presented at the 
Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference, Charlotte, NC. 

 
Wood, J.L., Hilton, A.A., & Harrell, I.L. (April, 2011). African American males and the community 

college: Peer relationships and academic success. Paper presented at the annual Council for the Study 
of Community Colleges Conference, New Orleans, LA. 

 
Lee, J. M., Daniels, B.D., Harrell, I.L., Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T.  (April, 2011).  Voice of African 

American male PhD recipients: Strategies for supporting African American men to completion. 
Research proposal presented at A Dream Deferred: The Future of African American Education Meeting 
– The College Board, Philadelphia, PA. 

 
Gasman, M., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2011). Mixed motivations, mixed results: A history of law, interest 

convergence and historically Black colleges and universities. Paper presented at the annual American 
Educational Research Association Conference, New Orleans, LA. 

 
Gasman, M., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2011). A 25-year history of the American Association of University 

Professors' perspective on shared governance at historically Black colleges and universities. Paper 
presented at the annual American Educational Research Association Conference, New Orleans, LA. 

 
Wood, J.L., Palmer, R.T., Lee, J.M., Ingram, T.I., Hilton, A.A., & Stephans, N. (April, 2011). African 

American males in higher education: Examining their experiences in diverse contexts. Paper presented 
at the annual American Educational Research Association Conference, New Orleans, LA. 



46 
 

 
 

Carter, J., Hilton, A.A., Palmer, R.T., Saddler, T., & Strayhorn, T. (March, 2011). Using HBCU research 
to ‘be more’ effective in working with students. Symposium presented at the annual American College 
Personnel Association Convention, Baltimore, MD. 

 
Hallam, J., Larkin, W.D., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2011). President’s office manual: Dissecting the 

complexities of a president’s office. Session presented at the annual National Association of Presidential 
Assistants in Higher Education Conference, Washington, DC. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Summers, E. (March, 2011). Promoting campus inclusion as a presidential assistant. 

Proposal presented at the annual National Association of Presidential Assistants in Higher Education 
Conference, Washington, DC. 

 
Daniels, B.D., Lee, J.M., Harrell, I.L., Hilton, A.A., Ingram, T.N., & Palmer, R.T. (October, 2010). From 

high school to higher education: Supporting African American males. Research symposium presented 
at the annual College Board National Forum, Washington, DC. 

 
Daniels, B.D., Harrell, I.L., Hilton, A.A., Ingram, T.N., Lee, J.M., & Palmer, R.T. (March, 2010). Voices 

from the ebony and ivory tower: The stories of persistence of Black male PhD recipients. Symposium 
presented at the annual American Association of Blacks in Higher Education Conference, Atlanta, GA. 

 
Ingram, T.I., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2009). Strategies for success: Examining social capital among 

African American male doctoral students at predominantly White institutions. Paper presented at the 
annual Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference, Vancouver, BC. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (March, 2009). The perceptions of administrators concerning the One Florida Initiative. Paper 

presented at the annual meeting of the American Association of Blacks in Higher Education, Atlanta, 
GA. 

 
Palmer, R. T., Hilton, A.A., Harrell, I.L., & Jackson, T. (March, 2009). Highlighting exemplary STEM 

initiatives promoting the success of minority students. Paper presented at the annual meeting of the 
American College Personnel Association, Washington, DC. 

 
Palmer, R. T., Hilton, A.A., & Jackson, T. (March, 2009). The impact of remedial education on the academic 

success of Black males. Paper presented at the annual meeting of the American College Personnel 
Association, Washington, DC. 

 
Green-Powell, P., Hilton, A.A., & Joseph, C.L. (February, 2009). The impact of community relations and 

partnerships on low performing schools. Paper presented at the National Association of African 
American Studies, Baton Rouge, LA. 

 
Palmer, R.T., Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P. (October, 2008). Using a tenet of critical theory to explain 

the African American male achievement disparity. Paper presented at the 3rd Annual Brothers of the 
Academy Think Tank for African American Progress, Memphis, TN. 

 
Hilton, A.A., Green-Powell, P., & Palmer, R.T. (October, 2008). An analysis of one state’s use of race  

neutral policies to achieve diversity. Paper presented at the 3rd Annual Brothers of the Academy Think 
Tank for African American Progress, Memphis, TN. 



47 
 

 

Palmer, R. T., Davis, R. J., McClendon, S. A., & Hilton, A. A. (March, 2008). Remediation under siege: 
Threatening access to higher education for Black male students. Paper presented at the American 
Education Research Association annual meeting, New York, NY. 

 
Palmer, R. T., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2008). The impact of the synergy created by a Black college 

community and its influence on challenging acting White. Paper presented at the 20th Annual National 
Black Graduate Student Conference, Chicago, IL. 

 
Palmer, R.T., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2008). New conceptualization of the African American male 

achievement disparity. Paper presented at the annual National Association of Student Personnel 
Administrators Annual Meeting, Boston, MA. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P. (February, 2008). The perceptions of law school administrators 

concerning the One Florida Initiative. Paper presented at the annual National Association of African 
American Studies Conference, Baton Rouge, LA. 

 
Palmer, R.T., & Hilton, A.A. (May, 2007). Achieving success in college: Against all odds. Paper 

presented at the American College Personnel Association Institute for College Male: Creating and 
Achieving Successful Outcomes, Atlanta, GA. 

 
DeSousa, D.J., Palmer, R.T., & Hilton, A.A. (April, 2007). Student engagement and African American 

college men. Paper presented at the National Association of Student Personnel Administrators and the 
American College Personnel Association Joint Meeting, Orlando, FL. 

 
Palmer, R.T., & Hilton, A.A. (March, 2007). Affirmative action: Implications for higher education from a 

critical race theorist perspective. Paper presented at the annual National Black Graduate Student 
Conference, Baltimore, MD. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (February, 2007). HBCUs: Key factors that promote academic achievement for 

Black males. Paper presented at the annual National Association of Student Affairs Professionals 
Conference, Savannah, GA. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (January, 2007). HBCUs: Factors promoting student retention. Paper 

presented at the annual National African American Student Leadership Conference, Holly Springs, MS. 
 

Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (January, 2006). Strategy for success: Morgan M.I.L.E. Paper presented at 
the annual National African American Student Leadership Conference, Holly Springs, MS. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (January, 2005). How changes in affirmative action have impacted public management? Paper 

presented at the annual National African American Student Leadership Conference, Holly Springs, MS. 
 

Regional Presentations (Refereed) 
 

Boykin, T.F., Hilton, A.A., & Palmer, R.T. (October, 2017). Professional education at Historically Black 
Colleges and Universities: Past trends and future outcomes. Paper presented at the Southern Association 
for College Student Affairs Conference, Chattanooga, TN. 

 
Burke, M.G., & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2017). What you don’t know could hurt you: The top skills entry-level 



48 
 

 

professionals should have in their professional toolbox. Paper presented at the Southern Association for 
College Student Affairs Conference, Chattanooga, TN. 

 
Perry, A.L., Perry, L., & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2017). Holistic strategies for student success: Moving into, 

through, and beyond college. Paper presented at the Southern Association for College Student Affairs 
Conference, Chattanooga, TN. (funded through the Webster Staff Alliance Professional Development 
Fund) 

 
Boykin, T.F., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2016). Legal aspects of student affairs practice: The role of “first 

responders” in compliance. Paper presented at the Southern Association for College Student Affairs 
Conference, Jacksonville, FL. 

 
Charleston, L.J., Boykin, T.F., Hilton, A.A., Farmer, E.D., & Couch, M. (November, 2016). Within the 

experiences of African American male doctoral students at HBCUs. Paper presented at the Southern 
Association for College Student Affairs Conference, Jacksonville, FL. (funded through SACSA 
Research Grant) 

 
Farmer, E.D., Hilton, A.A., & Reneau, F.H. (November, 2016). Academic retention and graduation success 

for African American females at an HBCU. Paper presented at the Mid-South Educational Research 
Association, Mobile, AL. 

 
Burke, M.G., Cannonier, C., Carter, J.D., Hilton, A.A., & Mutakabbir, Y. (November, 2015). 

Considering the complexities: An examination of diversity on historically Black college and university 
campuses. Paper presented at the Southern Association for College Student Affairs Conference, 
Greenville, SC. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Burke, M.G. (November, 2015). Navigating the field of student affairs: Building your 

professional portfolio. Paper presented at the Southern Association for College Student Affairs 
Conference, Greenville, SC. 

 
Ray, C.A., Hilton, A.A., Adams-Dunford, J., & Burton, C. (November, 2015). Creating a collaborative 

campus climate through the application of an interdisciplinary, institutional theme. Paper presented at 
the Southern Association for College Student Affairs Conference, Greenville, SC. (with current 
student in HESA program) 

 
Ward, K., Hilton, A.A., & Childs, J.L. (November, 2015). How do we retain them?: A theoretical framework 

of best practices employed for African American and Hispanic males at a Predominantly 
White Institution. Paper presented at the Southern Association for College Student Affairs Conference, 
Greenville, SC. 

 
Joseph, C.L., Green-Powell, P., & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2009). Mentoring as professional development 

toward the professoriate. Paper presented at the annual Southern Regional Council of Educational 
Administration Conference, Atlanta, GA. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P. (February, 2008). The perceptions of law school administrators concerning 

the One Florida Initiative. Paper presented at the annual Southeast Evaluation Association Conference, 
Tallahassee, FL. 



49 
 

 

Hilton, A.A., & Green-Powell, P. (November, 2007). The perceptions of law school administrators concerning 
the One Florida Initiative. Paper presented at the annual Southern Regional Council on Educational 
Administration Conference, Kansas City, MO. 

 
Coleman, C.R., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2006). Using public relations to maximize your student 

organization’s goals. Paper presented at the American College Unions International Region 4 
Conference, Baltimore, MD. 

 
State Presentations (Refereed) 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Platt, C.S. (September, 2017). Building a professional portfolio. South Carolina College 

Personnel Association Conference, Clemson University, Clemson, SC. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2015). Motivations to succeed: The voices of Black men in college. North Carolina 
College Personnel Association Conference, Elon University, Elon, NC. (funded through the 
Professional Development Grant) 

 
Ogaldez, T.J.M., Covington, M., & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2015). Undergraduate research experiences as 

an approach to engaging students. North Carolina College Personnel Association Conference, Elon 
University, Elon, NC. (with current student in HESA program) 

 
Ward, K.R., Burney, M., Hilton, A.A., & James, T. (October, 2015). The two key factors: Retention and 

race. North Carolina College Personnel Association Conference, Elon University, Elon, NC. 
 

Ward, K.R., Burney, M., Hilton, A.A., & James, T. (October, 2015). What is diversity without majority? 
North Carolina College Personnel Association Conference, Elon University, Elon, NC. 

 
Invited Presentations and/or Keynotes 

 
Hilton, A.A. (July, 2020). Leveraging resources to navigate careers in White spaces. Greater Pittsburgh 

Higher Education Diversity Consortium and Pennsylvania Black Conference on Higher Education, 
Professional Development Retreat. Virtual. (Panelist). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (July, 2020). Theatre of the oppressed. Musical Theatre Education Association’s Race, Equity 
and Inclusion Session. Virtual. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A. A. (July, 2019). How to disseminate your dissertation or master’s thesis findings? Northeastern 
University Graduate School of Education, Boston, MA. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (May, 2019). Approaches and strategies to addressing diversity, equity and inclusion issues in 
higher education. Wiley Publishing, The Learning House, Louisville, KY. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2019). An objective approach to a collaborative effort. Presented at the Undergraduate 
Research Conference, Seton Hill University, Greensburg, PA. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2019). The all in approach for student success. Presented at Carlow University. 
Pittsburgh, PA. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (March, 2019). Navigating the field of higher education: How to climb the ladder. Presented at 



50 
 

 

Indiana University of Pennsylvania. (Keynote). 
 

Hilton, A.A. (November, 2018). Engaging African American males in community college. Presented at the 
Book signing at Sister’s Uptown Bookstore. New York, NY. (Panelist). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (July, 2018). A time for renewal: Eagles soaring as champions. Presented at the Biannual Scott 
Branch High School Alumni Reunion. Miami, FL. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (February, 2018). Writing academic opinion articles and blogs. Presented at the University of 
Idaho’s Writing for Publication course, Moscow, ID. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (June, 2017). Beyond the BootCamp: Career trajectories and success in the academy. Presented at 
the Black Male Doctoral Research BootCamp, Florida State University, Tallahassee, FL. (Panelist). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (June, 2017). Publishing your research. Presented at the Black Male Doctoral Research 
BootCamp, Florida State University, Tallahassee, FL. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2017). Panel discussion on the Asa G. Hilliard III and Barbara A. Sizemore Research 
Course on African Americans and Education Alumni. Presented at the American Educational Research 
Association Annual Meeting. (Panelist). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2016). The evolution of accounting: How the accounting profession has fared in the past, 
opportunities available to students who enter into the accounting profession, and how the accounting 
profession will shape the future of businesses. Presented at the annual National Association of Black 
Accountants banquet, Grambling State University, Grambling, LA. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2016). The governing structures of state supported historically Black colleges and 
universities. Presented at Texas Southern University, Seminar on Governance in Higher Education 
(EDHI 942), Houston, TX. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A. A., & Covington, M. (January, 2016). Racism Module. Presented at the Social Justice 
Institute at Western Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. (Panelist) (with current student in HESA 
program) 

 
Covington, M., & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2015). Reaching students not like you. The College of 

Education & Allied Professions, Office of Field Experiences, Professional Development Day. Western 
Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. (Panelist). (with current student in HESA program) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (September, 2015). Hats Off! Jackson County Chapter of the National Association for the 
Advancement of Colored People, Humanitarian Awards Celebration, Dillsboro, NC. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (September, 2015). Ferguson: A report from occupied territory. Western Carolina 
University, Cullowhee, NC. (Panelist). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2015). Resiliency: Factors leading to success for Latin@ students. 2015 Latin@ 
Appreciation Student Organization RACIES event, Western Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. 
(Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A., & McClain, K.S. (March, 2015). Racism. College of Education & Allied Professions 



51 
 

 

Diversity Dialogue Series, Western Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. (Panelist) (with current 
student in HESA program) 

 
Ray, C.A., & Hilton, A.A. (February, 2015). What would you sit-in for? Tar Heel Tour. Cullowhee, 

North Carolina. (Panelist) (with current student in HESA program) 
 

Ray, C.A., McClain, K.S., & Hilton, A.A. (February, 2015). What is leadership? WheeLead Conference. 
Cullowhee, North Carolina. (Panelist) (with current students in HESA program) 

 

Hilton, A.A., & McClain, K.S. (January, 2015). Racism. Social Justice Institute, Western Carolina 
University, Cullowhee, NC. (Panelist) (with current student in HESA program) 

 

Hilton, A.A. Why Western Carolina University? (January, 2015). Kappa Sigma of Kappa Alpha Psi 
Fraternity, Inc. Retreat, Western Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2014). Unarmed: Ferguson, MO. Organization of Ebony Students event, 
Western Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2014). African American males in the academy. Guest scholar for the Aztec 
Research Fellowship Program, San Diego State University, San Diego, CA. (Keynote). 

 

Hilton, A.A. (September, 2014). Creating your significance: Are you ready to be a brand. Georgia 
Leadership Conference, Emory University, Atlanta, GA. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (August, 2014). Resiliency: Factors leading to success in college. 2014 Project C.A.R.E. 
Retreat, Western Carolina University, Cullowhee, NC. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (July, 2014). Building the brand of the HBCU researcher: Translating scholarship into media 
influence. 2014 HBCU Media Summit, Dillard University, New Orleans, LA. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2014). Black males in postsecondary education: Examining their experiences in 
diverse institutional contexts. HBCUs Can Maximize Minority Student Achievement and Success. “Roc 
The Mic” Program, Bethune-Cookman University, Daytona Beach, FL. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November, 2013). Real talk: What you really need to know to be successful. Vanderbilt 
University, Enhancing Diversity in Graduate Education program, Nashville, TN. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (November, 2013). To the PhD and beyond: Celebrating diversity now and throughout 
your career. Vanderbilt University, Enhancing Diversity in Graduate Education program, 
Nashville, TN. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2013). Diverse, driven and determined. Annual Michigan College Personnel 
Association Meeting, Grand Rapids, MI. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2013). Last tango in halifax screening - WGVU. Grand Rapids, MI. (Panelist) 
 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2013). The art of networking. Women! Let’s hear it from the men conference, 
Grand Rapids, MI. (Panelist) 



52 
 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2013). Local best practices on retaining students of color. West Michigan 
Presidents' Compact Committee Professional Development Day, Grand Rapids, MI. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2013). Mobilizing the whole community to maximize minority student achievement 
and success. 2nd Annual African American Male Student Achievement and Success Symposium, 
Houston, TX. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (September, 2013). Diversity begins with Upper Iowa University. Upper Iowa 
University’s Diversity Series, Fayette, IA. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (March, 2013). Black males in postsecondary education: Examining their experiences in diverse 
institutional contexts. 16th Annual Regional HBCU Summit on Retention, Ocean City, MD. 
(Keynote) 

 

Carter, T., Clark, I., Hilton, A.A., & Johnson, B. (March, 2013). Leadership and Mentoring Institute panel 
discussion. American Association of Blacks in Higher Education Annual Meeting, Atlanta, GA. 
(Panelist) 

 

Palmer, R.T., Hilton, A.A., & Fountaine, T.P. (February, 2013). Black graduate education at 
Historically Black Colleges and Universities: Trends, experiences, and outcomes. Council of 
Historically Black Graduate Schools Conference, Greenville, SC. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (April, 2012). Building relationships within the Board. Association of Governing Boards, 

Workshop for Board Professionals, National Harbor, MD. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2012). Life after board professional. Association of Governing Boards, Workshop for 
Board Professionals, National Harbor, MD. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (March, 2012). Working with Boards for Trustees. National Association of Presidential 

Assistants in Higher Education conference, Los Angeles, CA. 
 

Hallam, J.A., Hilton, A.A., & Larkin, W.D. (March, 2012). The President’s Office Manual. National 
Association of Presidential Assistants in Higher Education conference, Los Angeles, CA. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (November, 2011). The path to the Ph.D. Vanderbilt University, Enhancing Diversity in 

Graduate Education program, Nashville, TN. (Panelist) 
 

Hilton, A.A. (November, 2011). Career choices for Ph.D.s. Vanderbilt University, Enhancing Diversity 
in Graduate Education program, Nashville, TN. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2011). Capturing the educational experiences of young men of color. 
The College Board Forum, New York, NY. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2011). The importance of the student affairs profession. Iowa Student Personnel 
Association Conference, Waverly, IA. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2011). Navigating the field of higher education: How to climb the ladder? Iowa 
Student Personnel Association Conference, Waverly, IA. 



53 
 

 

Hilton, A.A. (April, 2011). Doing more with less in the Board Office. Association of Governing Boards, 
Board Professional Workshop, Los Angeles, CA. 

 
Kipp, M., DiJohn, A., & Hilton, A.A. (October, 2010). What is leadership? Upper Iowa University, 

Office of Student Development, Fayette, IA. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2010). Diversity in the classroom. Upper Iowa University, Division of Education 
and Health, Physical Education, and Recreation, Fayette, IA. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (September, 2010). White privilege, Critical Race Theory, and interest convergence in the 21st 

century. Upper Iowa University, Division of Education and Health, Physical Education, and Recreation, 
Fayette, IA. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (March, 2010). Managing the President’s calendar. National Association of Presidential 

Assistants in Higher Education 23rd Annual National Conference, Phoenix, AZ. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (June, 2009). The power of the vote: Change. Clarion University of Pennsylvania, 7th 

Annual Juneteenth Celebration. Clarion, PA. (Keynote) 
 

Hilton, A.A. (June, 2009). The perceptions of administrators concerning the One Florida Initiative. Clarion 
University of Pennsylvania, Clarion, PA. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (June, 2009). The perceptions of administrators concerning the One Florida Initiative. Clarion 

University of Pennsylvania, Venango Campus, PA. 
 

Harrell, I.L., & Hilton, A.A. (May, 2009). How to get the job? The Art Institute of Washington Career 
Services Division, Alexandria, VA. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (April, 2009). Brother, sister beware: Negotiating challenges to African American academic 

success, social responsibility, and civic leadership. Coppin State University Black Male Initiative 
and African American History Month Committee, Baltimore, MD. (Panelist) 

 

Hilton, A.A., & Turnipseed, I.B. (November, 2008). Dissertation and thesis writing: How to get over the 
slump and just get it done. National Black Graduate Student Association Northeastern Regional 
Conference, Bloomsburg University, Bloomsburg, PA. 

 
Hilton, A.A. (August, 2007). Peer advising on the graduate level. Morgan State University Faculty 

Institute, Baltimore, MD. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (July, 2007).  Factors leading to success in college.  The Pre-College Program at Morgan State 
University, Baltimore, MD. (Keynote) 

 

Hilton, A.A. (September, 2006). The challenges of a graduate student. Morgan State University 
Graduate Student Orientation, Baltimore, MD. 

 
Hilton, A.A., & Davenport, E.K. (February, 2005). Is affirmative action still needed and its influence on 

public management: One Florida Initiative? The Florida Senate, Tallahassee, FL. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (October, 2004). What is the experience of a graduate student? Florida A&M 



54 
 

 

University Graduate Feeder Seminar, Tallahassee, FL. 
 

Hilton, A.A. (July, 1999). Civil rights activist: Highlighting the life of Medgar Wiley Evers. The National 
Association for the Advancement of Colored People National Convention, New York, NY. (Keynote) 

 

Poster Presentations (Refereed) 
 

Hilton, A.A., McClain, K.S., Ray, C.A., & Childs, J.L. (March, 2016). HBCUs Can Maximize Minority 
Student Achievement and Success. Poster presented at the annual American College Personnel 
Association Convention, Montreal, B.C. (with current student in HESA program) 

 
Ray, C.A., Hilton, A.A., Wood, J.L, & Hicks, T.L. (March, 2016).  Motivational factors for academic 

success: Prospectives of African American males at historically Black colleges and universities. Poster 
presented at the annual American College Personnel Association Convention, Montreal, B.C. (with 
current student in HESA program) 

 
Ward, K.R., Davis, D.J., & Hilton, A.A. (November, 2015) How do we retain them? A theoretical 

framework of best practices employed for African American and Hispanic males at a Predominately 
White Institution. Poster presented at the Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference, 
Denver, CO. (with current student in HESA program) 

 
Hilton, A.A. (September, 2007). The perceptions of administrators concerning the One Florida Initiative. 

Poster presented at the National Black Graduate Student Association Northeastern Regional Conference, 
University of Maryland College Park, MD. 

 
UNIVERSITY SERVICE 

 
Seton Hill University, Charity Formation Participant, 2018 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Health Benefits Working Group, 2019 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Mission and Identity Committee, 2018 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Student Affairs Leadership Team, 2018 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Title IX Deputy Investigator, 2018 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Presidential Task Force for Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, Co-Chair, 2020 – Present 
Seton Hill University, CARE Team Member, 2018 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Policy Committee, 2020 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Class of 2022 Co-Advisor, 2018 – Present 
Seton Hill University, Greater Pittsburgh Higher Education Diversity Consortium Professional Development 
Meeting, Moderator, 2019 

Seton Hill University, Assistant Professor of Nursing, Search Committee Member, 2020 
Seton Hill University, Nurse, Search Committee Member, 2020 
Seton Hill University, Graduate and Professional and Adult Programs Counselor, Search Committee Member, 
2019 

Seton Hill University, Director of Graduate and Professional and Adult Programs, Search Committee Member, 
2018 

Seton Hill University, Director of the Math Enrichment Center, Search Committee Member, 2019 
 

Webster University, Proctored National Counselor Examination for Licensure and Certification (NCE), 2017 
Webster University, Department of Professional Counseling, Advisory Board Member, 2017 – 2018 



55 
 

 

Grambling State University, President’s Cabinet Member, 2016 
Grambling State University, President’s Extended Cabinet Member, 2016 
Grambling State University Athletic Director Search Committee Member, 2016 
Grambling State University Strategic Planning Committee, Co-Chair, 2016 
Grambling State University Commencement Committee Member, 2016 
Grambling State University Emergency Response Committee Member, 2016 
Grambling State University Bayou Classic Committee, Co-Chair, 2016 

 
Clemson University Best Practices Conference Advisory Board Member, 2012 – 2013 

 
Morehouse College HBCU-UP Education Research External Advisory Committee Member, 2011 – 
2012 

North Carolina College Personnel Association, Mock Interview Team Member (for Graduate Students), 2015 

Western Carolina University, First Generation College Student Advisory Board Member, 2015 
Western Carolina University, Homecoming Interview Selection Panel, 2015 
Western Carolina University, Fraternity and Sorority Life Pillars of Excellence Committee, 2015 
Western Carolina University, Chief Diversity Officer Search Committee Member, 2015 
Western Carolina University, Assistant Professor of Educational Research Search Committee Member, 2015 
Western Carolina University College of Education & Allied Professions, Advancement Council 
Member, 2015 

Western Carolina University College of Education & Allied Professions, Co-Chair Diversity 
Committee, 2014 - 2015 

Western Carolina University College of Education & Allied Professions, Department of Human 
Services, Curriculum Committee Member, 2014 – 2015 

Western Carolina University College of Education & Allied Professions, Department of Human 
Services, Administrative Support Associate Search Committee Member, 2014 

Western Carolina University College of Education & Allied Professions, Department of Human 
Services, Department Chair Search Committee Member, 2015 

Western Carolina University Division of Student Affairs, Director of Intercultural Affairs, Search 
Committee Member, 2015 

Western Carolina University Division of Student Affairs, Associate Director of Intercultural Affairs, 
Search Committee Member, 2015 

Western Carolina University Division of Student Affairs, Associate Director for Fraternity and 
Sorority Life, Search Committee Member, 2015 

Western Carolina University First Generation Mentoring Program, Mentor, 2014 – 2015 
Western Carolina University, Kappa Sigma Chapter Co-Advisor, Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Inc., 
2014; Advisor, 2015 

Western Carolina University, University Club Member, 2015 
Western Carolina University, Participant, Fall Commencement, 2014 
Western Carolina University, Participant, Spring Commencement, 2015 
Western Carolina University, Participant, Fall Convocation, 2014, 2015 

 
Grand Valley State University, Rho Xi Chapter Co-Advisor, Phi Mu Alpha Sinfonia Fraternity of 
America, Inc., 2012 - 2013 

Grand Valley State University Latino/a Initiative Committee Member, 2012 – 2013 
Grand Valley State University WGVU Engage, Inclusion Committee, Member 2012 – 2013 



56 
 

 

Grand Valley State University Freshman Academy Committee Member, 2012 - 2013 
Grand Valley State University, Inclusion Champion, 2012 - 2013 

 
University of Northern Iowa, Nu Kappa Chapter Co-Advisor, Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Inc., 2010 - 
2012 

 
Upper Iowa University, President’s Society Member, 2011 
Upper Iowa University Carnegie Community Engagement Classification Application, Principal 
Investigator, 2010 

Upper Iowa University, AACRAO Program Advisory Team Member, 2011 
Upper Iowa University, Stadium Design Committee Member, 2011 
Upper Iowa University, Administration and Staff Handbook Committee Member, 2011 
Upper Iowa University, Diversity Council Chair, 2011 
Upper Iowa University, Homecoming Committee Member, 2011 
Upper Iowa University, Assistant Director of Residence Life and Coordinator for Educational 
Initiatives Search Committee Member, 2011 

Upper Iowa University, Vice President for International Programs Search Committee Member, 2011 
Upper Iowa University, Editorial Services Director Search Committee Member, 2012 
Upper Iowa University, Assistant Dean/Director of Counseling Services Search Committee Member, 
2011 

Upper Iowa University, Assistant Professor of Geosciences Search Committee Member, 2012 
Upper Iowa University, Director of Planned Giving Search Committee Member, 2012 
Upper Iowa University, Director of Corporate Foundations Search Committee Member, 2012 
Upper Iowa University, Director of Annual Giving Search Committee Member, 2011 Upper Iowa University 
President’s Cabinet, Member, 2009 – 2012 
Upper Iowa University Enrollment Management Steering Committee, Member, 2010 – 2012 
Upper Iowa University Career Development AQIP Committee, Member, 2011 - 2012 
Upper Iowa University Food Service Selection Committee, 2010 
Upper Iowa University Commencement Committee Member, 2009 – 2012 
Upper Iowa University Peacock Connection (Book Store) Advisory Committee, 2009 – 2010 
Upper Iowa University Ribbon Cutting Committee, 2010 
Upper Iowa University Honors and Awards Committee, 2010 – 2012 
Upper Iowa University Black Student Union, Co-Advisor, 2009 – 2010 
Upper Iowa University Web-Team, Member, 2009 – 2012 
Upper Iowa University, Assistant Professor of Chemistry, Search Committee Member, 2010 
Upper Iowa University, Interim Vice President of Marketing and Communications, 
Search Committee Member, 2009 

Upper Iowa University, Executive Director of Marketing and Communications, 
Search Committee Member, 2009 

Upper Iowa University, Academic Quality Improvement Program of the Higher 
Learning Commission - North Central Association of Colleges and School Reviewer, 
2009 

 
Maryland State Department of Education DECA Competition, Judge, 2009 
Morgan State University, Middle States Self Study Review Team, 2006 – 2008 
Morgan State University Counseling Center, Proctored Praxis, National Board 
Certifications and LSAT examinations, 2006 - 2007 
Morgan State Graduate Student Association, President, 2006 - 2007 
Morgan State University Council, Graduate Student Representative, 2006 - 2007 



57 
 

 

Morgan State University Council, Academic and Student Affairs Committee, 2006 - 2007 
Morgan State University Graduate Student Concerns Advisory Committee, 2006 - 2007 
Morgan State University Judicial Board, Member, 2005 – 2007 
Morgan Male Initiative on Leadership & Excellence, Senior Mentor, 2005 – 2007 

 
Florida A&M University Graduate Student Association, Treasurer, 2004 - 2005 
Florida A&M University Graduate Class Cabinet, Parliamentarian, 2004 – 2005 

 
Morehouse College Student Government, Elections Committee Member, 2002 – 2003 
Morehouse College Senior Class, Secretary, 2002 – 2003 
Atlanta University Center Council, Member, 2001 - 2002 
Morehouse College Junior Class, Secretary, 2001 – 2002 
Morehouse College Executive Mentorship Program, Participant, 2001 - 2002 
Morehouse College Student Government Association, Deputy Director of Community 

Service, 2000 – 2001 
 

DISSERTATION/DISQUISITION/THESIS COMMITTEES 
 

The University of New Orleans 
 

August 2020 Kevin S. McClain, Get rich or die tryin’: Media and Black male academic identity 
development. Ph.D., Educational Administration (Higher Education) (Committee 
Member) 

 
The University of Pittsburgh 

 

August 2020 Tracy Bowman, Improving health programs for Seton Hill University first-generation 
college student-athletes. Ed.D., Health and Physical Activity (Committee Member) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

June 2020 Eric H.C. Chow, Effectiveness of introductory coding education on the self-efficacy 
beliefs of Hong Kong liberal arts students: A case study. Ed.D., Organizational 
Leadership Studies (Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

June 2020 Michael A. Pinnock. Any port in a storm: How African American men use relationships 
to navigate corporate America. Ed.D., Organizational Leadership Studies (Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

March 2020 Shannon Joseph Fairley-Pittman. Understanding the motivation behind the success of 
first-generation college students. Ed.D., Organizational Leadership Studies (Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 



58 
 

 

March 2020 Locksley Knibbs. Characteristics, attributes, and qualifications public institutions of 
higher education seek in presidential candidates. Ed.D., Higher Education 
Administration (Committee Member) 

 
Rowan University 

 

February 2020 Ajeenah Nuriddin. Examining the silent voices in adult education: The experiences of 
African American males at a 4-year open access institution. Ed.D., Educational 
Leadership (Committee Member) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

July 2019 Katherine Lynch. Financial Aid Award Notification Design: Understanding Student 
Social and Cultural Capital to Improve Transparency of College Costs. Ed.D., Higher 
Education Administration (Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

June 2019 Field Chakudzidwa Ruwe. Demystifying African American entrepreneurial gap: A 
phenomenological approach. Ed.D., Organizational Leadership Studies (Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

June 2019 Anna-Theresa C. Wise. Stress of intercultural communication and international student 
participation in student organizations. Ed.D., Higher Education Administration (Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

June 2019 Michael R. Williams. #AMIMANENOUGH: Black male racial and masculine identity 
development in the digital landscape of Twitter. Ed.D., Higher Education Administration 
(Chair) 

 
Northeastern University 

 

May 2019 Rebecca L. Simon. Using a faculty community of practice to support college students 
with mental health needs. Ed.D., Higher Education Administration (Chair) 

 
Pepperdine University 

 

April 2016 Floyd Hardin. African American gay male entrepreneurs: A study of enabling and 
inhibiting factors impacting entrepreneurial success. Ed.D., Organizational Leadership 
(Committee Member) 

 
Western Carolina University 

 

February 2016  Amy Cooke, Penny Cross, and Sara Newcomb. Interventions to increase success of 
nontraditional students in higher education. Ed.D., Educational Leadership 
(Committee Member) 



59 
 

 

San Diego State University 
 

October 2014 Jason E. Allen. Social predictors of valuing academic achievement among Black 
males in secondary education. Ed.D., Post-Secondary Education Leadership (Committee 
Member) 

 
Duquesne University 

 

July 2014 Ronald W. Whitaker, II. Beyond the touchdowns and slam-dunks: A critical examination 
of how revenue playing African American male students athletes at Predominately White 
Institutions experience and perceive the climate on their campus. Ed.D., Educational 
Leadership (Committee Member) 

 
SELECTED PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 

 
Editorial/Advisory Board, Journal of Negro Education, 2013 – Present 
Editorial Board, College Student Affairs Journal, 2016 – Present 
Editorial Board, Journal of Minority Achievement, Creativity, and Leadership, 2019 – Present 
Editorial Board, Di Kan: The Journal of HBCU Leadership, 2020 – Present 
Chicora Rotary Club, Public Relations Committee Member, 2017 – 2018 
Discussant, American Educational Research Association Conference, 2017 
Editorial Board, Rowman & Littlefield Publishing, Studies in Anti-Intellectualism & Academic 
Achievement Series, 2013 – 2015 

Advisory Board, Journal of African American Males in Education, 2012 – Present 
Editorial Board, Journal of the International Association for the Study of the Global 
Achievement Gap, 2010 – 2012 
Section Editor for Education Policy, Journal of African American Males in Education, 2009 - 2012 
Young Scholars Editorial Board, Journal of Negro Education, 2010 - 2012 
Reviewer, Emerald Press (Book) 
Reviewer, Routledge, Taylor & Francis (Journal) 
Reviewer, Trends in Diversity 
Reviewer, Educational Researcher 
Reviewer, Journal of African American Studies 
Reviewer, Journal of Black Studies 
Reviewer, Journal of Economic Psychology 
Reviewer, Journal of College Student Retention: Research, Theory and Practice 
Reviewer, Journal for Multicultural Education 
Reviewer, Journal of the Professoriate 
Reviewer, Council of Undergraduate Research Quarterly Review 
Reviewer, National Journal of Urban Education and Practice 
Session Chair, Hawaii International Conference on Education, Education Policy & 
Leadership, 2010 

Leadership & Mentoring Institute Committee Member, American Association of Blacks in 
Higher Education, 2010 – 2016, Alumni Relations Committee Member, 2014 – 2016 
Doctoral Student Award Committee Member, American Association of Blacks in 
Higher Education, 2009 – 2012 

Proposal Reviewer, Critical Race Studies in Education Association Conference, 2010 
Proposal Reviewer, American College Personnel Association Conference, 2010, 2011 
Proposal Reviewer, Association for the Study of Higher Education Conference, 2007, 



60 
 

 

2008, 2009, 2010, 2013 
Reviewer, The Center for African American Research and Policy, Occasional Paper 
Series 2009 

Proposal Reviewer, American College Personnel Association, Leadership 
Educators Institute 2008 

Proposal Reviewer, National Association of Student Personnel Administrators Conference 2008 
Proposal Reviewer, American Education Research Association Conference, 2015, 2010, 2007 
Junior Moderator, Brothers of the Academy 2006 Think Tank 
American College Personnel Association, Commission for Student Involvement Mentor, 2006 – 
2010 

 
CIVIC AFFILIATIONS 

 
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Life Member 
Michael R. Moore Lodge #764, Free & Accepted Masonry, Prince Hall Affiliated 
Phi Mu Alpha Sinfonia Fraternity of America, Incorporated 

 
OFFICES HELD IN PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

 
American Educational Research Association, Multicultural/Multiethnic Education: 

Theory, Research, and Practice Special Interest Group, Immediate Past Chair, 2015 – 2016; Chair, 
2014 – 2015, Vice Chair, 2010 – 2013 

Southern Association for College Student Affairs, Chair, Faculty/Graduate Professional Preparation Programs, 
2015 – 2017 

South Carolina College Personnel Association, Diversity & Inclusion Chair, 2017 – 2018 
National Association of Presidential Assistants in Higher Education, National 
Conference Committee Member, 2009; Treasurer, 2011 – 2012 
American Educational Research Association, Division A, Affirmative Action Committee 
Member, 2009 – 2010 

Association of Governing Boards, Board Professional Leadership Group, Vice Chair, Program 
Committee, 2011 – 2012; Chair, Program Committee, 2012 

Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Incorporated, Baltimore Alumni Chapter, Investment 
Committee Member, 2009 

National Black Graduate Student Association, Co-Advisor for Corporate and 
Institutional Development, 2008 – 2010; Vice President for Conference Affairs, 
2007 – 2008; Membership Committee Member, 2004 - 2005 

Baltimore Morehouse Alumni Association, Corresponding Secretary, 2006 – 2009 
Baltimore City Youth Commission, Youth Commissioner, 3rd District, 2007 – 2008 
National Association of Black Accountants Collegiate Chapter, Vice President, 2000 – 
2002 
Phi Mu Alpha Sinfonia Fraternity of America, Incorporated, Special Events 
Coordinator, 2000 – 2001; Secretary, 2001 – 2002; Treasurer, 2002 - 2003 

National Association for the Advancement of Colored People Collegiate Chapter, Vice 
President, 1999 – 2002 

National Association for Student Affairs Professionals, Conference Co-Chair, 2015 – Present 
National Association for Student Affairs Professionals Foundation Board (Melvin C. Terrell Foundation Board), 
Acting Secretary & Treasurer, 2015 - Present; Vice Chair, Budget & Finance Committee, 2016 – Present 



61 
 

 

MEMBERSHIP IN PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS 
 

American Association of Blacks in Higher Education 
American College Personnel Association 
American Educational Research Association 
Association for the Study of Higher Education 
Brothers of the Academy 
International Association for the Global Achievement Gap 
Morehouse College National Alumni Association, Life Member 
Morgan State University National Alumni Association, Life Member 
National Alliance of Black School Educators 
National Association for the Advancement of Colored People 
National Association of Student Personnel Administrators 
National Association of Student Affairs Professionals 
100 Black Men of America, Incorporated, Tallahassee Area Chapter 

 



















 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
   

February 26, 2021 
 
Dr. Ray L. Belton 
President – Chancellor 
Southern University System 
4th Floor. J. S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, LA 7081 
 
Dear Dr. Belton:  
 
I am pleased to submit the name of Dr. Kim Evans Rugon as Vice Chancellor for Institutional Advancement at 
Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO). Her annual salary will be $115,000.  Dr. Rugon’s outstanding 
professional career spans over 30 years highlighted by her skills as a prolific fund-raiser.  In her current 
position as Vice President for Workforce Development/Institutional Advancement with Goodwill Industries of 
Southeast Louisiana, she has developed strategic partnerships with corporations, foundations and 
governmental agencies at the federal, state, and local levels. As part of her current duties, she is also intricately 
involved in the planning process of the annual Goodwill Ball that raises additional donor funds to support the 
workforce development department. 
 
Dr. Rugon’s career also reflects various leadership positions in higher education. She has served as the 
Executive Dean of Technical Education, Delgado Community College and Vice Chancellor of the Louisiana 
Technical College, Region One which includes 5 campuses. Dr. Rugon’s extensive experience with a non-
profit organization and her leadership positions in higher education make her a most suitable candidate to fill 
the position for which she has applied for at SUNO. 
 
Some of her colleagues have praised her abilities to follow through on donor and grant prospects that resulted 
in organizations making contributions. One colleague described her as having the aptitude to do extremely well 
in any organizational setting because of an excellent work ethic and her diligence in completing quality work 
in a timely manner. 
 
During my interview with Dr. Rugon, I quickly noticed some of her outstanding characteristics as described by 
her colleagues. Based on her proven professional record and what was observed during our interview, I believe 
that Dr. Rugon has the knowledge, skills and abilities to become a major contributor to SUNO’s long term 
sustainability and as an integral member of the leadership team.  Therefore, I am seeking your support and the 
approval of the Board of Supervisors of my recommendation. 
 
With kind regards, 

 
James H. Ammons, Jr., PhD 
Executive Vice-President – Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 
 
APPROVED:  __________________________________ 
                        Ray L. Belton, Ph. D. 
           President – Chancellor 
                        Southern University System                        

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA  70126 
Phone: (504) 286-5311 Fax: (504) 286-5000 

www.suno.edu 

Office of the Chancellor                                              
 



JOB CLASS     SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM  

  JOB CODE     Personnel Action Form POSITION 
NUMBER       

CAL ID            

  
CAMPUS: SUS    SUBR     SULAC    SUAREC     SUNO  X  SUSLA   
 
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY:  9-MONTH    12-MONTH    OTHER   (Specify)       
 

   Academic  X Non-Academic     Civil Service 
   Temporary     Part-Time (       % of Full Time)     Restricted 
   Tenured     Undergraduate Student     Job Appointment 
   Tenured Track     Graduate Assistant     Probationary 
   Other (Specify)     Retiree Return To Work     Permanent Status 

 
Previous Employee Gloria Moultrie   Reason Left Retired 
 
Date Left 12/31/19  Salary Paid $85,623.90 
 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment        To       
 
Effective Date        
 
Name Kim Rugon   SS#  xxx-xx-      Sex  Female Race* Black 
 
Position Title: Vice Chancellor for Advancement Department: Office of the Chancellor  
 
Check One X Existing Position  *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): US 
       
   New Position   Expiration Date:       

 (Position  vacancy   authorization  form  must   be  processed  and  approved  to  fill 
existing and new positions.  Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

  

 
Years Experience        Southern University Experience 6 months 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education):  Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge):    Year: 
 Bachelor of Science.  St. Mary's Dominican College  1984 
 Master of Business Adminisration.  University of New Orleans  2003 
 Doctor of Philosophy  Jackson State University  2011 
 

Current Employer Goodwill Industries of Southeastern Louisiana, Inc. 
 

Personnel Action 
 

Check One   New Appointment   Continuation   Sabbatical    Leave of Absence 
   Transfer X Replacement   Other (Specify)        
Recommended Salary $115,000  Salary Budgeted $0.00 
 
Source of Funds State  
 Identify Budget: General  Location  411001-41210-61002-4600 
 Form Code:        Page       Item #        
Change of:       
  From  To 
Position  r        
Status               
Salary Adjustment $0.00  $0.00  

Financial Aid signature (if, applicable): 
List total funds currently paid this employee by  Source of Funds Amount 
Southern University: 411001-48110-61002-46000 $115,000.00 
*See Reverse Side             

Comments: (Use back of form)              
             
*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 
 
 
   
Supervisor  Date  Dean/Unit Head Date 

   
Vice Chancellor  Date  Chancellor Date 
   
Director/Personnel  Date  Vice President/Finance 

Business Affairs/Comptroller 
Date 

   
President  Date  Chairman/S.U. Board 

Of Supervisor 
Date 

2/26/21



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and 
does not affect employment considerations. 
 
 ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one): 
 

   Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 
    
 RACE (Please check all that apply):   

 
   White.  Not of Hispanic origin.  A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

 
X Black.  Not of Hispanic Origin.  A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 
  

   
Hispanic.  A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
regardless of race. 

  

   
Asian or Pacific Islander.  A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands.  This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

  

   
American Indian or Alaskan Native.  A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognitions. 

  
 
COMMENTS: :  
      
      
      
      
 
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE:  M-F, 8:00 am TO 5:00 pm 
 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR:  James H. Ammons, Jr. Ph.D. 
 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any)  5 
 
HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 
 
GUIDELINES:  All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work.  All students are to bring with  them  clearance  from  the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule.  All prospective employees/students must bring  a  pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/I-94.  The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 
 
Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 
 
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): 
     
TYPE  CODES  EXPIRES 
     
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization  US        
Resident Alien  RA        
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)  H1        
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)  J1        
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)  F1        
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”)  F0        

 
 

Do Not Write Below This Area 
For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only! 

  
 
 
Rev. 6/30/2005 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
 Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
 Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 
 Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
 Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee) 
 Exemptions Survey Form 
 Proposed Employee Appointment 
 Proposed Employee Clearance 
 Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 



















 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 

                                                                                                February 22, 2021  

Dr. Ray L. Belton  
President-Chancellor  
Southern University System 
4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administrative Bldg.  
Baton Rouge, LA  70813  

 Dear Dr. Belton: 

I would like to recommend an increase in salary for Dr. Torin Sanders, a tenured Associate Professor in the School of Social 
Work, as he is assigned new responsibilities. He is charged with developing and establishing an on-line certificate program in 
Interdisciplinary Social Work for Child Welfare.  This new program, funded by a Title IV-E grant, engages multiple disciplines 
that work to improve the lives of children and families. The program will be disseminated throughout the state to child welfare 
staff and to individuals interested in developing skills for working with vulnerable children.   

Dr. Torin Sanders is the ideal faculty member for this position because of his extensive and intensive experiences with children 
and families.  He has academic and practice experience with the systems that strengthen family life. In addition to having served 
two terms as President of the Orleans Parish School Board, Dr. Sanders developed an evidenced based intervention for children 
impacted by violence in the New Orleans community. The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 
(SAMHSA) now promote this evidenced based intervention, Project LAST for use by professionals.  He is a certified Custody 
Mediator and he has managed programs with developmentally disabled adults and families. Dr. Sanders is a licensed clinical social 
worker with more than 32 years of experience in the field of social work.  He is sought after as a motivational speaker and 
educator for professional social workers, legal and health care professionals, and others who seek knowledge and skills about the 
interpersonal and environmental aspects of various social ills.  He is a published scholar and recently co-authored Called to Care, 
Promoting compassionate healing for our children, a report submitted to the New Orleans City Council.  He is also the author of 
several chapters in textbooks.   

I am requesting that Dr. Sanders receive $ 28,000 annually for these new responsibilities.  He will continue to teach and serve as a 
faculty member while developing the new program. His new salary while serving with these additional responsibilities will be 
$75,300.  

We look forward to your support of this recommendation and approval by the Southern University System Board of Supervisors.  

Sincerely,  

 
James H. Ammons Jr., Ph.D. 
Executive Vice-President – Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans  
 
  
  
 
Approval:  ________________________________  
                   Dr. Ray L. Belton 
                   President-Chancellor  
                   Southern University System  
 

    SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA  70126 
Phone: (504) 286-5311 Fax: (504) 286-5000 

www.suno.edu 

            Office of the Chancellor                                              
 







 
TORIN TRAVIS SANDERS 

 
EDUCATION 

 
 

*TULANE UNIVERSITY, New Orleans, Louisiana  
 Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) Social Work (2009) 

Research & practice interests: Children’s mental health, Black male development, 
Premarital counseling, Traumatic stress, Education Policy 

 
*TULANE UNIVERSITY, New Orleans, Louisiana 8/87 - 12/88 
 Master of Social Work, specialty in family and children, family therapy. 
 Elected President of Student Government Association (SGA) 
 
*HOWARD UNIVERSITY, Washington, D.C.  8/82 - 5/86 
 Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy 
 PHI BETA KAPPA 
 MAGNA CUM LAUDE 
 National Merit Scholar (1982-1986) 
 
 
 

ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS (January 2015-Present)  
Associate Professor - Teach MSW courses online and on ground; Conduct 
scholarly research; Advise students; Serve on faculty/university committees such 
as: 
Member, Vice Chancellor for Advancement Search Committee (2021) 
Member, Chancellor Search Committee (2020) 
Member, Chancellor’s Planning Committee (2020) 
Member, Social Work Faculty Search Committees (2019, 2020) 
Faculty Advisor, Phi Alpha Social Work Honor Society (2017 – 2020) 
Faculty Athletic Representative (2018 – 2019, Chancellor appointment) 
Member, Executive Committee, Faculty Senate (2017 – 2019) 
Chair, Licensure Preparation Committee (2017- 2019) 
Chair, Children, Youth & Family Committee (2015-present) 
Chair, Admissions Committee (2016-2017)   

 
 

Southern University at New Orleans (Intermittent basis, Fall 1992-Fall 2015) Adjunct 
Faculty - Taught several Graduate and Undergraduate level Courses including: 
 

*Family Violence 
*Children in Crisis 



*Direct Services I 
*Field Seminar III 

*Administration, Planning & Organization 1 
*Human Behavior in Social Environment 

*Health/Mental Health Seminar 
*Research & Statistics 
*Social Welfare Policy 

 
 
 
Tulane University School of Social Work, New Orleans, Louisiana (Summer 1996) 
Adjunct Faculty - Taught graduate level course entitled "Human Behavior and the 
Social Environment: Organizations and Communities." 

 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 

PRIVATE PRACTICE, New Orleans, Louisiana (2002 – present) Conduct court-
ordered Custody Evaluations, Co-Parent Classes; Provide Individual, Family, and 
Couples Therapy; Clinical Supervisor for staff of local Mental Health Rehabilitation 
agency; Staff training to several local social service agencies; Management Consultation. 

 
 

THE SIXTH BAPTIST CHURCH, New Orleans, Louisiana 4/97 - Present 
 Pastor - Oversee church ministries, provide family, couples and individual 
counseling; preach, teach and provide community leadership. 
 
VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA, New Orleans, Louisiana 10/2005 – 11/2006 
 Vice-President, Program Operations - Provide senior level management of 
agency programs focused on developing and restarting agency programs in the aftermath 
of Hurricane Katrina.  
 
AGENDA FOR CHILDREN, New Orleans, Louisiana 8/98 – 10/02 
 Coordinator, The Children’s Services Collaborative – Provided leadership to 
citywide organization of child-serving agencies funded in part through efforts of the  
United Way and Office of the Mayor. Created and advocated for policy changes within 
agencies and at the local and state level regarding services to children and families. 

 
GREATER NEW ORLEANS FOUNDATION, New Orleans, Louisiana 12/97 - 6/98 
 Program Officer - Administer the Foundation's Black Church Capacity-Building 
Institute on Community Economic Development; Meet with and research prospective 
grantees, make funding recommendations to Board. 
 
VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA, New Orleans, Louisiana 4/96 - 12/97 



 Vice-President, Program Operations - Provide senior level management of 
agency programs including group homes, halfway houses, therapeutic foster care, case  
management and community programs, ensuring provision of quality services, 
compliance with policy and procedure, funding and licensing regulations. Develop new 
agency programs and positive relations with the community, funders and donors. 
 
 
VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA, New Orleans, Louisiana 7/95 - 4/96 
 Director, Juvenile Services - Administrator of several programs including 
Therapeutic Foster Care, Crisis Respite, Recreational Respite, Parent Education.  Wrote 
successful proposal for $1.2 million to Louisiana Children's Cabinet for Family 
Preservation/Family Support Services.  Founded New Orleans Coalition for Family 
Empowerment. Total program budget exceeds $1 million. 
 
 
CHILDREN'S BUREAU, New Orleans, Louisiana 7/93 - 7/95 
 Director, Community & Clinical Program - Promoted to newly-created 
position; wrote and managed grants/contracts with federal, state, and local funders; 
managed program budget of over $500,000; staff Strategic Planning and Finance 
Committees of the Board; implemented Medicaid Psych Rehab Option and Case  
Management; design and implement agency-based research; received award from 
Metropolitan Area Committee (MAC) for Project LAST. 
 
CHILDREN'S BUREAU, New Orleans, Louisiana 12/90 - 6/93 
 Coordinator, Project LAST - Began new program for child survivors of 
homicide victims and children exposed to violence; developed expertise in clinical 
assessment and treatment of childhood grief and trauma; managed program growth from 
budget of $40,000 to over $200,000; wrote grants totalling $300,000 over 3 years; 
successfully marketed program to gain community visibility; prepared funding reports; 
supervised clinical staff and graduate students; provided home-based family therapy; 
recruited and trained community volunteers; planned Statewide conference on victims 
and violence. 
 
 
VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA, New Orleans, Louisiana 6/90 - 12/90 
 Supervisor, Community Housing Program - Began new program providing 
housing for persons with chronic mental illness; manage budget of over $200,000; 
supervise staff of 3; wrote policy manual and brochure; prepared funding reports. 
 
 
 
MILNE BOYS HOME, New Orleans, Louisiana 6/89 - 6/90 
 Coordinator, Louis Armstrong Manhood Development Program - Began a 
"Rites of Passage" after school program serving 50 urban males ages 9-17; supervise staff 
of 6; develop program materials; serve as liaison to advisory board; organize public  



relations campaigns; conduct parent education classes; recruit volunteers; develop 
referral sources. 
 
KINGSLEY HOUSE, New Orleans, Louisiana 12/88 - 6/89 
 Supervisor, Parent-Child Center - Wrote an unpublished manual on Parent 
Education; significantly increased center's enrollment and attendance; provided family  
and individual therapy; supervised volunteer and professional staff; managed agency's 
intake system; established 400-volume children's library. 
 

 
CURRENT MEMBERSHIPS & COMMUNITY SERVICE 

 
 

Board Chair, The New Orleans Children & Youth Planning Board (2015-2020) 
 
Co- Chair, New Orleans Childhood Trauma Task Force (2018-2020) 
 
Board Chair, New Orleans Council on Aging (2019 – present) 
 
Board member & Vice-chairman, St. Thomas Community Health Center (2010-
present) 
 
Member, City of New Orleans Ethics Review Board (2020-present) 
 
Co-Chair, Bridge City Family and Community Council (2018-2019) 
 
Board member, Gulf Coast Social Services (2012 – 2020) 
 
Member, National Association of Social Workers (NASW) 
 
Member, North American Association of Christians in Social Work 
 
Member, Association of Family & Conciliation Courts (AFCC) 
 
Member, International Society of Traumatic Stress Studies (ISTSS) 
 
Member, Together New Orleans 
 
Member, The Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance 
 
Member, Alpha Phi Alpha Fraternity, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

SPECIAL AWARDS, GRANTS & RECOGNITION 
 

(2020) Wrote grant to Edward Wisner Foundation to establish The Center for Grief 
& Trauma Therapy at The Millie M. Charles School of Social Work ($100,000) 
 
 
Principal Investigator, Healthy Blue Training Grant. (2017-2018) Purpose – Provide 
training statewide to employees of the Department of Child & Family Services on a 
variety of topics including Safety, Child and Adult Mental Health, & Self Care. 
 
Certificates of Merit & Recognition (2017): Pastoral & Community Leadership 
 Congressman Cedric Richmond 
 Mayor Mitchell Landrieu 
 City Council of New Orleans 
 
Inaugural 40 under 40 – Gambit Weekly 
 
Community Leader Award, Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) 
 
Award of Merit, Victims and Citizens against Crime 
 
Making a Difference Award - WDSU Channel 6  

 
Dr. Samuel Proctor Award - Rainbow/Push  
 
  
 

PROFESSIONAL PRESENTATIONS  
 
 

2019 
 
Workshop presenter, Overcoming Racism in Social Services, February 27. Presented at 
Southern University at New Orleans. 
 
Workshop presenter, Trauma & Teens in Schools, May 20. Presented at Jefferson Parish 
Public Schools (School Social Work Department) 
 
Keynote Speaker, Navigating Schools, Systems, and the Community  to inform student 
outcomes, July 31. Presented at NOLA Public Schools Summer Training Collaborative. 
 



Workshop presenter, Evidence-Based Practices for Children & Adolescents, October 17. 
Presented at NASW-LA. 
 
 
 
 
 

2018 
 
Workshop presenter, Principles of Child Custody Evaluation, February 15. Presented at 
NASW – LA Regional Meeting. 
 
Workshop presenter, Spirituality & Social Work Practice, February 22. Presented at 
Southern University at New Orleans. 
 
Workshop presenter, Trauma-Informed Care for Children, March 9. Presented at Orleans 
Parish Juvenile Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Aspects of Quality Interviewing and Engagement of Youth, April 
26. Presented at Orleans Parish Juvenile Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Self-Care for Pastors, April 27. Sponsored by Baptist Community 
Ministries 
 
Workshop presenter, Principles of Effective Supervision, July 20. Presented at Orleans 
Parish Juvenile Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Discharge Planning, July 27. Presented at Orleans Parish Juvenile 
Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Principles for effective staffing, August 2. Presented at Orleans 
Parish Juvenile Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Mediation & Conflict Resolution, August 10. Presented at Orleans 
Parish Juvenile Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Principles of Assessment, August 17. Presented at Orleans Parish 
Juvenile Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Group Work, September 28. Presented at Orleans Parish Juvenile 
Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Ethics and Working with Youth, October 12. Presented at Orleans 
Parish Juvenile Court. 
 



Workshop presenter, Premarital Counseling: Collaboration between Clergy and Social 
Workers, October 27. Presented at Annual Conference of North American Association of 
Christians in Social Work, Hartford, Connecticut. 

 
 
 
 

 2017 
 
Speaker, Beyond the boundaries. December 6. Presented at Baptist Community 
Ministries. 
 
Speaker, Five rules of effective communication. November 17. Presented at New 
Orleans Council on Aging. 
 
Workshop presenter, Worker Safety, November 3. Presented at Orleans Parish Juvenile 
Court. 
 
Workshop presenter, Self-Care. November 3. Presented at Rayne Memorial Early Child 
Care. 
 
Wrote Training Curriculum for Orleans Parish Juvenile Court Staff 
 
Workshop presenter, Self-Care for Child Welfare Workers. September 7, 14, 21, and 
28, 2017.Presented at Department of Children and Family Services (Amerigroup grant). 
 
Keynote Speaker, Flying First Class: Helping our kids to succeed. August 15, 2017. 
Presented at Martin L. King, Jr. Charter High School. 
 
Workshop presenter, Helping children understand themselves & Racial identity and 
childhood. July 5 & 6, 2017. Presented at the Institute for Cultural Education. 

 
Workshop presenter, Building cultural competency. June 29, 2017. Presented at Egan 
Hospice. 
 
Workshop presenter, Promoting Afrocentric social work practice: A case study of Dr. 
Morris F.X. Jeff, Jr. June 10. 2017. Presented at Founder’s Day, New Orleans 
Association of Black Social Workers. 
 
Workshop presenter. Helping children understand themselves and others. May 17, 
2017. Presented at Institute for Cultural Education. 
 
Workshop presenter, Strengthening the relationship between fathers and schools. 
May 8, 2017. Presented at Myrtle Thibodeaux Elementary School. 
 



Workshop presenter. Licensure preparation workshop – SUNO School of Social 
Work, May 5, 2017. 
 
Workshop presenter. Preventing boundary violations in social services. March 3, 2017. 
Presented at Total Community Action, Inc. 
 
Workshop presenter. Keys to service excellence. March 2, 2017. Presented at Total 
Community Action, Inc. 
 
Workshop presenter. Child Custody Evaluation. February 10, 2017. Presented at 
Southern University at New Orleans. 
 
Keynote Speaker. Phi Alpha Induction Ceremony. January 29, 2017. Southern 
University at New Orleans School of Social Work. 
 

 
2016 

 
Presenter, Self Care for Social Workers. November 18, 2016. Presented at Crescent 
Care (formerly New Orleans Aids Task Force). 
 
Presenter, Helping couples cope with Infidelity. November 2, 2016. Held at Southern 
University at New Orleans. 
 
Presenter. Spirituality & Social Work. October 8, 2016 & March 4, 2016. Held at 
Tulane University School of Social Work. 
 
Presenter. Advanced Family Mediation Training. Topics: Co-parenting, Personality 
Disorders, and Supervised Visitation. June 23 & 24, 2016.  
 
Workshop presenter. SUNO Licensure Preparation Course. Topics: human 
development, diversity, abuse & neglect, social & economic justice. June 10, 2016. 
 
Workshop presenter. Helping couples cope with infidelity. March 23, 2016. National 
Association of Black Social Workers Annual Conference. 
 
Workshop presenter. Worker safety. March 4, 2016. Title IV-E Conference at Southern 
University at New Orleans School of Social Work. 
 

 
2015 

 
Keynote speaker. Help Mothers Heal Second Annual Conference. November 14, 2015. 
Sponsored by Watson Memorial Family Teaching Ministries. 
Workshop presenter. Building cultural competency & proficiency. October 23, 2015. 
Sponsored by Kingsley House. 



 
Workshop presenter. Causes & cures of childhood stress: The ACE study and 
beyond. Presented to Jefferson Parish School Social Workers, August 8, 2015 
 
Workshop presenter. Helping couples cope with infidelity. Presented at Southern 
University at New Orleans. April 17, 2015 
 
Workshop presenter. The impact of parental incarceration on African-American 
Children.  New Orleans Association of Black Social Workers Founder’s Day 
Celebration. March 14, 2015 
 
Panelist. From Conversation to action: Stopping the violence in New Orleans. Martin 
Luther King, Jr. Holiday event sponsored by Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority, Inc. January 
18, 2015 
 
Panelist. End the silence, stop domestic violence. Event sponsor – Alpha Phi Alpha 
Fraternity, Inc. 52nd Louisiana District Conference.  January 23, 2015 
 
Speaker, Katrina 10 year anniversary and mental health issues. Press Conference 
sponsored by Mayor Mitch Landrieu. August 12, 2015 
 
 
“Urban New Orleans at ground zero: A Baptist church responds”. Presented at 59th 
annual Institute on Psychiatric Services, American Psychiatric Association, October 13, 
2007, New Orleans, LA. 

 
“Pursuing social justice in the 21st century: Skills for social workers.” Presented at 
NASW-LA Annual Conference, April 2, 2009, Baton Rouge, LA. 

 
“Improving child outcomes by strengthening father engagement.” Presented at 29th 
annual Parent Conference & Institutes, National Head Start Association,  December 12, 
2011, New Orleans, LA. 
 
“Working effectively with children and adults exposed to violence.” Presented at 
National Association of Black Social Workers, January 2012, New Orleans, LA. 

 
“Working effectively with children and adults exposed to violence.” Presented at 
Southern University at Baton Rouge,   March 30, 2012, Baton Rouge, LA. 
 
 

PUBLICATIONS 
 
Sanders, T. (2018). School board politics and policy post-Katrina. In T. Causey 

-Konate & M. Montgomery-Richard (Eds.), Called to Sankofa: A narrative 
account of African-Americans leading education in post-Katrina New Orleans. 
New York: Peter Lang Publishing. 



 
Sanders, T. (2020). Promoting Afrocentric social work practice: A case study of Dr.  

Morris F.X. Jeff, Jr. (Manuscript being submitted to Journal of African-American 
History). 

 
Sanders, T (2020).  The Child Custody Casebook (Book proposal being submitted to 
Linus Publishing) 
 
Sanders, T. (2017). Unpublished Staff Training Curriculum – Prepared to Serve. 
Designed for staff of Juvenile Court. 

 
 
 
 

 
OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION - 

 
Elected Board Member (2005-2009) and President (2005, 2008) Orleans Parish School 
Board, New Orleans, Louisiana. 
 
Qualified Mediator – Loyola College of Law, June 2009 
 
Board Approved Clinical Supervisor (BACS since 1993) 
 
Board Certified Social Worker -1991 
 
Certified Premarital and Marital Counselor – Prepare-Enrich (2000). 
 
Certified Entrepeneurship Teacher National Foundation for Teaching Entrepeneurship, 
(2002). 
 
Ordained Minister - First District Baptist Association, New Orleans, Louisiana (1993). 
 
President, Tulane University School of Social Work Student Government Association 
(1987-88) 
 
Congressional Intern, Sen. Edward M. Kennedy -Tracked legislation, responded to 
constituent inquiries, attended committee meetings. (1982-1983). 
 
 
 

 
 

E-mail: tsanders@suno.edu 
 

 























 
 

 

 

 
J.S. Clark Administration Building   

4th Floor  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

 

Office of the  
 President-Chancellor 

(225) 771-4680 
 

Fax Number 
(225) 771-5522 

 

      Southern University and A&M College System 
 

February 28, 2021 
 

Southern University and A&M College 
Board of Supervisors - J.S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
  
Re: Request to Appoint Dr. Katara Williams as the SUS Chief of Staff/Executive Director for Strategic Initiatives 

 
Honorable Members of the Board:   
 
This correspondence seeks your authorization to appoint Dr. Katara A. Williams as the Southern University System 
Executive Director for Strategic Initiatives.  In 2018, Dr. Williams joined my leadership team in the role of Chief of 
Staff.  Since that time, she has assumed additional duties of a greater magnitude and executed each of them with 
professionalism and fidelity.  Dr. Williams has far exceeded expectations and worked beyond the outlined scope of her 
role.  She effectively coordinates System-wide initiatives and operations, ensures that the university is responsive to 
internal and external requests, and works closely with university personnel and students to address issues and optimize 
operational efficiency. Particularly, over the last year and a half, these duties have been aligned with the role of 
Executive Director for Strategic Initiatives. 
 
As the higher education landscape continues change both locally and nationally, education institutions have made the 
necessary adjustments to adapt, most notably when considering the COVID-19 pandemic.  During this time, Dr. 
Williams provided excellent leadership in the coordination of System-wide services and reporting, to ensure that the 
Southern University System maintained its compliance with national and state regulations, while keeping our campuses 
both safe and informed.  She has also played a major role in the coordination of the System-wide return to work strategy 
and campus vaccination partnerships. As we begin to adapt to this new normal, the continuity of operations in a 
coordinated, methodical, and systemic approach will be critical.  Dr. Williams is well positioned to continue these 
efforts. 
   
Additionally, as our state institutions intensify their focus on diversity and inclusion, Dr. Williams has been selected by 
peers to serve on the Executive Committee for the Louisiana Association for Diversity Officers in Higher Education and 
will provide leadership to system-wide diversity and inclusion initiatives. She will lead the coordination of diversity and 
inclusion efforts System-wide and will be responsible for campus coordination and reporting.   
 
Dr. Williams possesses more than 20 years of progressive experience in education and is a recognized leader both 
locally and nationally.  In addition, she has successfully delivered outstanding leadership, dedication, and service, and 
has maximized the value to the university system. In concert with members of the senior leadership team, Dr. Williams 
has demonstrated a commitment to driving outcomes which meet or exceed performance-based goals and 
objectives. Her energy and passion for serving students is frequently observed and acknowledged by both staff and 
students which she constantly seeks to assist. Her critical thinking abilities are exuded when handling matters of crisis 
and/or importance and students enjoy their frequent interactions with her. She has also successfully managed high level 
matters with fidelity and tact, to include several Chancellor and senior level executive searches, all carried out with 
professionalism and with the utmost confidentiality.  
 
The Executive Director of Strategic Initiatives/Chief of Staff role is necessary to ensure continued operational 
efficiencies to propel the System to even greater levels of prominence.  I could not think of a more suitable candidate 
who is both competent and capable, has shown a demonstrated track record of success, and is truly a dedicated servant, 
ambassador, and alumna of the Southern University System than Dr. Williams, therefore, I respectfully request your 
consideration and approval. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kindest Regards,   
 
 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.   
  
 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
Personnel Action Form 

 
 
 

CAMPUS: SUS X  SUBR   SULAC   SUAREC   SUNO   SUSLA  
                  
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH  12-MONTH X OTHER  (Specify)  
         
  Academic   Non-Academic   Civil Service 
  Temporary   Part-time (  % of Full Time)   Restricted 
  Tenured   Undergraduate Student   Job Appointment 
  Tenured Track   Graduate Assistant   Probationary 
  Other (Specify)   Retiree Return To Work  X Permanent Status 
         
Previous Employee Southern University and A & M College  Reason Left Additional Responsibilities & 

Title Change 
Date Left   Salary Paid  
     

 Profile of Person Recommended    

Length of Employment   To Present 
Effective Date March 1, 2021  
  
Name Katara A. Williams SS# xxx-xx-1839 Sex F Race* AA 
    (Last 4 digits only)    
Position Title: Chief of Staff/ Executive Director of Strategic 

Initiatives 
Department: Office of the President 

          
Check One  Existing Position   *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):      
 X New Position  Expiration  Date:   

 (Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

  

Years Experience 18 years Southern University Experience  
Degree(s): Type/Discipline:  Institution/Location:  Year: 
 Mass Communication     Southern University and A&M College/Baton Rouge  07/99 
 Mass Comm/Public Relations  Southern University and A&M College/Baton Rouge  12/05 
 Public Policy/Education Policy  Southern University and A&M College/Baton Rouge  05/11 
  
Current Employer  
 

Personnel Action 
 
Check One X New Appointment  Continuation  Sabbatical   Leave of Absence 
  Transfer  Replacement  Other (Specify)  Additional Responsibilities & 

Title Change     
         
Recommended Salary $145,000.00  Salary Budgeted $145,000.00 
         
Source of Funds State 
         
 Identify Budget: 111005-11157-61002-16000  Location  
 Form Code:  Page  Item #  
Change of:    

 From  To 
Position    
Status    
Salary Adjustment    
   Financial Aid signature (if, applicable):    

JOB CLASS     

JOB CODE     

CAL ID     

 

POSITION  
NUMBER       

 



Rev. 07/24/2007 

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount 
Southern University: 111005-11157-61002-16000 $145,000.00 
*See Reverse Side    

Comments:  (Use back of form)    
    
*See Reverse Side  Graduate School signature (if, applicable):    
 

 
 
 

Supervisor                                                                         Date  Dean/Unit Head                                                     Date 
 
 

  

Vice Chancellor                                                                Date  Chancellor                                                              Date 
 
 

  

Director/Personnel                                                            Date  Vice President/Finance                                          Date 
  Business Affairs/Comptroller 

 
 

  

President                                                                           Date  Chairman/S.U. Board                                            Date 
  of Supervisors 



Rev. 07/24/2007 

This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws 
and does not affect employment consideration. 

 ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

 Hispanic or Latino  Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino  

 RACE (Please check all that apply): 

 White, not of Hispanic origin.  A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

X 
 
Black.  not of Hispanic Origin.  A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

 

 
Hispanic.  A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
regardless of race. 

 

 
Asian or Pacific Islander.  A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands.  This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

 

 
American Indian or Alaskan Native.  A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

 

 

COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: M-F 8:00am-5:00pm 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Dr. Ray Belton, President-Chancellor 
SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER (225) 771-4680 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any)  
 

HR USE ONLY:   STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 
 
GUIDELINES:  All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to 
report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work.  
All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt), 
and a class schedule.  All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth 
certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/I-94.  The latter 
six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 
 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 
 
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): 
   
TYPE CODE EXPIRES 
   
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization US  
Resident Alien RA  
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) H1  
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1  
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) F1  
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”) F0  
 

 

Do Not Write Below This Area 



Rev. 07/24/2007 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 
 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
 Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
 Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 
 Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
 Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Background Check form) 
 Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
 Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
 Proposed Employee Appointment 
 Proposed Employee Clearance 
 Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 
  

 













Southern University System 

Chief of Staff / Executive Director for Strategic Initiatives 

Office of the President-Chancellor 

The Chief of Staff (CoS) / Executive Director for Strategic Initiatives serves as the chief strategist in the 

Office of the President-Chancellor. This position is a key advisor to the President-Chancellor and plays a 

critical role in analyzing complex issues, problem solving, addressing concerns, and evaluating trends to 

determine the best course of action for the university system and its campuses. The CoS/EDSI will 

provide leadership, oversight and stewardship over administrative functions and services to ensure greater 

accountability and transparency. 

The CoS/EDSI serves as a point of contact for the Louisiana Board of Regents relative to compliance and 

reporting.  This role coordinates System requests for information and recommendations, along with 

assisting campuses in formulating, interpreting, and executing policies related to operational efficiency 

and to ensure uniform implementation.  The CoS/EDSI provides leadership for systemwide initiatives 

which are aligned with best practices.  

This position supports the President-Chancellor in crisis management, oversees special projects, and 

facilitates new and innovative initiatives which seek to advance the Southern University System and its 

member campuses. 

The CoS/EDSI will be responsible for sustaining the President-Chancellors priorities, including a 

commitment to diversity and inclusion, talent development and cultivating partnerships which seek to 

eliminate opportunity gaps and barriers so that every student is afforded high quality educational 

opportunities at Southern University.  

 

Responsibilities and Duties 

The CoS/EDSI’s responsibilities and duties include: 

 Assists the President-Chancellor in maximizing the operational performance of the Southern 

University System.  

 Works in concert with the President on crisis management for the Southern University System, 

ensuring that each campus has active emergency preparedness strategies and plans. 

 Provides leadership to ensure that all there is a System-wide commitment to equity, diversity, and 

inclusion. 



 Represents the President-Chancellor at official functions and events involving the various 

campuses, Chancellors, Vice-Presidents, other system campus administrators, Board of Regents, 

and other external constituents.  

 In consultation with the President, oversees the strategic vision for the Baton Rouge campus and 

ensures the coordination of the President’s strategic vision for all campuses within the System. 

 Represents the University at community activities by actively participating in organizations which 

support and strengthen the University’s programs and priorities. 

 Participates in activities and initiatives which improve the university’s visibility and reputation 

both locally and globally. 

 Serves as a liaison between campus administrative teams and the President-Chancellor to ensure 

effective and efficient flow of communication, along with the management and execution of special 

projects and initiatives. 

 Collaborates with stakeholders (both internal and external) for funding / collaborative opportunities 

and partnerships on behalf of the President-Chancellor. 

 Manages special System-wide task forces (as deemed appropriate by the President-Chancellor). 

 Provides executive leadership reporting to Board Committees on administrative developments, 

successes, and challenges utilizing a proactive approach. 

 Spearheads the development, communication, and implementation of effective strategies, 

processes for System-wide coordination and reporting.   

 Supports the President, Board, and leadership team in building strategic relationships and 

partnerships while continuously seeking opportunities for leadership and professional 

development. 

 Incorporates policies, procedures and systems that enhance the coordination of human and fiscal 

resources and streamline internal communications and cross-functionality throughout the System. 

 Constructs operational processes to meet organizational objectives and improve workflows and 

communications across campuses. 

 Works with senior leadership to shape annual benchmarks and objectives to ensure alignment and 

accountability. 

 Works with HR leadership to ensure staff-related matters are addressed in a timely manner. 

 Works with the Legal Counsel and Communications on System responses to public record 

requests and other legal matters. 

 Provides oversight on matters relative to the Office of the President-Chancellor to include grants 

and scholarships, student issues, food service requests/budgets and other operations and services 

as deemed appropriate by the President-Chancellor. 











































FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 43,442,284$        33,881,721$        9,560,563$           43,442,284$        -$                             78.0%

Statutory Dedicated 4,228,516             1,871,761             2,356,755             4,228,516             -                               44.3%

Federal 3,654,209             915,780                 2,738,429             3,654,209             -                               25.1%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 34,262,460           33,127,588           -                               33,127,588           (1,134,872)           96.7%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 31,256,081           31,608,640           (1,217,727)           30,390,912           (865,168)               101.1%

    Tuition - Summer 6,993,497             2,640,641             5,227,884             7,868,525             875,028                 37.8%

    Out-of-State Fees 11,910,932           13,604,871           166,336                 13,771,208           1,860,276             114.2%

    Other 16,682,523           10,165,409           4,806,416             14,971,825           (1,710,698)           60.9%

Interagency Transfer 3,028,515             2,054,142             1,481,145             3,535,287             506,772                 67.8%

Total Revenues 155,459,017$   129,870,552$   25,119,802$      154,990,354$   (468,662)$           83.5%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 74,515,941$        50,891,529$        25,199,377$        76,090,906$        1,574,965$           68.3%

  Other Compensation 319,377                 101,917                 36,083                   138,000                 (181,377)               31.9%

  Related Benefits 34,034,650           22,907,223           10,357,368           33,264,591           (770,059)               67.3%

Total Personal Services 108,869,968$   73,900,668$      35,592,828$      109,493,496$   623,528$             67.9%

  Travel 1,034,510             53,511                   784,532                 838,043                 (196,467)               5.2%

  Operating Services 15,319,492           9,957,394             4,208,349             14,165,744           (1,153,748)           65.0%

  Supplies 1,845,900             659,194                 847,329                 1,506,523             (339,377)               35.7%

Total Operating Expenses 18,199,902$      10,670,099$      5,840,211$         16,510,310$      (1,689,592)$       58.6%

  Professional Services 2,604,772             1,287,001             1,338,186             2,625,187             20,415                   49.4%

  Other Charges 10,714,822           696,380                 7,324,589             8,020,969             (2,693,853)           6.5%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 6,238,234             3,474,621             2,763,613             6,238,234             -                               55.7%

Total Other Charges 19,557,828$      5,458,002$         11,426,388$      16,884,390$      (2,673,438)$       27.9%

  General Acquisitions 227,382                 44,001                   743,382                 787,382                 560,000                 19.4%

  Library Acquisitions 562,649                 293,994                 268,655                 562,649                 -                               52.3%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 790,031$             337,995$             1,012,036$         1,350,031$         560,000$             42.8%

  Scholarships 8,041,288             10,452,044           300,084                 10,752,128           2,710,840             130.0%

Total Expenditures 155,459,017$   100,818,808$   54,171,547$      154,990,355$   (468,662)$           64.9%

Southern University System

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

Page 1



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 3,199,565$           3,365,310$           (165,745)$             3,199,565$           -$                             105.2%

Statutory Dedicated

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020

    Tuition - Spring 2021

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 3,199,565$         3,365,310$         (165,745)$           3,199,565$         -$                            105.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 1,649,530$           1,053,809$           595,721$              1,649,530$           -$                             63.9%

  Other Compensation 88,000                   70,667                   17,333                   88,000                   -                               80.3%

  Related Benefits 769,942                 343,820                 426,122                 769,942                 -                               44.7%

Total Personal Services 2,507,472$         1,468,296$         1,039,176$         2,507,472$         -$                            58.6%

  Travel 185,000                 7,194                      177,806                 185,000                 -                               3.9%

  Operating Services 171,100                 59,895                   111,205                 171,100                 -                               35.0%

  Supplies 80,000                   18,369                   61,631                   80,000                   -                               23.0%

Total Operating Expenses 436,100$             85,458$               350,642$             436,100$             -$                            19.6%

  Professional Services 94,000                   -                               94,000                   94,000                   -                               0.0%

  Other Charges 136,993                 -                               136,993                 136,993                 -                               0.0%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers

Total Other Charges 230,993$             -$                            230,993$             230,993$             -$                            0.0%

  General Acquisitions 25,000                   6,774                      18,226                   25,000                   -                               27.1%

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 25,000$               6,774$                  18,226$               25,000$               -$                            27.1%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 3,199,565$         1,560,528$         1,639,037$         3,199,565$         -$                            48.8%

Southern University Board and System Administration

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

Page 2



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 18,275,725$        13,528,785$        4,746,940$           18,275,725$        -$                             74.0%

Statutory Dedicated 1,593,248             726,552                 866,696                 1,593,248             -                               45.6%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 21,709,761           20,499,191           -                               20,499,191           (1,210,570)           94.4%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 19,487,148           19,618,669           (951,920)               18,666,749           (820,399)               100.7%

    Tuition - Summer 4,963,498             1,322,877             3,847,652             5,170,529             207,031                 26.7%

    Out-of-State Fees 8,349,603             8,955,802             12,141                   8,967,943             618,340                 107.3%

    Other 7,671,356             4,154,681             4,215,501             8,370,182             698,826                 54.2%

Interagency Transfer 3,028,515             2,054,142             1,481,145             3,535,287             506,772                 67.8%

Total Revenues 85,078,854$      70,860,699$      14,218,155$      85,078,854$      -$                            83.3%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 40,450,820$        28,382,291$        11,014,894$        39,397,184$        (1,053,636)$         70.2%

  Other Compensation 181,377                 -                               -                               -                               (181,377)               0.0%

  Related Benefits 18,669,613           13,888,708           3,591,751             17,480,460           (1,189,153)           74.4%

Total Personal Services 59,301,810$      42,270,999$      14,606,645$      56,877,644$      (2,424,166)$       71.3%

  Travel 268,210                 15,351                   84,747                   100,098                 (168,112)               5.7%

  Operating Services 8,662,277             6,026,647             1,744,088             7,770,735             (891,542)               69.6%

  Supplies 865,911                 397,821                 194,426                 592,247                 (273,664)               45.9%

Total Operating Expenses 9,796,398$         6,439,819$         2,023,261$         8,463,080$         (1,333,318)$       65.7%

  Professional Services 1,026,480             714,438                 114,567                 829,005                 (197,475)               69.6%

  Other Charges 3,805,700             210,223                 4,292,479             4,502,702             697,002                 5.5%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 4,017,497             1,937,816             2,079,681             4,017,497             -                               48.2%

Total Other Charges 8,849,677$         2,862,476$         6,486,728$         9,349,204$         499,527$             32.3%

  General Acquisitions 52,032                   7,758                      604,275                 612,032                 560,000                 14.9%

  Library Acquisitions 137,649                 94,592                   43,057                   137,649                 -                               68.7%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 189,681$             102,350$             647,331$             749,681$             560,000$             54.0%

  Scholarships 6,941,288             9,584,291             54,954                   9,639,245             2,697,957             138.1%

Total Expenditures 85,078,854$      61,259,934$      23,818,920$      85,078,854$      -$                            72.0%
   

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

 The Southern University Baton Rouge Campus have allocated $2.2 million in CARES Act funds to ensure the budget remains balanced and operations 
continue due to revenue shortfall.

Page 3



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 3,735,319$           2,913,270$           822,049$              3,735,319$           -$                             78.0%

Statutory Dedicated 172,939                 78,543                   94,396                   172,939                 -                               45.4%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 3,823,146             4,583,457             -                               4,583,457             760,311                 119.9%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 3,499,336             4,413,269             -                               4,413,269             913,933                 126.1%

    Tuition - Summer 700,000                 282,946                 600,000                 882,946                 182,946                 40.4%

    Out-of-State Fees 2,658,500             4,103,411             99,000                   4,202,411             1,543,911             154.4%

    Other 3,286,762             3,655,627             100,977                 3,756,604             469,842                 111.2%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 17,876,002$      20,030,522$      1,716,422$         21,746,944$      3,870,942$         112.1%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 9,471,530$           6,968,724$           5,006,639$           11,975,363$        2,503,833$           73.6%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 3,609,686             2,189,048             1,902,523             4,091,571             481,885                 60.6%

Total Personal Services 13,081,216$      9,157,772$         6,909,162$         16,066,934$      2,985,718$         70.0%

  Travel 385,000                 27,115                   357,885                 385,000                 -                               7.0%

  Operating Services 1,690,629             601,798                 1,572,753             2,174,551             483,922                 35.6%

  Supplies 250,000                 84,214                   165,786                 250,000                 -                               33.7%

Total Operating Expenses 2,325,629$         713,127$             2,096,424$         2,809,551$         483,922$             30.7%

  Professional Services 1,220,590             509,500                 1,011,091             1,520,591             300,001                 41.7%

  Other Charges 432,027                 199,429                 232,598                 432,027                 -                               46.2%

  Debt Services -                               -                          -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 366,540                 207,253                 159,287                 366,540                 -                               56.5%

Total Other Charges 2,019,157$         916,181$             1,402,976$         2,319,158$         300,001$             45.4%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Library Acquisitions 250,000                 199,402                 50,598                   250,000                 -                               79.8%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 250,000$             199,402$             50,598$               250,000$             -$                            79.8%

  Scholarships 200,000                 301,302                 301,302                 101,302                 150.7%

Total Expenditures 17,876,002$      11,287,784$      10,459,160$      21,746,944$      3,870,942$         63.1%

Southern University Law Center

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

Page 4



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 8,158,721$           6,363,191$           1,795,530$           8,158,721$           -$                             78.0%

Statutory Dedicated 502,799                 224,408                 278,391                 502,799                 -                               44.6%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 4,851,700             4,619,305             -                               4,619,305             (232,395)               95.2%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 4,577,842             4,354,494             -                               4,354,494             (223,348)               95.1%

    Tuition - Summer 429,999                 129,767                 330,232                 459,999                 30,000                   30.2%

    Out-of-State Fees 352,829                 271,309                 81,520                   352,829                 0                              76.9%

    Other 4,735,175             2,258,912             378,623                 2,637,535             (2,097,640)           47.7%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 23,609,065$      18,221,385$      2,864,296$         21,085,681$      (2,523,383)$       77.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 10,111,886$        7,200,544$           3,130,967$           10,331,511$        219,625$              71.2%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 4,740,079             3,281,367             1,475,513             4,756,880             16,801                   69.2%

Total Personal Services 14,851,965$      10,481,911$      4,606,480$         15,088,391$      236,426$             70.6%

  Travel 37,000                   719                         36,281                   37,000                   -                               1.9%

  Operating Services 2,285,294             1,795,917             489,377                 2,285,294             -                               78.6%

  Supplies 285,500                 54,783                   230,717                 285,500                 -                               19.2%

Total Operating Expenses 2,607,794$         1,851,419$         756,375$             2,607,794$         -$                            71.0%

  Professional Services -                               21,674                   3,326                      25,000                   25,000                   

  Other Charges 4,268,732             25,140                   1,458,782             1,483,922             (2,784,810)           0.6%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 1,105,574             961,296                 144,278                 1,105,574             -                               86.9%

Total Other Charges 5,374,306$         1,008,111$         1,606,386$         2,614,497$         (2,759,809)$       18.8%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 175,000                 -                               175,000                 175,000                 -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 175,000$             -$                            175,000$             175,000$             -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 600,000                 404,870                 195,130                 600,000                 -                               67.5%

Total Expenditures 23,609,065$      13,746,311$      7,339,371$         21,085,682$      (2,523,383)$       58.2%

Southern University New Orleans Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

Page 5



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 5,158,497$           3,878,259$           1,280,238$           5,158,497$           -$                             75.2%

Statutory Dedicated 162,060                 78,543                   83,517                   162,060                 -                               48.5%

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 3,877,853             3,425,635             -                               3,425,635             (452,218)               88.3%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 3,691,755             3,222,208             (265,807)               2,956,401             (735,354)               87.3%

    Tuition - Summer 900,000                 905,051                 450,000                 1,355,051             455,051                 100.6%

    Out-of-State Fees 550,000                 274,350                 (26,325)                 248,025                 (301,975)               49.9%

    Other 989,230                 96,190                   111,315                 207,505                 (781,725)               9.7%

Interagency Transfer -                               -                               

Total Revenues 15,329,395$      11,880,236$      1,632,938$         13,513,174$      (1,816,221)$       77.5%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 7,402,302$           5,169,280$           2,138,164$           7,307,444$           (94,858)$               69.8%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 3,666,095             2,231,997             1,354,506             3,586,503             (79,592)                 60.9%

Total Personal Services 11,068,397$      7,401,277$         3,492,670$         10,893,947$      (174,450)$           66.9%

  Travel 38,300                   1,191                      8,754                      9,945                      (28,355)                 3.1%

  Operating Services 2,166,888             1,237,760             183,000                 1,420,760             (746,128)               57.1%

  Supplies 140,200                 70,987                   3,500                      74,487                   (65,713)                 50.6%

Total Operating Expenses 2,345,388$         1,309,938$         195,254$             1,505,192$         (840,196)$           55.9%

  Professional Services 219,500                 37,389                   75,000                   112,389                 (107,111)               17.0%

  Other Charges 647,487                 1,442                      40,000                   41,442                   (606,045)               0.2%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 748,623                 368,257                 380,366                 748,623                 -                               49.2%

Total Other Charges 1,615,610$         407,088$             495,366$             902,454$             (713,156)$           25.2%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            0.0%

  Scholarships 300,000                 161,581                 50,000                   211,581                 (88,419)                 53.9%

Total Expenditures 15,329,395$      9,279,884$         4,233,290$         13,513,174$      (1,816,221)$       60.5%
   

Southern University Shreveport Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

 The Southern University Shreveport Campus have allocated $2.6 million in CARES Act funds to ensure the budget remains balanced and operations 
continue due to revenue shortfall.

Page 6



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 4,914,457$           3,832,906$           1,081,551$           4,914,457$           -$                             78.0%

Statutory Dedicated 1,797,470             763,714                 1,033,756             1,797,470             -                               42.5%

Federal 3,654,209             915,780                 2,738,429             3,654,209             -                               25.1%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020

    Tuition - Spring 2021

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 10,366,136$      5,512,400$         4,853,736$         10,366,136$      -$                            53.2%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 5,429,873$           2,116,881$           3,312,992$           5,429,873$           -$                             39.0%

  Other Compensation 50,000                   31,250                   18,750                   50,000                   -                               62.5%

  Related Benefits 2,579,235             972,283                 1,606,952             2,579,235             -                               37.7%

Total Personal Services 8,059,108$         3,120,413$         4,938,695$         8,059,108$         -$                            38.7%

  Travel 121,000                 1,941                      119,059                 121,000                 -                               1.6%

  Operating Services 343,304                 235,377                 107,927                 343,304                 -                               68.6%

  Supplies 224,289                 33,020                   191,269                 224,289                 -                               14.7%

Total Operating Expenses 688,593$             270,339$             418,254$             688,593$             -$                            39.3%

  Professional Services 44,202                   4,000                      40,202                   44,202                   -                               9.0%

  Other Charges 1,423,883             260,146                 1,163,737             1,423,883             -                               18.3%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 1,468,085$         264,146$             1,203,939$         1,468,085$         -$                            18.0%

  General Acquisitions 150,350                 29,469                   120,881                 150,350                 -                               19.6%

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 150,350$             29,469$               120,881$             150,350$             -$                            19.6%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 10,366,136$      3,684,367$         6,681,769$         10,366,136$      -$                            35.5%

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  February 28, 2021

Page 7




	Cover
	March Meeting Agenda
	BOS Meeting Minutes (February 12 2021)
	SULC- Request Approval of LA2B-SET
	SUAREC- Request Approval MOU Between Davis Farms and SUAREC
	SUNO- Request Approval for BSN
	SUNO- Request Approval MOU between Deep South Mobility Collaborative and SUNO
	SULC- Request Approval Professor From Practice
	SUS- Request Approval of Cybersecurity Policy
	SUS- Request Approval of Information Security Policy Plan
	Request Approval of Graduate School Policy
	SUSLA- Request Approval to Establish the Brookshire's-Super 1 Foods Endowed Scholarship Fund
	SUSLA- Request Approval to Establish the AKA-HBCU Endowed Scholarship Fund
	SUS Decuir, Clark and Adams Contract
	SUBR- Request Approval to of Recommended Tenure Track Appointments
	SUNO- Request Approval to of Recommended Tenure Track Appointments
	SULC- Request Approval to of Recommended Tenure and Tenure Track Appointments
	Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater Than 60K
	SULC- Request Approval to Grant Endowed Professorships to 2 Professors for Academic Year 21-22
	SULC- Request Approval of BA-7 for the SULC
	Interim Financial Report
	SUS-Facilities Planning Project Updates 



